
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

BOARD MEETING

AGENDA

Hamilton High School Library
Wednesday, September 25, 2OL9

5:30 p.m.

5:30 p.m.

6:00 p.m.

Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only.
Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below
Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m.

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.O

OPENING BUSINESS:

Call to order and roll call

riel Leal, President _Hubert "Wendall" Lower, Clerk

_Ray Odom
_Rod Boone

_Genaro Reyes

IDENTIFY CTOSED SESSION ITEMS:

PUBIIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board may
limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item.

ADJOURN TO CTOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters.
1' Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel lssue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment, resignation,

dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.
2. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the Distríct's Labor Negotiator, Superintendent

Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.
3. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamílton Unified School

D¡strict, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394.
4. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Pending litigation. Name of case: Goodwin v. Hamilton Unified School

District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 19CV02117.
5. Conference with Reol Property Negotiotors. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School, approximately

located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency Negotiator: Jeremy powell,
Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified
School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment.

Report out action taken in closed session.

5.0 PUBUC SESSTON/FLAG SALUTE:

6.0 ADOPTTHE AGENDA: (M)

7.O coMMUNtCATTONS/REPORTS:
1. Board Member Comments/Reports.
2. ASB President and Student Council President Reports

a. Hamilton High School, Giovanni Martinez
b. Hamilton Elementary School, Ella Mendez

3. District Reports (written)
a. Food Service Report by Sean Montgomery (p. 1)

b. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p. 3)
c. Technology Report by Derek Hawley (p. 5)

4. Principal and Dean ofStudent Reports
a. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal
b. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students
c. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal
d. Sylvia Robles, Adult School (p. 7)

5. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (p. 9)
6. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (p. 11)



8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

PRESENTATIONS:

1. Smoke Free Parks Campaign by Vanessa Mercado, HHSA Program Coordinator

CORRESPONDENCE

!. None

INFORMATIONAT ITEMS:

1. Butte- Glenn Community Collget District College and Career Access Pathways Partnership Agreement Appendix 2019-

20 (p. 13)

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

2. CSBA Policy Guide Sheet (for below first readings) (p. 2S)

a. First reading of Board Policy & Administrative Regulation 42t8.!: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit

System)(p. 2s)

b. First reading of Board Policy 5123: Promotion/Acceleration/Retention
i. Option 1 (p.28)
ii. option 2 (p.291

c. First reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5136: Gangs (p. 31)

d. First reading ol Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6L42.2: World Language lnstruction (p. 39)

e. First reading of Administrative Regulatio n 6145.2: Athletic Competition (p. +9)

f. First reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6145.6: lnternational Exchange (p. 60)

pUB¡C COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board's jurisdiction will be heard

(agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15

minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon.

ACTION ITEMS:

1. Revised Governance Handbook for approval (p. 67)

2. Copy Machine/Business Soiutions Options re-v¡st (tabled from meeting 8/28/!91. (p. 187)

3 CSBA Policy Guide Sheet (for below Second readings) (p. 197)

a. Second reading of Board Policy 1112: Media Relations (p. L99)

b. Second reading of Administrative Regulation 3320: Claims and actions against the District. (p. 203)

c. Second reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3551: Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund (p.

208)
i. Option 2(p.zLL)

d. Second reading of Administrative Regulatio n 4LL7.7 /43t7.7: Employment Status Reports (p. 223)

e. Second reading of Board Policy 4tL9.24/42L9.24/4319.24: Maintaining Appropriate Adult/Student lnteractions (p

tsTl
f. Second reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 4218: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action. (p'

2331

CONSENT AGENDA: ltems in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one motion.

There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public request

specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda approved by the

Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended.

1. Girls Varsity High School Overnight Basketball Tourney Trip (p. 245)

2. Minutes for regular Board Meeting on August 28,20L9 (p.2a7l

3. Warrants and Expenditures. (p. 257)

4. lnterdistrict Transfers (new only; elementarv students reapplv annuallv).

a. Out
i. Hamilton Elementary School

'J-. None

ii. Hamilton High School
1. None

b. ln

i. Hamilton Elementary School

L. GradeKx2
2. Grade2xl
3. Grade6xl

L2.0

13.0

14.o



5

4. Grade8xl
¡i. Hamilton High School

7. None
Personnel Actions as Presented:

a. New hires: None

b. Resignations/Ret¡rement: None

ADJOURNMENT:15.0





HUSD Food Service Report

Board Meeting on September 25,2019

Sean Montgomery, Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare

Breakfast and Lunch:

L. High School breakfast and lunch numbers are climbing. Last Friday 9/L3we had 150 for

breakfast. The first week of school, in contrast, we only got as high as L27.

2. The elementary numbers are also climbing, averaging around 1.30 for breakfast and 330

for lunch.

3. The elementary lunches seem to be getting smoother as everyone is learning the new

system. Lunch hour seems quite a bit quieter also.

Personnel:

4' Marcie Rivera, a newly hired employee, is doing great at the High School. The students

really like her.

5. Asha Mundo is also workíng out great at the elementary. She's primarity in charge of

the new salad bars. she has taken on this challenge with great energy.

State Review:

6. We also closed out our "seamless Summer" summer school state review last week.

1



2



HUSD Maintenance Report

Board Meeting on September 25,2Ot;9

Alan Joksch, Director of Maintenance and Transportation

We are settling into our daily routine these first months of the new school year

Sports Update

t. We had a wonderfulturnout for our first home footballgame with Willows. The score

board was repaired and re-painted. A new school nameplate was installed. The fields
were prepared. The campus was cleaned. The turnout was great, although,
unfortunatelç the outcome was less than we had hoped for.

2. We are now preparing for homecoming week.
3. Volleyball hosted their three-day tournament. Except for a few minor issues, everything

wen smoothly. We were able to have the bleachers repaired by the seating company
earlier that week.

4. The Elementary has had a good start to their sports season, as well, traveling to eíght
volleyball games with one at home in the HS gym. Football played two at home using

the varsity field.
5. We have bused about 550 miles totalfor football and 300 for volleyball.

HVAC Project
L. The first set of three AC units were replaced on the Ag building on September 14th.

2. The second phase is planned for the week of Thanksgiving followed by winter break,
pending weather.

Bus Training
L. Dallas Detherage has completed his training toward gettíng his Class B bus license. He is

scheduled to test with CHP next week.
Z. The rest of our drivers are planning our annual training over Christmas break.

Maintenance
t. We have accepted about 90 job tickets and completed about 70 this month. The

majoríty have been vehicle or transportation related.
2. Bids are in for other aforementioned projects and are pending approval.

3



4



HUSD Technology Report

Board Meeting on September 25, 2019

Frank James, Director of Technology

Derek Hawley, lnformation Systems Technician

Completed and ín Progress Tasks - September 2019

Copier Project

L We have met with four local Business Solutions providers in order to give them the
specific need of Hamilton Unified School District. We have gathered quotes from each
vender, compared them, and organized them logically. This has been done to ensure
that we are getting the best value to the District.

Blackboard mobile App:

L. We have met with Blackboard in regards to implementing a mobile app for parents,
students, stafl and the community. This app willwork hand and hand with the website
to inform the public of school events and news. We hope to that this app up and
functional before the start of 2020.

Windows Server Update Services (WSUSI:

L. A new WSUS server has been created, configured and deployed. This will enable is to
push out updates and quickly load images on desktop and laptop PCs.

Staff and Faculty Support:

L. During the month of August HUSD generated L31 new technology tickets. We ended up
closing 153 technology tickets (some tickets carried over from July). This represents the
second largest created ticket month and the highest closed ticket totals since the
implementation of the ticketing system. This can be attributed to the increase in
technology throughout the district as well as the increased buy in from Staff in regards
to utilizing the technology portal

Financial/Business Systems:

t. Competed the update on all Financial and Business Department PCs from Cisco VPN to
OpenVPN. Glenn County Office of Education has transitioned to OpenVPN for accessing

QSS.

Laserfiche Project:

1. The District has formed a team to handle the Laserfiche Project. The Team has

developed a plan for starting and implementing our digital document storage project.
We hope to write procedures, start scanning and storing documents before the start of
2020.

5



6



The Robles Report-Adult Education

Board Meeting on September 25,2OL9

Silvia Robles, D¡rector of Adult Education

Guada lupe Mercado, Administrative Technician

Completed and in Progress Tasks - September 2019

L. Started working on the First Quarter Report ending September 30, due October 30th.

2. High School Diploma program has ongoing enrollment with L2 enrolled concurrent

high school students and two enrolled adults.

3. California Core Performance Employment and Earning Surveytraining started

September 13th to follow up with students who have left the program and entered

employment or post-secondary education.

4. Recruiting and enrolling for Forklift Training.

a. September 26, 6pm-9:pm

b. September 28, 8am-4pm.

5. Recruiting and enrolling for Computer Literacy Course

a. Begins September 23.

6. I have arranged for a USCIS-Immigration lnformation Meeting that will take place on

September 24th atthe High School Library at 7:00pm.

7. Enrollment for all programs as of today:

¡ Citizenship, runs year-round: 7 enrolled (l waiting list)

o Computer Literacy begíns September 23'd: 5 enrolled (L pa¡d)

o ESL, runs year-round: 7 enrolled (l waiting list)

o Floral Design: due to 0 enrollment canceled September 9 & L6 classes

r Forklift for September 26, & 28: 7 enrolled (a pa¡d)

o High School Diploma: 14 enrolled (6 waitíng list)

o Job Reentry to begin in October: 2 enrolled (0 paid)

7



I



Hamilton Unified School District
General Fund - Unrestr¡cted and Restricted

September 2019 Board Report
Asof 9\6ltg

Revenues

LCFF Sources

All Other Federal Revenue

Other State Revenue

Other Local Revenue

Other Financing Sou rces

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Certificated Personnel Salaries

Classified Personnel Salaries

Employee Benefits

Books and Supplies

Travel and Conferences

Dues and Memberships
Other lnsurance

AllOther Utilities
Rents/Leases/Repa irs

Other Operating Expenditures

Capital Outlay
Other Outgo

Total Expenditures

s
ê

s

5

s

s

s

$

5

s

s

s

$

5

s

s

s

s

20t9-2020
Budget

20t9-2020
Year To Date

514,L00

237,790
497

752,377

355,919

L78,498

266,O43

173,424

7,708
2,995

100,695

62,3O4

17,237

103,81L

1,209,635

2018-2019

Budget

$ 7,s4g,zs5

$ z6o,ooz

$ qel,zzq

s 35,500

$ zl,glz
S 9,338,953

$ 3,¿76,900

5 1,146,055

5 t,gg3,ois
5 3tz,gqq

5 140,473

S g,soo

$ 89,8t9

$ 205,500

$ 104,945

s 258,356

$ 236,000

5 668,616

5 8,s42,r43

2018-2019

Year To Date

506,256

5,000

2,469

5L3,725

357,325
183,590

264,879

159,118
g,1.gg

7,016
87,r45
65,839

22,276

toz,t79
26,865

7,980,647

254,86!
195,102

69,940

8,500,450

3,452,793

t,tg3,2t3
1,985,569

498,893

I20,297

9,500

89,819

205,500

77,299
293,981

808,946

9,735,699

s

s

5

s

$

s
s
s

$

s

$

s

s

s

$

S

s

$

s

s

$

s

5

s

s

s

s

s

$

$

$

s

s

s

s

$

s

$

Net lncrease {Decrease} in Fund

Beg. Fund Bal. (based on 2018-L9 estimated actuals) 5 1,218,093

$ t,zg4,42t

$ (23s,2491 $ (4s6,258) 5 (zo3,r9o) $ (770,6961

\o

Projected End. Fund Bal $ 98z,gq+



10



HUSD Superintendent Report

Board Meeting on September 25,2Ot9

Jeremy Powell, Ed. D.

Moving from August to September, the school year has found a nice rhythm and routine. Our
Professional Development Day on Monday, September 23 was attended by all HUSD Staff
members and included a morning session hosted by Kacie Sanders from GCOE focusing on
Trauma lnformed Support for ALL students. We then broke into job-specific sessions with the
Certificated (teachers)working with Kathy, Maggie, and Raquel on providing qualityteaching
strategies while the Classified Staff broke into job specific workshops that included our
Paraprofessionals continuing the Trauma informed work with Kacie, our Maintenance team
attending a workshop presented by Alan and Derek focusing on our online ticketing program;
our Administrative Assistant and Office Assistant team workshopped with Kristen focusing on
district-wide procedures; and our Nutrition Services team attended a workshop hosted by Sean

reflecting on the many changes and continuing to improve service to our students. The
afternoon sessions built on the morning work with our Certificated staff going to their school
sites and working with their Administrative team while the Classified staff continued their
departmental work.

District Highlights for August & September:

L. Our Back-to-School Nights were very well attended throughout the district. Parents
were able to meet with their children's teachers, learn about the different programs

we offer, and become actively engaged in the HUSD community.

2. We had a team (Kathy, Maggie, and Raquel) attend a training at Stanford University,
hosted by Jo Boaler, focusing on supporting a Mathematical Mindset for our
students. There was great excitement about how this shift in mindset will support
all of our students throughout HUSD!

3. We have conducted a series of meetings with community representatives (Jose

Puga-community member, Jose Puente-HC General Manager, Alan, and myself)
regarding the Sacramento Community Park and how, together, we can work to
improve on the current condition of the facility. We have additional meetings
scheduled and we are excited about what the future may hold for the Hamilton City
Community!

4. On Wednesday, September 18, we held our first Hamilton Unifíed Leadership
Committee (HULC) meeting. lt was well attended and will become a powerful
platform to address district-wide issues in the coming months.

5. Our Annual Sports Boosters Golf Tournament was held on September 22. lt is an

amazing event that helps to support all of our wonderful student-athletes--Thank
you allwho attended.

l1



HUSD Superintendent Report

Board Meeting on September 25, 2019

Jeremy Powell, Ed. D.

On a personal note, I was elected to the Small School District Executive Board of Directors as

the Representative for the Mid-North State Region. I am excited to serve our region and be a
voice at the state level for Hamilton City and the Mid-North State Region.

I ln¡ami na Er¡an*c.l¡É LYglllJ.

6. 9/L9: HHS Minimum Day: ParentÆeacher Conference
7. 9/22:HHSSports Boosters Golf Tournament @ Rolling Hills
8. 9/23: No School-Staff ln-Service Day

9. 9/25: HUSD Board Meeting
LA" **tù/g: Special Board Meeting-Re: Unauditecl Actuals
L1-. tQ/9: Free Communltr¡ Publlc Health/flu Shot Clinic
L2. \O/LL: End of lst Quarter
L3.10/L6: l-IULC Meeting at 3:30 in the Elementary Conference Room
1L 1^l)2- lJl lqfì Fln¡rr{ f\f aafinaL-. Lvt r'.vvr¡. ¡ö

T2



räz,m;
BUTTE.GLENN COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

3536 Butte Campus Drive, Oroville, CA 95965

COLLEGE AND CAREER ACCESS PATHWAYS
PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

APPENDIX

WHEREAS, the College and Career Access Pathways Partnership Agreement ("CCAP Agreement) is between Butte-
Glenn Community College District f'College) and Hamilton Unified School District f'School DistrictJ; and

WHEREAS, the College and the School District agree to record College and School District specific components of the
CCAP Agreement using the CCAP Agreement Appendix to speciff additional detail regarding, but not limited to: the total
number of high school students to be served; the total number of full-time equivalent students projected to be claimed by
the College for those students; the scope, nature, time, location and listing of community college courses to be offered;
and the criteria to assess the ability of pupils to benefit from those courses. (Ed. Code, g 76004, subd. (c)(1))

NOW THEREFORE; the College and School District agree as follows:

1. CCAPAGREEMENT

1.1. The College and School District entered into this CCAP Agreement on July 1, 2018, pursuant to action of the
governing boards of the College and School District.

1.1.1. COLLEGE BOARD MEET]NGS

Information Board Meetinq Date: Aoreement: 4lITlLg Appendix: glttltg
Public Comment and Approval Board Meetinq Date: Aoreement: 5/16l18 Aooendix: LOlt6lL9

1,1.1. SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD MEETINGS

2. POINTSOFCONTACT

2.L. College and School District points of contact for this CCAP Agreement: (Ed. Code, $ 76004 (cXZ))

COLLEGE
Name Tanna Neilsen Ttle: Administrative Secretary
Telephone: (s30)879-6108 Email: neilsenta@butte.edu

SCHOOL DISTRICT

Information Board Meetinq Date: Aqreement: 5l22lIB Appendix: 9/25/19

Public Comment and Aooroval Board Meetino Date Aoreement: 6120ltg Annpndiv: lOD?119

Name: Jolene Towne Title: Executive Assistant
Telephone 826-326L x6004 Email itowne@husdschools.org

3. STUDENTSETECTION

3.1. College and School District shall adhere to the terms outlined in Section 3, Student Eligibility, Admission,
Registration and Enrollment of the CCAP Agreement to select eligible students.

BGCCD-CCAP PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT APPENDIX (Rev. 03/18) Page 1

r3



4. CCAP AGREEMENT EDUCATION PROGRAM(S) AND COURSE(S). The College has identified the following:
program year; educational program(s) and course(s) to be offered at the said date, time and location; term; number
of sections; the total number of students to be served and projected FTES; and the instructor and employer of
record.

PROGRAM YEAR: 20],*20 EDUCATONAL PROGRAM:

SCHOOL DISTRICT: Hamilton Unified School District HIGH SCHOOL: Hamilton Hiqh School

TOTAL PROJECTED T{UT{BER OF STUDENTS
TOBESERVED: 45

TOTAL PROJECTED FTES:
4

Required: Attach the course description for each course listed above. Each course description should include
information regarding the nature and scope of the course.

Required: Describe the criteria used to assess the ability of pupils to benefit from the courses(s) offered: (Ed. Code, $
1Á^fll /^\/l \\/ vvvT \L/r\arr,,

SCHOOL DISTRICT counselors and pathway instructors select students based on academic readiness and alignment of
course content to students'education and career goals.

BOOKS Al{D INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS. The total cost of books and instructional materials for School
District students participat¡ng as part of this CCAP agreement will be borne by School District.

COURSE NAME THff COST
OTHER INSTRUCTÏONAL

MATERTALS
COST

N/A

6. REIMBURSEMENT.

6.1. Use of School District Instructor. For those courses in which a School District instructor is responsible for the
instructional services for a course offered as part of this CCAP AgreemenÇ the College will reimburse the
School District $400.00 per section,

6.2. Invoicing Procedures. Within 30 days after the end of each academic term, the School District shall provide

an invoice to the College for reimbursement implied in this CCAP Agreement Appendix. The invoice must
specify the course name, course number, term, instructor and the number of students serued.

5

TERM
#oF

SECTÏONS
TIME

DAYS/
HOURS

INSTRUCÏOR
EMPLOYER

OF
RECORD

LOCATIONCOTJRSE NAME
COURSE
NUMBER

M-W-altF I Lohse _l cç
Xns

Llcc
mHaIntro to Animai Science AGS40 I-¡lIY I 8¡10-

9:29

T TL .I}E 1 I ^L-^J LVI TJç
LJ LL
X r¡s

LI LL
Xns

F_. -:..-__-_.!-llilLf u Lu trf lvtrof ilftef tLdr

Hofticulture LII¿U F.a.]9 1
9:4*
11:03

J Lohse ncc
ñ r¡s

[J cc
7 ¡ts

Intro to Agriculture
Business AB 26 SP19 1

t2:28-
L:47

f-Th-altF

L4

BGCCD-CCAP PARTN ERSHIP AGREEM ENT APPEN DIX ( RCV. 03/ 18) Page 2



7. FACILITIES USE.

7.L. College and School District shall adhere to the terms outlined in Section 13, Facilities, of thís CCAP

Agreement.

7 .2. School District as paft of Section 13.1 of this CCAP Agreement, shall extend access and use of the following
School District facilities:

13 T- L2:28- t:47

8.1. The College and School District shall ensure that the governing board of each district, at an open public
meeting of that board, present this Appendix as an information item. The College and School District shall
ensure that the governing board of each district, at a subsequent open public meeting of that board, shall
take comments from the public and approve or disapprove this Appendix. (Ed. Code, $ 76004, subd. (b))

8.2. Upon approval of this Appendix by the governing boards of both the College and School Dístrict, the College
will provide a copy of this Appendix to the Chancellort Office of the California Community Colleges prior to
the start ofthe course. (Ed. Code, 976004, subd. (c)(3))

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to the CCAP Agreement have executed this CCAP Agreement Appendix by their duly
authorized representatives on the dates of their signatures.

BUTTE.GLENN COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

HHS

8. APPENDIXAPPROVAL

(Signature of person authorized to execute Appendix on behalf of
College.)

Name:

(S¡gnature of person authorized to execute Appendix on behalf of School
District.)

Name:

ïtle
Date:

T*lo.

BUILDING CLASSROOM DAYS HOURS
HHS 13 M-W-altF 8:10 - 9:29
HHS 13 T-Th-altF 9:44 - 11:03

TO BE COMPLETED BY COLLEGE OT{LY
The person preparing this contract rnust complete this section and obtaÍn appropriate initials before contract will be approved.

Initiatinq Department: VPi Prepare/s Name & ID: TANNA NEILSEN 3180821 Phone: 6108

Vendor Name: HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Vendor ID:
PO Description (Max. 25 characterc): DUAL ENROLLMENT

Budget Code 12.205. 1 i0.1.601010.55890 PO Amount:

Contract Monitor Name (Person Who Approves Invoices): TANNA NEILSEN Phone: 6108

Dept. DeanlDirector Initials: Dept. Vice President Initials

Business Contracts Approval : Purchase Order Number:

BGCCD-CCAP PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT APPENDIX (Rev. 03/18) Page 3

15



BUTTE COLLEGE
COURSE OUTLINE

I. CATAI OGDNSCRTPTION

AGS 40 - Introductlon to Anlmal Science

Prerequisite(s): NONE
Reco¡nmended Prep: Reading Level III; English Level III; Math Level II
Transfer Status : CSUr'IJC
34 hours Lecture
51 hours Lab

3 Unit(s)

Tiris course is a scientific approach io the iivestock industry encompassing aspects of animal anatomy,

-h.'oialnm¡ n,¡l'rifinn cenafí¡c an¡{ eni¿lminlnw Therc rvill he sneciql cmnhasis nn the nrioin
r¿-j e^¿r¿6j , s*eÀ^eÀv^-r *-- vu^-é'r¡¡¡-v

characteristics, adaptation and contributions of farm animals to the giobal agriculture industry.
Analysis of the economic trends and caxeer opporhrnities in animal agriculture will be covered.

.{r-GBJElgfrvÆs -

Upon successfül conrpleiion of this course, ihe sti¡dent will be able to:
A l<lenfifu a¡imal cnntrihutions to the develoñment cf lrr:man civilizations.
B. Describe economically significant breeds of animals and theirunique adaptations.

C- Describe the function of the major body systems.
D. Identiff reproductive cycles and biotechnological principles of animal reproduction.
E. Analyze genetic change through artiäciaVnatur¿l seiection.
F. Discuss nuhitional needs for various body functions.
G. Describe animal behavior as it relates to animal domestication, health and performance.
H. Explain basic strategies for disease control, prevention and management.
I. Utilize the scientific method to collect data, calculate production parameters and make

scientifically-based management decisions.
f f a ,,L:L- -,-t t:,----- :------ 

-4^-¿:-- --:-^t ^i^--l!---J- rgttlrLr*y aüu utltut¡J¡t çtlrrç[L rùùuçù 4rlsvuuË 4urur4r 4Ë,rrvurLKg¿

ilI. COURSE CONTET{T
A. Unit Titles/Suggested TÍme Schedule

Lecture

Topics

1- Introduction to animal agriculture
a. Career opporhmities
b. Importance of domestic animals to the world and to the United States

c. Economic importance of animal agriculture
d. Animal contibutions to human needs
e. Ethnic and cultural contributions to animal domestication

2. Unique adaptations of various species
a. Natural selection vs artificial selection
b. Meat animal use and production
c. Fiber production
d. Dairyproduction
e. Recreational and companionship use of animals

3. Anatomy and physiology
a. Identification of extemal anatomy for various species

b. Analysis of body systems - reproductive, respiratory, digestive, immune,
circulatory

Hours

4.00

4.00

3.00

16



4. Animal reproduction
a. Animal breeding systems
b. Reproductive management and technology
c. Fertility assessment

5. Genetics
a. Inüoduction and review of genetic principles
b. Gene modification and genetic interactions
c. Genetic improvement and variation
d. Inheritance and population genetics

6. Nutrition
a. Classes of nutrients
b. Feed identification ¿nd ssmposition
c. Livestock feeding management practices

7. Animal behavior (ethology)
a. Behavioral characteristics
b. Animal handling and safety
c. Conditioning

8. Animal health
a. Biosecurity
b. Vitål Signs
c. Indications ofhealth vs disease
d. Common diseases

9. The scientific method
a. Research in animal agriculture
b. Developing a research model
c. Humane ffeatment of research animals

10. Issues affecting animal agriculture
a. Animal welfare issues
b. Advances in biotechnology
c. Governmental and environmental concems
d. Food safety
e. Public policy and consumer awÍtreness

Tot¿l Hours

Lab
Topics

1. Beef and Dairy
2. Sheep and Swine

3. Meats lab, safety and processes

4. Grocery store - meat, cheese, butter, ice cream

5. Purebred Beef - Expected Progeny Differences (EPD)

6. Commerical cattle operation - weaning, castration

7. Dairy farm - production cycle

8. Milk processing - cheese plant

9. Sheep - lambing and handling

10. Purebred Sheep - production cyle

11. Swine - vaccination, selection, management

12. Poultry - quality of carcasses and eggs

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

5.00

34.00

Hours

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

L7



13. Horse - production cycle

14- Selection workshop

15. Biotechnology and environmental workshop

16- North Valley Livestock Tour

Total Hor¡rs

3.00

3.00

3.00

6.00

5 r.00

It'. MTTHODS OF I¡¡ISTRUCTION
A. Lecture
B. Class Activities
^ 

tf^-^--,^-1,. (ifr,J^-+^ ^- -^^,.:-^J +^ ^^ -l^+^ h.,^ L^,,-- ^+'^,,1-:l^ ^â ^l^-- L^*-'.'^-L Ê^- ^-^Lv. llvlt¡9wvtN. plguvuw 4tv rvr{uuvu gv vvurl/rvaw Lwv uvwù vr vBÞluv-vr-vl6ù ¡¡vl¡¡vwulÀ rur w4vf¡

hour of lecture
Ð. Discussiort
E. Problem-Solving Sessions

uW
A. ExamsÆests
B. Class participation
C.'Written Examinations
D. Practical Evaluations
E. Mid-term and final examinations

VI. EXAMPLES OT' ASSIGNMENTS
A. Reading Assignments

1. Rcad the chapter on genetic change through selection andbe prepared to share your
findings with the class.

2. Read ihe chapier on markei ciasses and gra<ies of iivestock an<Í be abie io cüscuss in a
group setting the evaluative criteria for each srade of beef. pork and lamb.

B. Writing Assignments
1. Read the chapter on animai behavior and an<i write a2-3 page paper on the fields of

animal behavior and systems of animal behavior.
2. Read an article from a trade magazine on the issues in animal agriculture and write 2 page

paper on animal welfare.
C. Out-oÊClass Assignments

1. Visit any livestock operation in the local area and be prepared to share with the class, the

breeds, total numbers and management practices utilized at the operation.
2. Use the Internet to check current pricing on the major market animals as well as breeding

stock for swine, sheep, beef and dalry cattle. This information will be shared with the
class.

VII. RECOMMENDED MATERIALS OF INSTRUCTION
Textbooks:

A. Taylor, R. Scientific Farm Animal Production. 10th Edition. Prentice Hall,20l2.

Materials Other Than Textbooks:
4.. Materials: 3 ring notebook, proper clothing for labs

Created/Revised by: Bruce Hicks
Dztez 10/2012014

18



BUTTE COLLEGE
COURSE OUTLINE

I. CATALOG DESCRIPTION
AB26 - Introduction to Agriculture Business

Prerequisite(s): NONE
Recommended Prep: Reading Level IV; English Level III; Math Level II
Transfer Status: CSU
5l hours Lecture

3 Unit(s)

This course provides students with a basic understanding of the business and economics of the
agricultural industry; an introduction to the economic aspects of agriculture and their implications to
the agricultural producerz consumer and the food system; management principles encountered in the
day to day operation of an agricultural enterprise as they relate to the decision making process. (C-ID
AG-AB 104).

II. OBJECTIVES
Upon successful completion of this course, the student will be able to:

A. Explain how economic principles relate to commodity marketing sub sectors in agriculture.
B. Recognize and describe agricultural business organizational structures including; sole

proprietorships, partnerships, corporations, franchises, and cooperatives.Identify and explain
the four functions of management and how they relate to the agribusiness organization-

C. Develop an awareness of the basic laws, regulations, and regulatory agencies that interact with
the agriculture communþ.

D. Describe various styles of leadership.
E. Identify the role of the agricultural manager.
F. Recognize, evaluate, and propose solutions to problems in personnel, ethics and communication.

ilI. COURSE CONTENT
A. Unit Titles/Suggested Time Schedule

ecture

I oplcs

1. The role and organization ofthe agribusiness
a. The place of agribusiness in California, United States, and the global
economy
b. Types of agribusiness
c. The organization of an agribusiness
d. Types of business structure
e. Managing the agribusiness

2. Management
a. Planning
b. Leading
c. Organizing
d. Controlling

3. Managerial Problem Solving in Agriculture
a. Diagnosis of the situation
b. Generating alternative
c. Evaluating altematives
d. Selecting the best alternative
e. Implementing the alternative

Hours

8.50

8.50

8.50

19



f. Evaluation of results

4. Financial Management and Control of Agribusiness
a. General business economics
b. Overview of financial statements

5. Human Resource Management
a. The role ofthe agriculture manager
b. Agriculture employee motivation
c. Team and team building
d. Labor relations

6. Business Land and Ethics in Agriculture
a- Agricultr-rre vah:es
b. agriculture business ethnics
u. Persrrnai valucs
d. Agricultural Law and the regulatory environment

Totai Hours

8.50

8.50

8.50

51,0û

IV. METHODS OF INSTRUCTION
A. Lecture
B. Group Discussions
C. Flomework: Students are required to complete two hours of outsirie-of-ciass homework for each

hour of lecture
D. Reading Assignments
E. Case Studies

V. METHODS OF EVALUATION
A. Quizzes
B. Oral Presentation
C. Projects
D. Homework
E. Short papers
F. Essays and research papers

G. Business Plan

VI. EXAMPLES OF ASSIGNMENTS
A. Reading Assignments

1. Read and interpret an article pertaining to current events in agriculture, posted on the class
portal. Be prepared to discuss the issues and take a pro/con position.

2. Read the case study in your text dealing with "Going Broke While Making a Profit".
Identify how this happened and how it could have been avoided.

B. Writing Assignments
1. Write a7-10 page Business Plan for an agricultural endeavor ofyour choice. The Business

Plan should include a description of the business, a marketing plan, and financial
statemenis"

2. V/rite a two-three research page paper covering the management style of the Simplot
Corporation. Identiff the companies approach to hiring, advancement, and outlook on the
future.

C. Out-oÊClass Assignments
1. Locate two examples of advertising for an agricultural commodity. One should be

commodþ based and the other product specific. Be prepared to discuss in class.

2. lnterview an individual currently working in yourproposed field of employment. Write a

20



two page paper discussing the nature of the work, the best and worst parts of the job, and
the employment outlook. Be prepared to discuss in class.

VII. RECOMME¡IDED MATERIALS OF INSTRUCTION
Textbooks:

A. Beierlein, J. Principles of Agribusiness Management. 5th Edition. Waveland, 2013
B. Barnard, F. Agibusines.s Management.4th Edition. Routledge, 2012.

Created/Revised by: Bruce Hicks
I)ate: 09/29/2014

2T



BUTTE COLLEGE
COURSE OUTLINE

I. CATALOG DESCRIPTION
EH 20 - Introduction to Environmental llorticulture
Prerequisite(s): NONE
Recommended Prep: Reading Level III; English Level II; Math Level II
Transfer Status: CSU
34 hours Lecture
51 hows Lab

3 Unit(s)

This course is an introduction to environmental horticulture including nursery operations, landscaping,

turf management and arboriculture. Topics include basic botany, cultural practices, propagation,

structures and layou! pest management, planting, transplanting, container gardening, houseplants,

plant identification, turfgrass installation and care, and a broad survey of the'Green Industry' and other
career oppornrnities.

!Y 
^ñ!TñFF'Tõrr. VÐ:!-&!¿-LUÍ!.&ñL
Upon successfirl completion of this course, the student will be able to:

A. identiff various horticuiiurai occupations and their employment requirements.
B. Identiff aud safely use common tools and equipment.
C. List and describe the major structures of plants and their functions.
D. Forrrulate potting mixes and container media.
E. Propagate plants by sexual and asexual methods.

F. Explain the requirements of plant growth including watering needs, fertilizers reqrrirements and

pest confol.
G. Identiff the various types of horticulturai structures rncludrng shacie structures, greenhouses, and

^^1,{ +^*-.wv¡g ugluwo.

H. Describe the basic operations of various environmental horficulture businesses.

I. Plant and care for horticultural crops.

III. COURSE CONTENT
A. Unít Titles/Suggested Time Schedule

Lecture

Topics

1. The 'Green Industry' in Butte County and Around the World

2. Environmental Issues and Regulations

3. Horticultural Occupations and Their Employment Requirements

4. Tools, Equipment and Safety Practices

5. Plant Structures and Functions

6. Soils and Container Media

7. Plant Propagation

8. Requirements of Plant Growth

9. Irrigation and Fertilization

10. Pest and Disease Damage ldentification

1 1. Horticultural Structures

12. Environmental Horticulture Businesses

Hours

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

22



13. Nursery and Greenhouse Crops - Planting and Care

14. Plants in the Landscape - Care and Pruning

15. Plant Identification and Nomenclature

16. Common Turf and Landscape Practices

17. Agriculture and Horticulture Policy concems

Total Hours

Lab
Topics

1. The 'Green Industry' in Butte County and Around the World
2. Tools, Equipment and Safety Practices

3. Plant Structrrres and Functions

4. Soils and Container Media

5. Plant Propagation

6. Requirements of Plant Growth

7. Irrigation and Fertilization

8. Pest and Disease Damage Identification

9. HorticulturalStructures

10. Nursery and Greenhouse Crops - Planting and Care

11. Plants in the Landscape - Care and Pruning

12. Plant Identification and Nomenclature

13. Common Turf and Landscape Practices

14. Vineyard and Orchard Pruning Practices

Total Hours

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

34.00

Hours

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

6.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

6.00

6.00

3.00

3.00

3.00

51.00

IV. METHODS OF INSTRUCTION
A. Lecture
B. Class Activities
C. Field Trips
D. Homework: Students are required to complete two hours of outside-oÊclass homework for each

hour oflecture
E. Discussion
F. Demonstrations
G. Reading Assignments
H. Multimedia Presentations
I. Laboratory Experiments

V. METHODS OF EVALUATION
A. Exams/Tests
B. Quizzes
C. Oral Presentation
D. Demonstration
E. Homework
F. Class participation
G. Lab Projects

23



VI. EXAMPLES OF ASSIGIYMENTS
A. Reading Assignments

1. Read the UC-IPM website covering one of each type of plant disorder and be ready to
give an oral report to the class on proper care for the affected plant.

2. Read the text chapter on diagnosing plant disorders and complete the corresponding
homework assignment. Be prepared t'or class discussion on the following:
a. Plant disorders caused by cultural practices.
b. Plant disorders caused by insect damages.

c. Plant disorders caused by diseases.

B. Writing Assignments
l. Write a t\ryo page essay on a plant of your choice. Give your reasons for choosing this

piant, its iristory oiassociation with humans an<i its fuiure uses and vaiue to mankind.

2.W*e a two page essay on current employment trends for Horticulturists. Give regionai
data for trends and salary ranges.

C. Out-of-Class Assignments
1 . Visit a locat business that is in the omamental horticulture category and be prepared to

give pn orã'i fepórt To the class.
2. Visit a local or regional business in the agriculraral or viticultural areas cf hcrticulture anC

be prepared to give an oral report to your class.

VII. RECOMMENDED MATERIALS OF INSTRUCTION
Textbooks:

A. Laura Williams Rice & Robert P. Rice. Practical Horticulture. 7th Edition. Prentice-Hall ,20t1-

Materials Other Than Textbooks:
A I f,-r,,-:-1-- L7--^^ -:--L:-Ã^- -^^1-^L r*:f^ --.-:-- ^L^^-^ .-'^+^-L^+l^ ^1^.'^- -1.^,t^ È.oi- o¡rl

.ê\. lvlatgllals: lluçtt lluË u[rLrçr, PUç¡!çl .ttl.tllr¡', Plt ¡r¡rrË ùnç(r1ù, wc¿rçl uulLrvr ërvvvù, ùuøuw ua! ouu

boots- Warm clothins- when necessarv.

CreatedlRevÍsed by: Jared Wilmarth
Date:0212312015

24



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET
July 2019

For IIUSD Board Meeting September 25,2019
Page 1 of 2

Note: Descriptions below identifu revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations,
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial sþanges have also been made. Districts and county offices of education
should review the sample materials and modifu their own policies accordingly.

BP/AR 4218.1 - DismissaVSuspensÍon/I)isciplinary Action (Merit System)
(BP/AR added)

New policy and regulation address requirements for disciplinary proceedings for classified employees in
merit system districts. BP/AR contain material formerly in AR 4218 - DismissaUSuspension/Disciplinary
Action, and new material consistent with BP/AR 421 8 and BP/AR 4l I 8 - DismissaVSuspensionlDisciplinary
Action for certificated employees. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 2234,2018) which requires the
personnel commission to delegate its authority to an administrative law judge in cases involving allegations
of egregious misconduct with a minor.

BP 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention
(BP revised)

Policy updated to make minor revision reflecting current law pertaining to the requirement to provide
remedial instruction to students who are recommended for retention or aro identifred as being at risk for
retention.

BP/AR 5136 - Gangs
(BP/AR revised)

Policy and regulation updated to expand material related to supports and services for students identified as
gang members and reflect best practices for gang prevention, intervention, and suppression described in
NEIV RESOURCE f¡om the National Gang Center and in publication from the Los Angeles Police
Department.

BP/AR 6142.2 - World Language Instruction
(BP/AR revised)

Policy and regulation retitled to be consistent with terminology used in the Education Code pursuant to NEW
LAW (AB 2319,2018). Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW STATE CONTENT STAIIDARDS
for world language instruction adopted by the State Board of Education in January 2019. Policy also reflects
University of Califomia guidance stating that American Sign Language courses may be used to satisff world
language coursework requirements for college admission, and reflects state regulations which require
diskicts to establish a process for receiving and responding to input from parents/guardians and other
stakeholders regarding the world language in which instruction will be provided in any program sufficient to
produce proficiency in a world language. Regulation also reflects state regulation requiring districts to
establish a process for receiving and responding to parenlguardian requests to establish ¿ language
acquisition program not currently offered at the school.

AR 6145.2 - Athletic Competition
(AR revised)

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1109, 2018) which requires districts to annually provide
student athletes and their parents/guardians an opioid fact sheet produced by the Centers for Disease Conkol
and Prevention.

25



BP/AR 6145.6 : International Exchange
(BP/ARrevised)

Policy updated to clarifr the scope of the polic¡ separate material pertåining to district students studying in
another country and material pertaining to international exchange students studying in disûict schools, and

refiect CSBA Legal Guidance. Policy also addresses sfudent eligibility, information to obt¿in from the

placement org anizatìon, and methods that may be used to calculate the total cost of etlucating an international
student for the purpose of determining tuition. Regulation reflects the requirement to provide the placement

organization with written acceptance of a studeñt's enrollment, clarifies tåat a student's enrollment may be

for one semester or one year, and adds optional language regarding *.he prcvision of a school transcipt.

26



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Students BP 5123(a)

PROMOTION/ACCELERATION/RETENTION

Note: Education Code 48070 and 48070.5 mandate that the Governing Board adopt a policy, at a public meeting,
regarding the promotion and retention of students, including, but not limited to, promotion and retention at

levels and with

The Governing Board expects students to progress through each grade level within one school
yeat. Toward this end, instruction shall be designed to accommodate the variety of ways that
students learn and provide strategies for addressing acadonic deficiencies as needed.

Students shall progress through the grade levels by dunonstrating growth in learning and meeting
grade-level standards of expected student achievement.

(cf. 6011 - Acødemic Standards)

kf. 6la6.I - High School Grqduqtion Requírements)
(cf. 6146.5 - Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements)
(cf. 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten)

When high academic achievement is evident, the teacher may recommend a student for
acceleration to a higher grade level. The student's maturity level shall be taken into consideration
in making a determination to accelerate a student.

Note: Education Code 480'70.5 mandates that the Board's policy provide for the identification of students who
should be retained and who are at risk ofbeing retained at the end of grades2,3,4, the intermediate grades (usually
grade 6), and the middle school grades (usually grade 8). Items #1-5 below should be revised to reflect the grade
levels offered by the district. If the Board chooses to expand these requirements to cover other grade levels, the
following list should be revised accordingly.

Education Code 48070.5 further mandates that the Board's policy provide for students to be identified as early in
the school and as ear in their school AS

Teachers shall identify students who should be retained or who are atrisk of being retained at their
current grade level as early as possible in the school year and as early in their school careerc as
practicable. Such students shall be identified at the following grade levels: (Education Code
48070.5)

Between grades 2 and3

Between grades 3 and 4

Between grades 4 and 5

1

2

aJ

27



'l-

BP 5123(b)

PROMOTION/ACCELERATION/RETENTION (continued)

Note: If all the schools in the district are configured in the same marìner, the district may speci$ the actual gratle

levels in items #4 and 5 below between 6 and7, between 8 and 9).

J

f)^!--^^- t1^^ ^^) ^f +L^ l-t^*^Å2-+^ 
-^Å^^ ^^Ã +L^ L^.-:-..:-- ^f +L^ ^:,7,X1^ -^L^^1 *^Ã^-DÙLwLÙ1l Lrlv UtrU vr rrlv trl!ürlu!\ir(¿Lv él,4uvù 4¡r\l tlrv uvÈirrriru¡é vt urv llrr\¡\tlw ùvlruv¡ ó¡(¡t¡vð

Between the end of the middle schaoi grades and the beginning of the high schcol grades

Note: h,ciucation Cocie 48070.5 mandates that the ciistrict's poiicy estabiish the basis for identifuing stucients who
shouii-i be retained and who are at risk of beirig reiairie,J. if a s-niderit perfor-,¡is 'oelow- ihe ä-ii¡-iiä-¡un-¡ standard based

on indicators established by the district, the student shall be retained, unless tåe teacher deterrnines that retention
is not the appropriate intervention for the student's academic deficiencies; see the ascompanying administrative
regulation.

Pursuant to Education Code 48070.5, the district may use either of the following: (1) the studenfs grades and other
indicators of academic achievement designated by the district (Option 1 below) or (2) the results of state

assessments administered pursuant to Education Code 60640-60649 and minimum levels of proficiency
recommended by the State Board of Education (SBE) (Option 2 below). With regards to speeialedueaden students
with special needs, the detormination as to the appropriate standards for promotion or retention should be made
ôo ñô# ^f +L- ftD iñ,lirri,fnrlirôÂ o¡lrrnofinn aêê E¡Þ/^P Á1<O - Tn¡{ir¡ir{rrolizpã F¡lrrccTinn

Prograrn.

Education Code 48070.5 provides that, when a district chooses to identiff students on the basis ofgradcs pursuant
to Option l, the Board shall also designate other indicators of academic achievement that will be used. These other
indicators of achievement (e.g., state or district assessments, portfolios, attendance) should be specified in the

bianks provided below.

OPTION 1: Students shali be identified for retention on the basis of failure to meet minimum
levels of proficiency, as indicated by grades and the following additional indicators of academic
achievement:

(cf 5 I 2 I - Grqdes/Evaluation of Student Achievement)

Note: According to the California Department of Education's (CDE) "FAQs Pupil Promotion and Retention,"
student results from the California Assessmçnt of Studcnt Pcrformance and Progress may be included as indicators
of academic achievement for the purpose of identifying students for promotion or retention as provided in Option 2

below, but should not be the only criterion until minimum performance levels for this purpose have been established

by CDE. Othçr indicators of achievement (e.g., grades, district assessments, portfolios, attendance) should be

in the blanks below

28



BP s123(c)

PROMOTION/ACCELERATION/RETENTION (continued)

f -mpTION 2: Students shall be identified for retention on the basis of failure to meet minimum
levels of proficiency, as indicated by the results of state assessments administered pursuant to
Education Code 60640-60649 and the following additional indicators of academic achievement:

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)
(cf, 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

Note: Thc remainder of this policy is for use by all districts.

Students between grades 2 and 3 and grades 3 and 4 shall be identified primarily on the basis of
their level of proficiency in reading. Proficiency in reading, English language arts, and
mathematics shall be the basis for identifying students between grades 4 and 5, between
intermediate and middle school grades, and between middle school grades and high school grades.
(Education Code 48070.5)

(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction)
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathemøtics Instruction)

Note: Education Code 48070.5 mandates that the district's policy specifu the teacher(s) responsible for the
promotion/retention decision in cases where the student does not have a single regular classroom teacher. The
following paragraph should be revised to indicate the specific teacher(s) who will be responsible (e.9., teachers
responsible for core subjects).

Ifa student does not have a single regular classroom teacher, the Superintendent or designee shall
specify the teacher(s) responsible for the decision to promote or retain the student. (Education
Code 480705)

Note: Education Code 48070.5 mandates that the district's policy include a process by which the teacher's decision
to promote or retain a sfudent may be appealed; see the accompanying administrative regulation.

The teacher's decision to promote or retain a student may be appealed in accordance with AR 5 123
- Promotion/Acceleration/Retention.

Note:
tave Ueen retaine¿ er ree
te previde supplemental iastreetien te students iÊ grad€s 2 6 wb€ hae been identified as at risk eÊ retentien'
Pwsuant to Education Code 48070.5, the Board must adopt policy indicating the manner in which supplemental

29



instruction fer-tåesepuryeses will be provided to students who are recommended for retention or are identified
as at risk for retention. See BP 6179 - Instruction for this mandate

BP s123(d)

PROMOTIONiACCELERATIONTRETENTION (continued)

When any student in grades 2-9 is retafuredorrecommended for retention or is identified as being at risk
for retentlon, the S':pe.rintendent or designee shall offer an appropna"te progüm of re.medial i¡s1¡¡çJion to
assist the student in meeting grade-level expectations.

ie*(Education
C o de W22,4Æ51& 4 8 0 70. 5 )

(c¡ 6i76 - -lí¡eekendiSaturday Cíasses)
(cf 6177 - Summer Leørning Programs)
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATIONCODE

46300 Method of computing averøge daily attendønce
4öUrU AAmlûAnCe rO Jirrsr graae
480 1 I Promotion/retention þ llowing one year of kindergarten
48070-48070. 5 Promotion and retention
56345 Elements of individualized educqtionplaæ progrøn
60640-60649 Californíø Assessment of Student Performance ønd Progress
CODE OF REGULATIONS. TITLE 5
200-202 Admission and exclusion of students

Management Resources:
C AL I F O RNIA D E PARTME NT O F E D UCATI O N P UB LICATI O NS
FAQs Promotíon, Retention, and Grading (students with disabilities)
FAQs Pupil Promotion and Retentíon
Kínd er gørt en C o ntínuanc e F orm
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
C al ift r ni a D ep ar tm ent of E duc ation : http : //wvwv. c de. c q. gov

30



(t2/T3 r2/ts) 7/t9

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Students BP 5136(a)

GANGS

Note: The following optional policy and regulation may be used as a component ofa the district's comprehensive
dis+d€+ safety plan and should be revised to reflect district sireirms+arc€s-practice. See BP/AR 0450 -
Comprehensive Safety Plan.

TheNationalGangCenter,initspublicationGg4g@,recommendsadoptingpolicythataddresses
incidents.

The Governing Board desires to keep district schools free from the threats or harmful influence of
any groups-er6angs+*ihieh who exhibit ehavior disruptive to
the school environment and/or the safety and well-being of students. The Board additionally
desires to provide support and intervention to students who are members of gangs to enable
them to successfully disengage from gang involvement and be successful in school. The

ies'

þf 0a50 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf, 3513.4 - Drag and Alcohol Free Schools)
(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbønces)
(cl, 5131.6 - Alcohol ønd Other Drugs)
(cf. 5 I3 I .7 - l4/eapons and Dangerous Instruments)
(cl 5137 - Posítìve School Clímøte)

Nete: Edu€aÉien eode 5

@ieÊ,

disruptive aetivities; and respend

Note: The following paragraph is based on the Los Angeles Police Department's "'\Uhy Young People Join
Gangsr" available on its web site.

31



he Superintendent or designee
shall develop strategies for gang prevention that address the reasons th¿t students may
become involved in gangs, including the identity, recognition, or status achieved as being
part of a gang, protection from gang violence in the communityo the need for companionship
and an extended family, intimidation to join a gang, desire to

BP si36(b)

GANGS (continueci)

foin a gang to be Ín a posítíon to intimÍdate othrrs, and/or connsctÍon with cri¡rrinai actïvity;

Note: The following paragraph reflects recommendations in the National Gang Center's Strategic Planning
Tool and Ganss in Schools, both available on its web site.

elemertary grades ard may start irt kindergarten, Gang violence prevention shall start as earþ
as possitrle and includeo but not be limited too age-appropriate educ¿tÍon that focuse$ on
developing emotional and social competence, increasing prosocial peer bonds, strengthening
-LL-,t,, -,L -,-J --,--,--tL------L -^l--^t ^-^J ^-L^---!--- ----^---¿!-,^ t^^--!-- -lJlf-al[acnmellt aflu cuIItIIlt[IIleIll lu sclruor, allu cltlräIlcürg couper¿uvc rsarlrurg slrruti.
Pfeo-ntion,shall also !te!'¡cl_e impfoVbg parent/ggardiaff lnvglve_,npnt in a_Sd ,sr_r=p_pott for
their ehildren's academic progress, as well as ongoing gang awareness education for
parents/guardianso including gang identifiers.

(cf, 5020 - Parent fnvolvement)
(cf, 616a.2 - Guídance/Counseling Services)

The Superintendent or designee shall take steps to deter gang activity on school campuses,
including threats and intimidation of students and staff, recruitment or intimidation of
students to join gangs, bullyingo fightingo crimin¿l activitieso and confrontations between
members of different gangs.

(cl, 5131.2 - Bullyìnþ

Note: EducatÍon Code 35183 authorizes the Governing Board to approve a site-initiated plan that prohibits
the school's students from wearing gang-related apparel. The definition of "gang-related apparel" must be
limited to apparel that reasonably could be determined to threaten the health and safety of the school
environmento and the Board's approval must be based on a determination the policy is necessary for the
health and safety of the school environment. In Marvin H. Jeelin et al v. San Jacinto UnÍfied School District
et aL a federal district court held that in order to justify a gang-related dress code, there must be evidence
of a gang presence at a school and actual or threatened dÍsruption or material interference with school
activify. Education Code 32282 specifies that for the purpose of establishing a schoolwide dress code, gang-
related apparel shall not be considered a protected form of speech pursuant to Education Code 48950. For
further see BP/AR 5132 - Dress and

32



(

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that
school rules of conduct and any school dress code prohibiting gang-related apparel are enforced
consistently. If a student exhibits signs of gang affiliation, staff shall so inform the principal or
designee and the student's parent/guardian.

(cf, 5132 - Dress and Grooming)

BP 5136(c)

GANGS (continued)

Note: Education Code 51265 urges districts to give highpriority to in-service training programs on gang violence
and substance abuse education.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide in-service training which helps staffto identify gangs
and gang symbols, recognize early manifestations of disruptive activities, and respond
appropriately to gang behavior. Staff shall be informed about conflict management techniques
and alerted to intervention measures and community resources. The Superintendent or designee
shall also provÍde staff development on social and emotional learrring classroom
management, interactive teaching and cooperative learning skills.

(cÍ, 4131 - Staff Development)
(cÍ, 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf 4331 - Staff Development)

The Superintendent or designee may consider gang activity prevention and intervention
when developing programs outside of the school day.

(cf. 5148 - Chíld Care ønd Development)
(cÍ, 5148.2 - PreschooVEarly ChìIdhood Educatíon)
(cf, 5148.3 - Beþre/Arter School Programs)
(cÍ, 6145 - Ertracurrículør ønd Cocurrículør Activities)
(cJ, 6145.2 - Athletíc Competitían)

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with child welfare services, mental health
agencies, social services, and local law enforcement authorities in the prevention and
intervention of gang activity.

(cf, 1400 - Relatíons Between Other Governmental Agencíes ønd the Schools)

Legal Reference: (see next page)

33



BP 5ir6(d)

GAN'GS (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATICNCODE
SnAZ S"houl *¡"Çphrt
3 5 1 83 Gang-related apparel
48907 Student exercise offree expression
489 50 Student freedom of speech
5 i264 Etiucationai inservice training; CDE guideiines
51265 Gang violence and drug and alcohol abuse preventton inservice trainíng
51266-51266.5 Model gøng and wbstance abuse prevention curriculum
PENAL CODE
186.22 Participation in criminal street gqng
1 3 826- I 3826.7 Gang violence suppression
UNITED STATES CODE. TITLE 20
7I0l-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

Management Resources:
LOS ANGELES POLICE DEPARTMENT PABLICATIONS
Why Young Peopb foín Gangs
NATIONAL GANG CENTER PABLICATIONS
Stratesíc Plønnine Tool
Ganss ín Schools. March 2019
Pa.rents' Guide to Ga.nss, July 2015
WEB STTES
CøIíþrníø Cítíes Gang Preveatíon Nelwork: http://www.ccpn.arg
Calíþrnia Depørtment of Educatìo n : https ://www.c de.cø. gov/Is/ss/sø

Gøng Resístønce Educølíon ønd Traíníng: https://www,greøt-onlìne. org/GREAT-Eome
Los Angeles Políce Department, Gøngs:
http : //www. I ap d o nl í n e 

" 
o r glge t_í nfo r w e d/c o nte nt-b ø s íc 

-v 
íew/ 1 3 9 6

E omeboy Industríes : https ://homeboyìndustrìes.org
NøtionøI Gang Center: https ://www.nøtíonølgangcenter.gov

34



Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights reserved.

(T0l9s t0/96) 7119

AR 5136(a)

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

Students

GANGS

Note: The adrnìnistrative be rcvised to reflect district

Preventionra*d Interventiono and Suppression Measures

iee.

Districts may consider utilizing the Gang Resistance Education and Training Program (G.R.E.A.T.) for
students in grades 4-7.Taught by local law enforcement, the program is designed to create stronger bonds
with students and their communÍties and has a family component aimed at strengthening the resiliency of
Índividual families to influences.

The Superintendent or designee shall become informed of the gang history in the district and
communify, conduct assessments of current gang activify at the school sites, and document
and follow up on gang-related incidents.

Inordertodiscouragetheinfluenceofgangs,ffithefo1lowingmeasuresshaIl
be implemented:

Any student suspected of gang affïIiation based on the displaying of behavior, gestures,
appare|,orparapherna|ia@shal1bereferredtotheprincipalor
designee, and the following actions taken, as appropriate:=

I

35



The student's parenlguardian shall be contacted and may be asked to meet with
school staff in order to proactively address the concern and be included as part
of the solution.

b. The student may be sent home to change clothes if necessary.

(cf. 5132 - Dress and Grooming)

c" The student?s behaviors and progress in school shall be documcntcdo including
attendance and grades.

k! 5113 -Ahsences ønd Excuses)
(cl, 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)
(cf, 5113.11 - Attendance Sapervìsíon)

ßf, 51f 3.12 - Distríct School Attendance Revíew Boørd)
(cf. 6 164.2 - GaÃanee/€otmsel*E Sewiees)

AR s136(b)

GANGS (continued)

n fnfan¡onfinn fanhnir¡nac srrnl¡ qs rnanfnrino qo¡¡lonri¡. srrnnorf- ¡nrl n svsfem of:a^-_-:---::-èt =:=:::-.: -_-Er1^ :7, -J- ---: .:

wraparound support service shall be implemented to þslF the student
disengage from gang involvement.

Consistent and graduated disciplinc and sccountnbility shdl be implemonted
when appropriat€ and combined with positive support using conflict-
resolut¡on strategies and other restorative justice practices demonstrated to be

effective with gang-involved youth.

S,g*den*s¡*ee-seek Students shall be offered help in rejecting gang associations,

including possible referral mayåerefered to community-based gang suppression

and prevention organizations.

I,aw enforcement shall be notified if the student is suspected of being Ínvolved
in gangs.

(cf 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)

Any gang=graffiti on school premiscs shall bc romoved, weshed downo or painted over as

soon as discovered. Graffiti shall be documented and photographed before it is removed.

a.

e.

f.

g.

36

L''



These photographs shall be shared with local law enforcenìent authorities and used in
future disciplinary or criminal action against the offenders. ThÍs information can also be
used to determine whether a threat or incident is imminent.

b' Graf{iti shall be phetegraplred befere itis.+emeved. Tlrese -hetegraphs shall be

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)
(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Grffiti)

+.3. Classroom and after-school programs may include gang prevention lessons that are
taught jointly by teachers, counselors, law enforcement, and/or other organizations
thatareknowledgeableaboutgangpreventionanda#eaeþseheelsha11:@

AR 5136(c)

GAI\IGS (continued)

a. Provide social and emotional learning designed to enhance individual self-
esteem, provide positive reinforcement for acceptable behavior, and foster interest
in a variety of constructive activities

ab. Explain the dangers of gang monbership

b'c. Provide counseling fortargeted at-risk students

ed. Include lessons or role-playing workshops in gang avoidance skills and nonviolent
conflict resolution, including communication skills, anti-bullyÍng, anger
management, acceptance ffi, and mediation skills

(cÍ, 5131.2 - Bullyínþ

Assign individual gang members to cooperative leaming groups in which they may
work toward coûrmon goals with students who are not members of their gang

e.f. Provideschool-to-careerinstruction

*g: Provide positive interaction with local law enforcement stafF

(cf. 5137 - Posítive School Climate)

åe.

37



#.

þ!. 6la5 - Extrqcurriculør and Cocurriculør Activities)
(cf. 6142.4 - Sertice Leørning/Community Service Classes)
(cJ. 6145.2 - Athletic Competitìon)

Staff shall actively promote membership in authorized school clubs and student
organizatíons, sports and cultural activities and affiliations with the local community, and
community service projects which can provide students companionship, safety, and a sense

of purpose and belonging.;ineluCing:

b, Struefi¡red; god eriented eenrnuni+y serr"ieep-qieets

ParenfGuardian and Community Outreach

Notc:ThcfollowingoptionaIsectionmaybereyisedtoreflectdistrictpractice.iffi
te Brevide gn-g edueaÉie* Bregnms fer parentdguardia$s.er the ee**uÊity,

AR s136(d)

GANGS (continued)

The Superintendent or designee may offer gGang prevention classes or counseling eftred for
parents/guardians whÍch may shall address the following topics:

l. The reasons students join gangs

L2. The dangers and consequences of gang membership

+3. Warning signs which may indicate that€hildren students are atrisk ofbecoming involved
with gangs, including the use of social media for gang communication and promotion

H. The nature of local gang apparel and graffiti

+5. Effective parenting techniques and planning family time

+6. Conflict resolution techniques

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may offer ceommunity programs shell that
address: {.4the scope and nature of local gang problems and 2,-.Sstrategies by which each
segment of the community may alleviate gang problems.

38



(10tes r0te6) 7ne

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights reserved.

CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Instruction BP 6142.2(a)

WORLDIFOR$IGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION

Note: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice.

Education Code 51220 requires districts that serve students in grades 7-12 to offer courses in world
languages. In January 2019, the State Board of Education adopted revised content standards and
proficiency levels for world languages. The 2003 Foreien Laneuaeç Framework for California Public
Schools does not reflect current content standards and is scheduled to be updated in May 2020.

The following policy may be revised by districts that do not maintain any of grades 7-12 Ðis#s+stbaFde-ne+
to reflect any elementaq¡seheel K-6 programs designed to

develop student's literacy in a language other than English. e&¡eatien eede 51212 s

In order to prepare students for global citizenship and to broaden their intercultural understanding
and career opportunities, the Governing Board shall provide students with opportunities to develop

@communicativeandcu1tura1profTciencyandliteracyinoneormorewor1d'languages@.

39



Note:

The following paragraph may be revised to reflect language courses available in the district. The
revised state content standards acknowledge the need for the study of a wide variety of languages, and
recognize American Sign Languageis-reeegrdas as*eiga world language.

The Superintendent or designee shall recommend a variety of world languages to be taught in the
¡{iofr-i¡flc orltt^ofi^-o1 ñr æ4ñ Looo.l nn cf¡r¡lanf infaracf ¡nmmrrnif.rnoorTo o-rl otroilol-lo.oonrrrnaqJ vusvsL^vra vsuvu ¡^r!vrvú!t vvÁ^urrgrulJ ¡rvvgu, sr¡u 4 Y orrsu

Ue¡rfre stratt alse e
lafÈguage; wheû $i€þÈeerlrs .

For any program designed to provide students with instruction in a language other than
E*ngÌish to a dêgr€e srrffÏcient to proäùec profie¡éncy in thât ianguage, the Superintenaienf or
designee shall establish a pí{icess for schools to receive and respond to input from
parents/guardians and other stakeholders regarding the non-English language in which
instruction will be provided. (5 CCR 11300, 11312)

If American Sign Language eourses are offered, they shall be open to all students regardless of
hearing status.

RP 614) )h\

WORLDIPORST€N LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

Note:

by 1D 2290 (Gh 6 l3rStatutes ef 2016); reqnke^ the $uperhtenden*-ef Fnblie Î-skustien tereee*-e-4 reïisiens
tethe stædards a-d reqnires the SBE te adept; rejeet; er medi& the reeerarn€-ded revisi€€s by Mareh 31; 2019,

ln-a¿*tieq Education Code 51228 requires districts to offer students in grades 7-12 a course of study that fulfills
the requiiements and prerequisites for admission to California colleges and universities; see BP 6143 - CourSeS of
Study. Admissions criteria for California State University and University of Califomia include two years of
coursework in one fereign language other than English that has been approved by the University of California.
"Frequently Asked Questions" in the University of California's A-G Policy Resource Guide, available on its web
site,clariffthatAmericanSignLanguagemaybeusedtofulfilltherequirementi@
Fnglirìb bÌrt sigrÌiÊ€ in E . The following paragraph naay be re.¿ised by
districts that do not maintain any of grades 7 -12.

The district shall offer a sequential curriculum aligned with the state content standards, state
curriculum framework, and, as applicable, California university admission requirements for
languages other than English.

4A



(cf. 601I - Academíc Standards)
(cf, 614l - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)

werlélanguages designed te d€velep a fre:lity fer enderstaad:-g; speal-&tg; reaCi-g; aad wriFa€ the paf,tieulaf,

Instruction in world languages shall be offered to secondary school students beginning no later
than grade 7 and shall be designed to develop students'skills in understanding, speaking, reading,
and writing the language. (Education Code 51220)

þf. 6Ia3 - Courses ofStudy)

Nete..-4hefellervhg eptie*alparagraph is år use by disfüets that ma:-tafurene e- mere high seb€els' Edueatien
etrse in eitlrer fereign langr¡aÊe; ¿lsreriean

e eP 6t t6,t High
ds 51213 51215 and 5 G€R 1632; ferdf l^-guage

i ie*

A. rumber ef disr¡eæ ¡ave e

BP 6142.2(c)

WORLDÆORSICN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

(4. 6l 16,l Higb$eheel Gt aduatien Requù'efl,efiÐ

þf,6f 46'Il lilterretÌre e

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that choose to offer a dual-language immersion
program and may be revised to reflect district practice.

kamefs üe sereet a r€¡r,gua

êDBand+s The Center for Applied Linguistics notes that dual-language immersion programs are often focused
on the primary grades and that such programs may continue for five tese¡ren years but optimally throughout grades
K- I 2.;-aAlso see the accompanying administrative re gulation.

4L



For further information and recommendations regarding dual-language immersion programs, see CSBA's
brief

The district may establish a dual-language immersion program that provides integrated language
learning and academic instruction for native speakers of English and native speakers of another
language, with the goals of high academic achievement, first and second language proflciency,
and cros s- cultural understanding. (Education Code 3 05 -3 06)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 601 19, as a condition of receiving funds for instructional materials frr.rm any

state sor-rca, the Govçrning Boad is required to hold a public hearing to determine, through a resolution, whether
each stu<Íent in the district has suffrcient texibooks andior instructionai materiais in specified subjects, inciu<iing

fêreign world language,that are aligned to the state content standards or curriculum frameworks; see BP 6161.1
- Seiection and Evaluation of lnstructionai Materiais.

The Board shall ensure that students have access to high-quaiity instructional materials in world
ianguages. In accordance wiih BoanÍ poäcy, teachers shall be encouraged to identifli ¿urd use
-,,^*1^*^*+-l -^-^,,*^^- .',^L -- l.i+---+"-^ +-^L*^1^-' - --á ^+L^- *-'l.io ãi¡tinnqriacùLiPi-i¡úij.j,ú¡¡L¿1r Áv.:truivç., Ði¡v¡¡ 4¡ ¡¡Lúl¿a¡-tiiv, i-úL,rurr-'rL'éj/, !ÁvYv¡IJr+Jv!J 4rru r-'r!lvr rr!ws!4, slvlll,ltqrwù,

and volunteers from the community to enhance the world language instructional program.

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assßtance)
(cí 6i6i.i - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6 161 .1 I - Supplementary Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6163.1- Library Media Centers)

The SuperintenCent cr Cesignee shall provide professional development as necessaryto e.nst-r-re tha-t

teachers of world languages have the knowledge and skills they need to implement an effective
instructional program that helps students attain academic standards, including communicative
and cultural profrciency and understanding.

BP 6142.2(d)

IVORLDIFORSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

(cf. 4l3l - Staf Development)

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that maintain one or more high schools. Educatioir
Code 51225.3 requires high school students to complete a one-ye¿r cor¡rse in either fereþn world language, which
includes American Sign Language, or visual and performing arts as a condition of high school graduation; see BP

6146.1- High School Graduation Requirements. Pursuant to Education Code 51243-51245 and 5 CCR 1632,

fereign world l¿mguage instruction conrpleted in a private school must be granted credit toward high school
graduation providcd that the instruction meets specified standards and conditions; see BP/AR 6 146.11 - Alternative
Credits Toward Graduation.

A-a"mber ef eiisFiets have ehese* te present- a biliteraey an'arci upen high seheel gradr¡atien te students whe
;

42



Students shall obtain credit toward high school graduation requirements for €offipletien+f
completing one year of aeqeìrear€eursein a world language or American Sign Language course
during grades9-12.

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)
(cf. 6146.1I - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation)

Note: A number ofdistricts have chosen to present a biliteracy award upon high school graduation to students
who demonstrate a high level of proficiency in speaking, reading, and writing skills in one or more languages in
addition to English. The California Spanish Assessment, which is part of the Catifornia Assessment of
Student Performance and Progress, can be used to measure a student's competency in the Spanish language
and is suitable for assessing qualifications for the State Seal of Biliteracy. See the California Department of
Education's Also see BP/AR 5126 - Awards for Achievement.

The distrÍct shall determÍne appropriate measures to assess student profïciency in world
languages offered by district schools. Students who have attained a high level of proficiency
may receive recognitÍon for theif achievement, including the State Se¿l of Biliteracy for
students graduating from high school.

(cf. 5 126 - Awards for Achievement)

Note: The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect indicators agreed upon by the Board and
for the district's instructional

The Superintendent or designee shall provide periodic reports to the Board regarding the
effectiveness of the district's world language program which may include, but not be limited to,
whether the districtrs world language program is serving the grade levels required by lawo a
description of the district's curriculum and the extent to which it is aligned with the state's content
standards and curriculum framework, student achievernent of district standards

BP 6142.2(e)

WORLDIFORSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

for world language instruction, and student participation rates in each language course. Program
evaluation shall be used to identify needed improvements and may be considered in determining
the world languages to be taught in the district.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATIONCODE

43



300-3 I 0 Education þr English leamers
4 2 2 3 8. 0 2 Lo cøl control funding þrmula ; class size requirements
442 5 3. I -442 5 3. I I Qualificatíons of teachers of English learners
44256-44257 Credentíal requirements, includíng teachers ofþreigt+ world languøge

48980 Parental notifications
51212 Legislative intent to encourqgefuworld language instruction in grades 1-6
51220 Courses ofstudy, grades 7-12
51225.3 High school graduatian requirements
51243-51245 Alternativecreditstowardgraduaticnþrþreignworldlanguageínstt"¿ctianinprivatesckocl
601 19 Public hearings, instructiorcal materials
6 0 6 0 5. 3 Content s tandards for world language instruction
60605.5 Revision of state standardsþrworld ianguage instruction
CCDE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
t 632 Alternative credits toward graduation þr þreign language instruction in private .gchool

11300-11316 Multílíngual and English learner educutíon

Management Resources:
CS.Ê.4 FUBLTCATíONS

Pronasition 5E Resuløtions. h'act Sheel Aagust 2018
Enelßh Leørners in Focus: The Enelísh Leørner Roødmøo: Provídíne Díreclíon for Enslish Leørner
Success. Governance Bríef, February 2018
Enslish Learners in Facus, Issue 2: The Promise o.f Two-Wa'¿ Immersíon Programs. Governance Brief,
September 2014
C ALI F O RNIA D E P ARTME NT O F E D UC ATIO N P UB LIC ATIQNS

Maltílìngua! FAQ
ll¡orld Lønsuøees Frølneb,ork for Calíforníø Publíc Schools. Kindereørten Throueh Grade Twelve
Cøliforníø Soanish Assessment Fqct Sheet. Mørch 2019
World Lansuases&ntql $lqndards =for Cslifornía Fublic Schools, Kindersarten Throush Grqde Twel,¡e.

adepted Januqry+z00q 20 I 9
t d1,--,,-/r--,-t,-- ã-,-----^t^^---:,-^ Df,---¿^,^-t D^t:^:^^ D-^----çullIatrnlu Engr^i4 t¿eunler Ã,uuutfaua; Ðtr&rrgLrtvo¿ftg wuruaf ëflërtùtvg uuuçuttuftu, t vttçteÐ. L t vxt øttã

ønd Practices for Enslísh Learners, 2017

CENTER FOR APPLIED LINGUISTICS PUB
Guidins Principles-for Dual Lansuage Education. Second Edítion. 2007

Management Resources continued: (see next page)
BP 6142.2(Ð

WORLD/+9RSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

Management Resources : (continued)
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS
CL-622 Servins Enslish Learners
NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSO CATION PUBLICATIONS
21st Centurv SkíIls Møp: lV'orld Løneaøse* Jønaary 2011
UNIVE RS ITY O F C ALIF O RNIA PUB LICATIO NS
A-G Polícv Resource Guíde
Ií.EB SITES
CSB A; http : //www.csba. org
American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages: http://www.actfl.org

44



C aliþrnia Ass ocíqtion þr B ilingual Education : hnp : //wvvw. gocabe. org
Caliþrnia Department of Education, Fere¡gft lVorld Languages: http://www.cde.cø.gov/cifl
California Language Teachers' Association : http : /hvww.clta.net
California Fæe¡g+ World Langaage Project: http://www.stanþrd.edu/group/CFLP
eaWt nia r a*tuage Teaelø s',4sseeiatien: htíÍt:l7vtn*elta.twt
C ent er þ r Appl í e d Lin gui s tic s; htç ://www. cal. org
Nøtíonøl Educøtíon Assocíøtíon, Pørtnershíp for 21st Century SkíIls:
http : //www. n e a. o r g/h o m e/ 3 4 I I 8. h tm
University of Caliþrnia,ægGffie@A-G Polícy Resoarce Guíde: hnp://www.ucop.edu/agguide

(3t0e 3tr7) 7n9

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 20l9by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights reserved.

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

fnsfuuction

WORLDIF oREIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION

Content of Instruction

AP.6ta2.2(a)

Note: Items #1é3 below reflect the €¡re three categories of content standards for world languages adopted by the
Süate Board of Education{SBE}ea-in Jarwary:1489 2019. Within each category, the state standards describe

45



four proficiency levels
S+a**e+

.The revised content
standards also address information literacS technology literacy, media literacy, and emotional literacy as

outlined Ín the NatÍonal llducation Association's 21st Century Skills Map.

The dishict may revise the following list to reflect the topics teåe addressed in the district's world language

The tlistrict's instructional program-flr wo:ld languages shallne desiþed to help studentlgain
k-nowledge about flstrlanguage systems, develop a cultural understandingo and use ú.at
knowledge to communicate. Students strall receive instruction which is aligned with state

academic standards appropriate to their age and stage of linguistic and cultural proficiency in the

following categories:

1, €enteat: SÊudents shall bp presente&witå a wide variety ef eentent that is aêe añd sta€e
ana*n¡*iola o-ã ioo*ooooo io ¡^-ol^-:t-tsPPi vyii¿uv sus ¡ttvr vsùvù ¡¡l 9vr1¡lr¡v^¡sJ .

@

+1. Communication: Studeqts shall be taught to effectively convey and receive messages by
engaging in or interpreting written, spoken, unðlar signed languages', including:

Language functions, which desciibe the purposes to which language is used in
e¡¡ltr-rra! lv anDropriate rea!-world eorn mun ication---J __rF- -l_-'

The setting ih which the language is useal, which includes usÎn$ Ian¡fuageboth
witirÍn anti beyontl the classroom to Ínteract in local communitíes and abroarl

c. The structures used to convey meaning

Cultures:Studentssha11receiveinstructionthatallowsthemtoM
teract, with comPetence and

understandingo with those who are native to the language in a variety of real-world
settings' 

A.6r4z.2(b)

WORLDßORSÍGN LANGUAGE I1YSTRUCTION (continued)

kf, 6la2.9a - History-Social Science Instruction)

Connections: Students shall receive instruction that builds, reinforces, and expands
their knowledge of other disciplines using the language to develop crÍtical thinking

t.

b.

2_)

+

3.

46



and problem-solving skills, and to access and evaluate information and diverse
perspectives readily or only available through the language and its cultures, in order
to function in real-world, academic and career-related settings.

(cf, 6011 - Academic Standards)

Dual-Language Immersion Programs

Note: The following optional section is for use by districts that choose to establish u ¿u¿llanguage immersion
progftim integrating native English speakers and English learners in a class that is taught in both English and a
second language; see the accompanying Board policy.

@pesitien S8-ê{evenaber 2016) arre-ded Edueatien êede 305 310 asd rep€eled
P¿Eeatien eeee 3ttte auúerk

Items #1-2 below reflect program models described on the California Department of Education's (CDE) web site
and be revised to reflect district

The district's duallanguage immersion programs may be based on either or both of the following
models:

A 50:50 model in which instruction is provided in the non-English target language for 50
percent of the time and in English for 50 percent of the time, throughout the duration of the
program

A 90:10 model in which instruction is provided in the non-English target language for 90
percent of the time and in English for 10 percent of the time during the first year of the
progr¿rn, decreasing the percentage of time in the non-English language in each subsequent
year until there is a 50:50 balance of languages 

AR 6r42.2(c)

WORLDÆ'€)RSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

þf, 6I7a - Educationfor English Learners)

1

2.

47



Native English speakers shall generally be admitted into the program only during the first grade

level at which the progtam is offered, and English learners during the first or second grade level
at which the program is offered. Bilingual students may enter the program at any time. On a case-

by-case basis, the Superintendent or designee may admit a student later in the program if h€Ahs
detemines it is determined that the student is adequately prepared for and will benefit from the
progftim.

Note: The fotlowing paragraph reflects the recommendation of CDE in its "Multilingual FAQ," available
on its web slte, and be revised to reflect district

In enrolling students for the program, ttre district shall strive to maintain a ratio of half native
Englistr speakers and half English learners, and such ratio shall not fall below one-third for either
language group except under exceptional circtrnstances.

Note: The following paragraph may be deleted by districts that do not offcr a dual-languagc immersion program
:- ^-'' ^f ^-^¡-. tr-.? Dn¡o'orf -fa Ëã*aaia¿-fi^áâ3-t-ô*,sc,æc¡,\o,! L.¡D.o -aqi+ia¡ d9 /-lrJ¡ps!rer.?M61--f1äi äiit i;i Biliuitö ¡\ .). aüúüb-üï-¡v æ!-!iú- v-w7iv;-Eõ-'6¡úü-vû út a¡wPvù¡ùvù Jv \¡rvrwúuv^ àv\vrt øu

languagea€qr¡isitieapfegr s

Any dual-language immersion progr¿ìm offered in grades K-3 shall comply with class size

requirements specified in Education Code 42238.02. (Education Code 310)

(cf.6151 - Class Size)

Note: Teachers in a class serving one or more English learners are required to possess the qualifications described

in Education Code 44253.144253.11and CTC leafletCL-622, Servins English Learners. Also see AR4112.22 -

ùlart

Whenever one ormore English learners are enrolled in a dual-language immersion classroom, the

class shall be taught by a teacher who possesses the appropriate authonzatton issued by the

Commission on Teacher Credentialing.

(cf. 4112.22 - StaffTeaching English Learners)

At the beginning of each school year or upon a student's enrollment, parents/guardians shall be

provided information on the district's dual-language immersion program and other language
acquisition programs available to students enrolled in the district, including, but not limited to, a
description of each program. (Education Code 310)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
AP.6142.2(d)

WORLDIF€)RSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

Neter T€ô€hers in a €tass
in Educatien eede 14 arners,.4*sotee-AR-4ll2Jl

48



ina

(4 41 I 2,22 Sraff Teaehing Eftglish Learner s)

Note: Pursuant to 5 CCR 11311, districts are required to establish a process for schools to receive and
respond to requests from parents/guardians of students enrolled in the school to establish a language
acquisition program other than, or in addition to, programs available at the school. When the request is for
a dual-language immersion progrâm, requests from parents/guardians of enrolled students who are native
speakers ofEnglish shall be considered along with requests from parents/guardians ofEnglish learners in
determining whether the threshold has been met to requÍre district response. See AR 6174 - Education for

If a school does not currently offer a dual-language immersion program but the
parents/guardians of 30 or more students at the school, or 20 or more students at the same
grade level, request the establishment of such a program, the district shall determine whether
it Ís possible to offer such a program in accordance with 5 CCR 11311.

(3t0e 3lt7) Tlte

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights ressrved.

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

Instruction

ATHLETIC COMPETITION

AR 61a5.2(a)

49



Nondiscrimination and Equivalent Opportunities in the Athletic Program

Note: Thc following sestion rellects pertinent provisious of state and fsderal law regarding nondiscrimination
(EducationCode200-262.4;5CCR4900-4965;TitleIX,20USC 1681-1688).TheOffrceforCivilRights(OCR)
inthe U.S ofECucaticn oversees regarding violations of Title IX.

Nfo stuFent sFalfbaexõludef-om partïõiþàtionin, beðenfedthe bene-fils-õfFe denfeil-equ-valent-=
opportunity in, or othe nise be díscriminated against in interscholastic, intramural, or club athletics
on the basis of any actual or perceived characteristic specified in law and BP 0410 -
Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities. (Education Code 220,221.5,230;5 CCR
4920;34 CFR 106.41)

kf. 0410 - Nondiscrimínatíon in Dístrtct Pr o gram s and Activitie s )
(cf 5 1 45. 3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

Note: 5 CCF. 4921 and 34 CFR 106.41 authorize the establishment of separate teams for males and females where
the selection of teams is based on competitive skills. 34 CFR 106.41 also authorizes single-sex teams for cont¿ct
spotts, as defined. Because state regulations do not address single-sex teams for contact sports, districts should
consult legal counsel prior to esiablishing any such single-sex team for a çontact sport for which seleciion is not
based on skilis.

The Superintendent or designee may provide single-sex teams when selection for the teams is
L^-^l ^- ^^*-^t:r:-,^ ^l-:tl- /< îl1D Á{\n1. 2/l l1EÐ 1^É, A1\'u(¡ù('(I ull uulll.Pçtrllvç ùAlrtù. \J vv-\ a7LL, J"1 vl r\ rvw.'Ìr/

Each student shall be allowed to participate in any single-sex athletic program or activity consistent
with Hs,4er the student's gender identity, irrespective of the gender listed on the student's records,
andforwhichb€&thestudentisother.wiseeligib1etoparticipate@
ffi. (Education Code 221.5)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

AR 61 45 )h\

Note: Pursuant to Education Code221.5, a district is required to permit a transgender student to participate in sex-

segregated schooi programs and activities, including athletic teams anci competitions, consistent with Hslber the
student's gender 

-identity, 
regardless of the gender listed in the student's records; scc BP/AR 5145.3 -

NondiscriminationÆ{arassment. The California Interscholastic Federation's (CIF) bylaws and Guidelines for
Gender ldentibl Participation contain procedures for addressing student complaints regarding gender identity-
based participation in interscholasiiç sports. Also see CSBA's {Jpdated Leeal Guidance: Proiectine Transgçnder

50

A,THLETIC COMPETITION (continued)



1

When a school provides only one team in a particular sport for members of one sex, but provides
no team in the same sport for members of the other sex, and athletic opportunities in the total
program for that sex have been previously limited, members of the excluded sex shall be allowed
to try out and compete with the team. The same standards for eligibility shall be applied to every
student tryrng out for the team, regardless of sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity,
gender expression, or other protected group status. (5 CCR 4921;34 CFR 106.41)

Note: 5 CCP.4922 and34 CFR 106.41, as reflected in items #1-11 below, list factors that districts must consider
when determining whether equivalent opportunities are being provided. CIF's A Guide to Equity in Athletics
suggests actions that districts can take for each of the factors to help the district mset its equivalence goals. Any
district with about athletic for its students should consult counsel.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that equivalent opportunities are available to both
sexes in athletic programs by considering, among other factors: (5 CCP.4922; 34 CFR 106.41)

'Whether 
the offered selection of sports and levels of competition effectively accommodate

the interests and abilities of both sexes

Note: Education Code 230 provides the following three-part test to determine if a district has effectively
accommodated the interests and abilities of both sexes in athletics. This test is the same three-part test that is used

OCR for to determine under Title IX.

The athletic program may be found to effectively accommodate the interests and abilities
of both sexes using any one of the following tests: (Education Code 230)

Note: CIF's A Guide to Equit)¡ in Athletics advises that, in order to meet the criterion specified in item #la below,
the ratio of male/female athletes should be within five of the ratio of male/female district enrollment.

Whether the interscholastic-level participation opportunities for male and fernale
students are provided in numbers substantially proportionate to their respective
enrollments

Where the members of one sex have been and are underrepresented among
interscholastic athletes, whether the district can show a history and a continuing
practice of program expansion that is demonstrably responsive to the developing
interests and abilities of the members of that sex

Note: In evaluating whether there is an unmet interest in a particular sport and sufficient ability to sustain a team
in the sport (item #1c below), OCR considers (1) whether an institution uses nondiscriminatory methods of
assessment when determining the athletic interests and abilities of its students, (2) whether a

AR 6145.2(c)

ATHLETIC COMPETITION (continued)

a.

b

I viable team for the underrepresented seK was recently eliminated, (3) multiple indicators of interest, (a) multiple 
I

51



2

J

indicators of ability, and (5) frequency of conducting assessments. A student survey is one indicator that may be
used. A letter issued by OCR in April 2010 provides infsnnation that the district might consider in developing its
own In addition, CIF's

lVhere the members of one ssx are underrepresented among interscholastic athletes

and the district cannot show a history and continuing practice ofprogram expansion
as reqnired in item #lb above, whether the district can demonstrate that the interests
and abilities of the members of that sex have been fully and effectively
accommodated by the present progr¿tm

The provision and maintenance of,equipment and supplies

Scheduling of games andpractice times, selection of the season for a sport, and location of
tlro aamao on¡{ nrantinaclrrv óuuve

'ft"er¡el nnr{ ne¡" ¡lie,m ellorx¡âtrceq

Opporfunities to receive coaching and academic tutoring

Assignment and compensation of coaches and tutors

Provision of locker rooms, practice facilities, and competitive facilities

Þ- "rioj^¡ ^f*or{i-o! o-¡{ frai¡ino fonititiac qná ren¡inceI tv v lùrvll vl l¡¡vutvg¡ er¡v ! gr¡rÀr^õ lsvruLrvo

9. -Proiîsion ofÏoîsinS andõiníñg-ñLÍlitiès and servi-ces

10. Publicity

Note: 5 CCR4922 clarifies that unequal aggrcgate expenditures for members of each sex or r¡nequal expenditures
for male and female teams shall not by itself constitute a failure to provide equivalent opportunities. However, the
provision of necessary funding for teams of both sexes is a factor in the determination, as specified below

11. Provision of necessary funds

Each school that offers competitive athletics shall, at the end of the school year, post on its school
web site, or on the district web site if the school does not have a web site, the following
information: (Education Code 22I.9)

1. The total enrollment of the school, classified by gender

AR 6145.2(d)

4.

5.

6.

7.

a

52

ATHLETIC COMPETITION (continued)



2 The number of students enrolled at the school who participate in competitive athletics,
classified by gender

3. The number of boys'and girls'teams, classified by sport and by competition level

(cf. I I 13 - District and School Web Sites)

The data reported for items #1-3 above shall reflect the total number of players on a team roster
on the official first day of competition. The materials used to compile this information shall be
retained by the school for at least three years after the information is posted on the web site.
(Education Code22l.9)

(cf, 3580 - District Records)

Concussions and Head Injuries

Note: Education Code 49475 requires districts to distribute inforrnation on concussions and head injuries to student
athletes and their parents/guardians. The district may use fact sheets developed by the Centers for Disease Contol
and Prevention (CDC), available on CIF's web site, or other resources to develop the infonnation sheet.

The requirements of Education Code 49475 apply to any district that offers an athletic program at any grade level
and for any sport. These requirements do not apply to students engaging in an athletic activity during the regular
school or as ofa education course.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually distribute to student athletes and their
parents/guardians an information sheet on concussions and head injuries. The student and
parentlgaardian shall sign and return the information sheet before the student initiates practice or
competition. (Education Code 49475)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Nottfications)

Note: Education Code 49032 requires that each high school coach complete an education program that includes,
but is not limited to, a basic understanding of the signs and symptoms of concussions and appropriate response to
them. êF-makes-fFree online courses are available through its CIF's web site. Also see AR 41271422714327 -

Athletic Team Coaches.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to coaches andlor athletic trainers regarding
concussion symptoms, prevention, and appropriate response. (Education Code 35179.1,49032)

(cf, 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches)

AR 61a5.2(e)

ATHLETIC COMPETITION (continued)

53



Note: Education Code 4947 5 requtes that a student at any grade level engaged in an athletic program apart from
the regular school day or physical education course who is suspected of sustaining a concussion be immediately
removed from the athletic activity and not be allowed to retum until a health care provider provides written
clearance. CDC's web site includes an Acute Concussion Evaluation form which may be used to provide injurctl
students and their parents/guardians with information about monitoring symptoms and the health care provider's

recommendations regarding returning to daily activities, schooi, and sports. See CIF's web site for additional
information concusslons.

If a student athlete is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head injury in an athletic activity,
h€Æh€ the student shall be immediately removed from the activity for the rernainder of the day.

The student shall not be permitted to return to the activity until helshe the student is evaluated by
a iicensed health cate provider trained in the management of concussions and receives the health
care provider's written clearance to retum to the activity. If the health care provider determines
that thc athlete student sustaincd a concussion or & hcaci injury, thc a*Hete studcnt shaii oiso

compiete a graduated return-to-pþ protocol of no less than seven days in duratiorr under the
supervision of a licensed health care provider. (Education Code 49475)

Note: The following paragraph is for use by districts that ofler a football program and may be revised to reflect
the levels offered the district.

A middle school or high schoûl foctball team shall not hold a f¿ll-contact practice during the ofÊ
soasoR and shall not conduct more than two full-contact practices per week during the preseason

and regular season (from 30 days before the commencernent of the regular season until the

compietion of the finai interschoiastic footbaii game of that season). in ad<ütion, the fuii-contact
-^r.:^- ^f ^ --^^+:^^ -L^ll ^^+ ^-^^^Ã On *;-"+^. ;- ^--'.;-^1^ 'lo" Ë^* flrooo ^r.rtnaa< â'|f-naøfnnf
!¿Vi.L!UU Ul 4yl4vttw ùU@L 4VWVS /_V ,lruLvoj.u,u' ùuÕlv usJ. ¡ v¡ rr¡vev-y.w

oractíce means aoraçtice w.here drills or live aetion is eonduetecl that involvcs soliisions al game

speed, where players execute tackles and other activity that is typical of an actual tackle football
game. (Education Code 35179.5)

Ileat Illness

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 35179.1,

W the diskict or ClF-developed coaching education program required by Education Code 49032 must

include training on the signs and symptoms of, and the appropriate response to, heat illness. The National
Federation of State High Schools offers a free online course, available on CIF's web site, that fulfills these

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to coaches andlclr athletic trainers regarding
the signs and symptorns of, and the appropriate response to, heat illness, including heat cramps,

heat syncope, heat exhaustion, and exertional heat stroke. (Education Code 35179.1, 49032)

Note: The following optional paragraph reflects recommendations in CSBA's and CIF's joint publication
and be to include additional district

AR 614s.2(Ð

54

ATHLETIC COMPETITION (continued)



To assist in the prevention of heat illness, coaches and/or athletic trainers shall gradually increase
the intensity and duration of exercise to acclimate student athletes to practice in the heat, provide
adequate rest breaks, make water available during all athletic activities, and alter practice plans in
extrerne environmental conditions.

Sudden Cardiac Arrest

Note: Education Code 33479.3 requires that student athletes and their parents/guardians receive information on
the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest, as provided below. This inforrnation is available from CIF
or, if the athletic activity is not governed by CIF, on the Califomia Department of Education's (CDE) web site. In
addition, Education Code 33479.2 encourages districts to post on their web sites the information provided on
CDE's web site to sudden cardiac arrest.

The Superintendent or designee shall distribute the California Interscholastic Federation (CfF)
information sheet on sudden cardiac arrest to all student athletes who will be participating in a
ClF-governed athletic actlity and to their parents/guardians. The student and parenVguardian
shall sign and return the information sheet prior to the student's participation in the athletic activity.
If an athletic activity is not covered by CIF, the student and H'såer parenVguardian shall, prior to
the student's participation in the athletic activity, sign and return an acknowledgement that they
have received and reviewed the sudden cardiac arrest information posted on the California
Department of Education's web site. (Education Code 33479.2,33479.3)

Note: Education Code 33479.6 requires the coach of an athletic activity to complete, every two ysars, a training
conrse related to the naturs and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest. See AF.4127/422714327 - Temporary
Athletic Team Coaches. êIFm¿kes{Free online çourses are available iæ CIF's web site.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to coaches andlor athletic trainers regarding
the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiae arrest. (Education Code 33479.6,33479.7,
35179.1,49032)

Note: Education Code 33479.5 and CIF bylaws provide for a student's removal from participation in an athletic
activity if h€lsås the student passes out or faints. As defined by Education Code 33479.1, an "athletic activity"
includes (1) interscholastic athletics; (2) an athletic contest or competition sponsored by a school, including
cheerleading and club-sponsored sports activities; (3) noncompetitive cheerleading sponsored by a school; and (a)
practices, interscholastic practices, and scrimmages for all these activities. Pursuant to Education Code 33479.5,
this requirement does not apply when a student engages in an athletic activity during the regular school day or as

part of a physical education course, unless the activity constitutes a practice, interscholastic practice, or scrimmage.
Furthermore, Education Code 33479.5 authorizes, but does not require, the removal of a student from an athletic
activity if h€A&e the student exhibits symptoms of sudden cardiac arrest other than passing out or fainting, as

provided below. However, to promote student safety, the district may choose to require its staff to remove eså*d€nt
from an athletic activity iÊhelshe a student who exhibits any symptom of sudden cardiac arrest at any time.

ATHLETIC COMPETITION (continued)

AR 61a5.2(g)

55



If a student athlete passes out or faints, or is known to have passed out or fainted, while
participating in or immediately following hisÆer participation in an athletic activity the student
shall be removed from participation at that tirne. If a student exhibits any other symptoms of
sudden cardiac arrest, including seizures during exercise, unexplained shortness ofbreath, chest
pains, dizziness, racing heart rate, or extreme fatigue, h€Ahe the student may be removed from
participation by a coach or other employee who observes these symptoms. If any such symptoms
are observed, notification shall be given to the student's parent/guardian so that the parenVguardian
can determine the treatment, iî any, the student shouid seek. A student who has been removed from
participation shail not be permitted to return until h€lsh€ the student is evaluated and given written
clearance to return to participation by a health care provider. (Education Code 33479.2,33479.5)

Automaterl External Detibrillators

Nqte; Pursuant to Education Code 35179.6,
*$ a district that offers an interscholastic athletic program is required to make an automated extemal
defibrillator (AED) available to coaches, athletic kainers, and/or other authorized persons at athletic activities or
events. Education Code 35179.6 encourages districts to make AEDs available for emergency care or treatment
within three to five minutes of sudden cardiac arrest to any person in attendance at an on-campus athletic activity
or event. See BP/AR 5141 - Ilealth Care and Emergencies for requirements related to employee notifications
and the proper use and maintenance of AEDs.

Education Code 35179.6 clarifies that the district or diskict employee will not be liable for civil damages resulting
Ênm qnr¡ qcf nr nmiqqinn in fhe renderino of emersencv câre nr frentment nrovide¡{ that fhe emnlovee comnlies-"'E--¿ -- ----r----
with the requirements of Health and Safety Code 1797.196 and does not act with gross negligence or willful or

treatment.

The Superintendent or designee shall acquire at least one automated external defibrillator (AED)
for each dishict school and shall make the AED(s) available to coaches, athletic trainers, andlor
other authorized persons at athletic activities or events for the purpose of providing emergency
care or treatment to students, spectators, and other individuals in attendance at athletic activities
and events. (Education Code 35179.6)

(cf. 5I4l - Health Cqre and Emergencies)

The district shall comply with all requirernents of Health and Safety Code 1797.196 pertaining to
any AED acquired by the district, including, but not limited to, regular maintenance and testing of
the AED and the provision and posting of information regarding the proper use of the AED.
(Education Code 35179.6; Health and Safety Code 1797.196)

56

AR 614s.2(h)



1

ATHLETIC COMPETITION (continued)

Additionat Parentd Notifications

Note: The following optional section lists notices that the district may send to paren+slguadiars--ef students
participating in interscholastic athletics and their parentsþuardians. This section should be revised to reflect
district

Before a students participates in practice or competition as part of interscholastic athletic
activities, the Superintendent or designee shall, in addition to providing his'lher the students and
their parents/guardians with neussiensan*.sud'den
Mthenoticesdescribedabove,sendanoticetothesfi*den+*studentsandtheÍr
parents/guardians which:

Note: Education Code 33353 requires CIF to provide information to students and parents/guardians about
procedures for discrimination complaints arising from interscholastic athletic activities. Education Code 33354
allows a to file a discrimination directly with CDE.

Contains information about the procedures for filing a discrimination complaint that arises
out of an interscholastic athletic activity, including the name of the district's Title IX
Coordinator

(cf. I j12.3 - Uniþrm Complaint Procedures)

2. Includes a copy of students'Title IX rights pursuant to Education Code 22I.8

Note: Education Code 221.61requires districts to post specified information on their web sites related to Title IX.
A district that does not maintain a web site may comply by posting the information on the web site of its county
office of education. A comprehensive list of rights based on the provisions of the federal regulations implementing
Title IX can be found in Education Code 221.8. See AR 5145.3 - NondiscriminationÆIarassment. Optional item
#2below that this information will also be provided in to the ofstudent athletes.

Note: In Kahn v. East Side Union High School District, the California Supreme Court analyzed the liability of a
coach for an injury to a member of a high school diving team. The court acknowledged that some risk of injury is
inherent in sports and part of a coach's job is to "push" a student athlete to advance Hså€r in skill level and to
undertake more difficult tasks. According to the court, a coach could be found liable only when hehhe the coach
intentionally injures the student or engages in conduct that is so reckless that it is outside of the ordinary activity
involved in teaching or coaching the sport.

The district may or may not wish to seek a waiver of liability for accidents or injuries resulting from participation
in athletic activities. Whether a liability waiver is legally effective is likely to be determined on a case-by-case
basis, and it is questionable whether a student's right to participate in extracurricular activities could be made
contingent upon the submission of a waiver. Legal counsel should be consulted when addressing the complex
issues related to liability waivers.

AR 6i4s.2(Ð

57



J

ATHLETIC COMPETITION (continued)

Explains that there is an element of risk associated with all athletic competitions and that
the district cannot guarantee that students will not be injure<i, despite a commitment to
every participant's health and welfare

(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance)

Note: Education Code 32221.5 requires the district to provide information about insurance protection to each

student participating on a school athletic team. For specific language that must be contained in this statement, see

AR 5143 - Insurance.

4. Pro.r. ides infonnation about insurance protection prrrsuant to F.d':cation Code 32221.5

þf. 5ia3 - Insurønce)

5. Requests parental pormission for the student to participate in the program and, if
appropriate, to be transported by the district to and from eompetitions

kf 35aI.I - Transportationþr School-Related Tríps)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48900, a student may be subject to suspension or expulsion ilhelsh€ for
^-^^^^^:-- ^- ^a^*-¡-:-ã +^ ^Àã^-^ :- l^-:^-

6. States the district's expectation that students adhere strictly to all safety rules, regulations,
and instructions, as well as rules and guidelines related to conduct and sportsmanship

þf, 5( a - Díscipline)
(cf, 5 I 44. I - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

7. Includes a copy of the local CIF league rules

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 49033 and CIF bylaws, any student participating in athletics and HsAer the
student'sparenlguardianmustsignathestatementdescribedbelow.ffi

lenet-er
Also see

5131 Steroids.

Includes information about the CIF bylaw and district policy requiring any student athlete

and hisÆer the student's parent/guardian to sign a statement that the student will not use

steroids, unless prescribed by a licensed health care practitioner, €r and wÍll not use

prohibited dietary supplements that include substances banned by the U.S. Anti-Doping
Agency

8

58

(cf 5131.63 - Steroids)



9

AR 6145.2(i)

ATHLETIC COMPETITION (continued)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 49476, as added by SB 1109 (Ch. 693, Statutes of 2018), the district must
annually provide to student athletes and their parents/guardians CDC's opioid fact sheet for patients. The
CDC's fact sheet, is available on its web site.

Includes the opioid fact sheet published by the Centers for DÍsease Control and
Prevention in accordance with Education Code 49476. The district shall provide this
fact sheet annually to each student athlete and shall require the student and the
studentrs parent/guardian to sÍgn a document acknowledging receipt of the fact sheet.

Policy Reference UPDATE ServÍce

(s/17 10n8) 7ne

59



Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, 'West Sacramento, California 9569I
,a¿\u ngn[$ rcsÉrv€(l.

CSBA Sample
Board Policy

fnstruction BP 6145.6(a)

INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE

Note: The following optional policy is for use by districts that maintain secondary schools and accept

enrollment of international students through approved programs sponsored by an International Student
Exchange Fiacemení ûrganization íISEPÛ).

The oolicy does not appty to students who may otherwise meet district residency requirements for school

attendance or to students whose parents/guardians were California residents who departed agaÍnst their
as defined in Education Code 48204.4. See AR 5111.1 - District

TheGoverningBoardrecogniZeS@thev¿lueofinteractionsbetweenstudents
of different countries and cultures premetes in prornoting global awareness and international
i¡n<iersian<iing in an increasingiy giobaiizeti and inierconnected world. +e+Ua+en+Jfhe Board
welcomes the enrollment of international exchange students in district schools and S*rtlær

encourages district students to take any advantage of opportunities that they may have to
participate in such programs and stuCy in another country"

fl/;+L Er^^-,t -*--^.,^l ^ ,1;.+-;^+ o^L^^l *or¡ ocfqhliah q ciefor-e¡lrnn! ro-lotinnshin ,-ttill, q snhnn! in

another country.

District Students Studying in Another Country

Ð+strieçs+a$*hal+ School counselors may provide information regarding international
exehange programs and academic relevant counseling to district students who wish to study in
a foreign country. Such counseling shall include a review of the studentrs completed
coursevyork, academic achievement, and personal goals, and shall advise the student
regarding requirements that the student must meet during attendance in the foreign school
in order to maintain progress toward meeting district graduation requirements.

(cl, 6146.1 - High School Graduøtíon Reqaírements)
(cÍ, 616a.2 - Guída.nce/Counselíng Semices)

Ðistde+-eCredit for courses successfully completed in the foreign country shall be granted in
accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation.

þf 6 I a6. I I - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation)

60

Internatíonal Student Exchange presr"ms-Students in District Schools



Note: Govcrnment Code 12623 requtes that any orgarization that arranges for the placement of international
exchange students in California schools first be registered with the Attorney General's Office.

BP 614s.6(b)

INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE (continued)

Pursuant to Education Code 351850 a district is authorized to request proof of the registration as a condition
to enrolling a student.

For the protection of students and to reduce district liability, CSBA strongly recommends that districts
Ðistrieter€åy check to see if a student placement organization is registered in California by reviewing the Registry
List maintained by the Attorney General's Registry of International Student Exchange Visitor Placement
Orgarizations.

See CSBA's Legal Guidance Reeardins Internat¡onal Student
Exchange Placement Orsanizafions for additional recommendations and best practices.

In addition, the Council for Standards for Intemational Educational Travel (CSIET), a non-profit organization
whose purpose is to identifu reputable intemational exchange programs, annually develops an Advisory List asa

pregraras Êhat ha¡re beea revie ieflß qei€b
upes evaleafen; rvere fenad te be in ee*flianee with the identifying exchange organizations that fully,
provisionally, or conditionally rneet CSIET standards ies

related to
financial responsibilit¡ as-we[es*s sfudent selection, student orientation, and the placement process.

It is the responsibility of the ISEPO to confïrm the eHgibility of international students for the exchange
program. To be eligible, secondary sfudents must (1) have a J-l or F-l visa; (2) not have previousþ attended
school in the United States through an exchange program or on a J-l or F-l visa; and (3) either have not
completed more than 11 years of primary and secondary study in their home country, excluding
kindergarten, or be at least 15 years of age but not more than 18 years and six months of age as of the
program start date.

The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that wish to only accept students participating in prograrrs
the General's

Teenrelt Before sn¡olling an international exchange student in a district school, the
SuperintendentordesigneeshalIrequestproofthatthe@studentmust
be is participating in an ex€hafge International Student Exchange Placement Organization
(ISEPo)progIamregisteredwiththeCa1iforniaAttomeyGenera1'soffic@

The Superintendent or designee shall obtain from the ISEPO a description of the services to
be performed by the ISEPO for the student, host family and the distrÍct; telephone numbers
that the studento host familyo or district may contact for assistance; and a summary of the
studentrs complete prÍor academic coursework completed. (Government Code 12628;22
cFR 62.2s)

61



The district may require additional docurnents which rnay include, but are not linnited to'
evidence that the student has health and accident insurance from the time of departure from
home to the time the student returns to the home country. (11 CCR 360;22 CFR 62.25)

BP 61a5.6(c)

INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE (continued)

Note: The following optional paragraph may be used by districts that wish to limit the total number of
';-.^-. -+:^-^l[¡lvr[cllv¡¡41 cn'¡{o¡tc ^.1^i* a,l i-t^ tl'o .li"t-i^'

When necessary because of overcrowding within district schoois or limited district resources, the

Supenntencient or ciesignee may iimit the number oiinternationai exchange students to be accepteci

at ar4r district lugh school during any school year.

Thedistrictshallnotincuranyfinancialobligationswhen@ivia€educating
international exchange students.
ger lreattryaeei¿ent¡tiatitlty I

n international student, or the ISEPO on behalf
of the student, shall reimburse the district for the fullo unsubsidized per capita cost of
providing education at a district school lbr the period of the visiting student's attendance.

(cf, 3260 - Fees and Chørges)

In determining the tuition for internàtional exchange studentso the district shall calculate the
total cost of educating the student, including, but not limited to, the amount expended per
student for the current provision of instruction and services, the use of buildings and
equipment, the repayment of local bonds and interest payments and state building loan
funds, capital outlay, and transportation to and from school.

The Superintendeni or designee shall esiablish district criteria for issuing regülar or honorary
diplomas to intemational exchange students. The principal or designee shall refer to these cri[eria

Note: The following optional paragraph may be modified to reflect district practice. Federal and state law
do not specify a formula for calculating the fullo unsubsidized per capita cost of providing educafion to an
international student for the purpose of determining the tuition that will be charged. Education Code 48052
identifies factors that must be considered in determining the total cost of educating a student who resides
in a foreign country adjacent to California, which, for consistency, may also serve as a basis for calculating
tuition for international students.

Alternatively, as described in CSBA's
Placement Orsanizations, the district could use the per student amount of the high school base grant
provided to districts under the local control funding formula, which could be augmented by the amount
received by the district for separately funded categorical programs and any federal funding received by the
district, or could consider its prior year per student expenditures.

such a formula.It is recommended that districts consult with counsel in

62



when assisting international exchange students in selecting classes and cocurricular activities
based on the student's individual qualifications, needso and interests.

(cf 5127 - Grqduation Ceremonies and Activities)
þf. 6la6.l - High School Graduation Requirements)

þf. 6Iaü - Reciprocity of Academic Credit)

BP 6145.6(d)

INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE (continued)

@svide relevant eeunseling te distriet shrdents rvhe rvish te study in a fereign

qì aeeerdaaee with Bo ioft

(ef,61 16,11 últern

Legal Reference:
EDUCATIONCODE
35160 Authority of governing boards
35160.1 Broad authority ofschool districts
3 51 85 Miscelløneous adminßtrøtive authority
48052 Nonresídents
48204.4 Evídence of resídencyfor school enrollment
51225.5 Honorary diplomas; foreign exchange students
GOI/ERNMENT CODE
12620-12630 International Sludent Exchange Vísitor Placement Organizations
87100 General prohibitíon, conflíct of interest
CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS. TITLE 11
350-384 Cøliþrníø Uníþrm Sapewísíon of International Student Exchønge Vísíør Placement
Organízutíons
CODE OF FEDERAL KEGULATIONS, TITLE 8
214.2 Students in academíc high schools
CODE OF FEDERAL KEGULATIONS, TITLE 22
6 2. 2 5 Secondary school students, exchange visitor program

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Lesøl Guídønce Resørdíne Internøtionøl Stadent Exchønse Pløcement Oreønízøt¡ons.2014
Tí/EB SITES' CSBA: http://www.csba.org
C alifornia Interscholastic F ed eration : http : //tvwwcifstate. org

Cølifurnía Offtce of the Attorney GenerøL, ISEPO:
@hap s : //o øg. c a. gov,/exc h an g e stu d e nts
e øUbt nia {ntercelrclastie Federatier: lútp:,| ¡ç¡''¡veifstate,etg
Council on Standardsfor International Educatíonøl Travel: http://www.csiet.org
U.S. Department of State, Bureau of Educational and Cultural Affiirs: http://exchanges.state.gov
US. Depørtment of State, Exchønge Vìsítor Program: http://jLvísa.state.govþrogrøms/secondary-school-
student

63



(J. S. Immigratíon and Customs Enforcement : http : l/www. íce. gov

Poliey-R:eferen cc UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019by California Schoot Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

{6192 7104) 7tL9

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

fnsfrrrnfinn

TNTE pN^,'rrftNÀr E Yfllr^Nllü'

Note: The fotlowing optional administrative regulation is for use by districts that maintain secondary

schools and accept enrollment of international students through approved programs sponsored by
International Student Placement

Admission

Prior to enrolling an international exchange student, the Superintendent or designee shall

-a'roviffi{itudenf-*:x
acceptance for the enroll¡nent, inetuding arrangements concerníng the payment of tuition or
thc w¡iver of the tuition if applicabte. (11 CCR 361;22 CFR 62.25)

(cf, 5l I 1.2 - Nonresídent Foreign Students)

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to set a date by which the request for enrollment must be

received.

In order to approve the admission of an international exchange student, the Superintendent or

designee must receive a written request for enrollment before the end of the preceding school year.

Enrollment shall be for ene-yearcnly one semester or one sehool ye*r. Q2 CFR 62.25)

All international exchange students shall meet state and district immltrization requirements

(cf, 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)
(cf, 5 1 4 1.3 1 - Immunízations)

64

Athletics



Note: State bylaws of the California Intcrscholastic Federation (CIF) list eligibility requirements for participation
by international exchange students in interscholastic athletics. These requirements include, but are not limited to,
requiring that the student has been placed with a host family by an exchange program accepted for listing by the
Council for Standards for International Educational Travel and hasbeen approved by the CIF, California Attorney
General's Office and U.S of State. Individual CIF section bylaws may have additional

lntemational exchange students shall be eligible for participation in interscholastic sports in
accordance with state bylaws of the Califomia Interscholastic Federation as well as applicable
section bylaws.

AR 614s.6(b)

INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE (continued)

kf. 61a5 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activtties)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competítíon)

Diplomas

Intemational exchange students may be considered for a diploma if they have satisfactorily
completed the district's graduation requirements.

kf. 61a6.1 - High School Grqduation Requirements)
(cf. 6146.1I - Alternative Credits Toward Graduøtion)
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 51225.5, the Governing Board may grant an honorary diploma to international
exchange students who have completed the course of study required for graduation and are retuming to their home
countries following completion of one school year. Honorary diplomas must be distinguishable from the district's
regular diploma. See BP 6146.1- High School Graduation Requirements.

The following optional paragraph provides standards for the granting of the honorary diploma and should be
revised to reflect district practice.

International exchange students who are not eligible for a regular diploma may receive an honorary
diploma, provided theyhave completed at least one semester of full-time enrollment and achieved
at least a2.0 grade point average.

(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities)

i#€Èilnternational exchange students who do not meet
requirønents for a regular or an honorary diploma may, aI the end of their visit, be given a

certificate or letter certifuing the time period for which they were enrolled as well as a transcript
documenting their completed coursework.

65



\o/9¿ //v¿+) t/ tv

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by Caiifornia School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

66



If'Je¡

Ættx(NDNagtút nÊr
HAMILTON TJNIFIED

Governance Handbook 20 I 9

Board of Trustees

SCHOOL DISTRICT

Gabriel Leal, President
Wendall Lower, Clerk
Ray Odom, Trustee
Genaro Reyes, Trustee
Rod Boone, Trustee

Superintendent

Dr. Jeremy Powell

This høndbook reflects the governance team's work on creation of aframeworkfor effective governance. This
involves ongoing discussions about unity of purpose, trustee roles, commitment to norrns, and developing consensus
on protocols /formal stntctures that will enable the governance team to perþrm íts responsibílities in ø way that
best benefits the children of Hamilton Unified School District.

67



Table of Contents
SUMMARY OF GOVERNANCE

EFFECTI\rE GOVERNAIICE

UNITY OF PURPOSE

'The Hamilton Unified School District Mission/Vision Statement:

GOVERNANCE ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

PERFORMING GOV-ERNANCE RESPONSIBILITIES

Set the direction for the school district

Establish an effective and efficient structure for the school district

Provide support through our behavior and actions

Ensure accountability to the public

flartn¡o+ro+o f-^**"-i+', f ^^,l^-"hi^LJ lv4svr ù¡[F,

PROTOCOLS TO FACILITATE GOVERNANCE LEADERSIilP

Requesting Information from the Superintendent

ItÍÁ-t"¡n-d ôd qfrôrô6¡^ T Ádrf-*dL¡-
I'JY,vP.¡l!Ég. -5P. v E 9!._v6¡.,! ry!+gYa,Pratlf . . -,

Role of the Board President

Board Deliberation and Motions on Agenda Action Items

Board Meeting Agenda Consent Calendar

Newly Elected Board Member Resources

Establishing Multi - Year Goals

Designated Spokesperson

Handling Community or Staff Concerns and/or Complaints

Board Governance Self-Assessment

Confîdentiality

Visiting Schools and Attending School Events

Collective Bargaining

ROLE OF TITE BOARI)

GOVERNANCE STANDARDS

PUBLIC STATE1VIENTS

4

6

6

6

P

J

9

9

10

10

10

4ñ

LL

tt
xl
IL

T2

t2

13

13

L4

L4

15

15

15

76

18

2L

23

68

Page 2 of t22



DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL/PRTWLEGED INFORMATION

BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

ORGANIZATION

TERMS OF OFFICE

PRESIDENT

SECRETARY

CLERK

ATTORNEY

BOARD COMMITTEES

BOARD REPRESENTATTVES

LIMITS OF BOARD MEMBER AUTIIORITY

GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS

RESIGNATION

FILLING VACANCIES

OATH OR AFFIRMATION

ORIENTATION

BOARD DE\TELOPMENT

REMT]NERATION, RBIMBT]RSEMENT AND OTHER BENEFITS

LEGAL PROTECTION

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

BOARD POLICIES

MEETINGS AND NOTICES

CLOSED SESSION PURPOSES AND AGENDAS

CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS AND REPORTS

AGENDA/I\4EETING MATERIALS

MEETING CONDUCT

ACTIONS BY THE BOARI)

ACTIONS BY THE BOARI)

24

26

28

30

31

33

34

35

37

39

40

42

46

47

52

53

55

56

60

62

7Z

76

83

95

98

103

L08

115

Page 3 af 122

69



SUMMARY OF GOVERT\ANCE

GOVERNA¡ICE ROLES A¡{D RESPONSIBILITIES

¡ Setting direction
r Establishing an effective and efficient structure
¡ Providing support
¡ Ensuringaccountability
. Providing community leadership as advocates fbr children and the school district

GOVERNANCE STA¡{DARDS

Each individual Board member shall:

. Keep learning and achievcment for all students as the primary focus
r Value, support and advocate for public education
. Recognize and respect differences ofperspective and style on the Board and among sta{f, students, parents

--- I rf- -, ---------,-lL-4ll(l rllç Lulrulrulllty

o Act with dignity, and understand the implications of demeanor and behavior
. Keep confidential matters confidential
¡ Participate in professional development and commit the time and energy necessary to be an informed and

effective leader
o Understand the distinctions between Board and staffroles, and refrain from performing management

functions that are the responsibiliti¡ of the Superintendent and staff
r Understand that authority rests with the Roard as a whole an<l not with in<livirhrals

The whole Board shall:

. " Keep the ciistricr tocused on iearning anci aeirievement for aii stud€Êts
o Communicate a common vision
. Operate openly, with trust and integrity
¡ Govem in a dignified and professional manner, treating evsryone with civility and respect
¡ Govem within Board-adopted policies and procedures
. Take collective responsibility for the Board's perforrnance
¡ Periodically evaluate its own effectiveness
¡ Ensure opportunities for the diverse range of views in the community to inform Board deliberations

All public statements authorized to be made on behalf of the Board shall be made by the Board president or, if
appropriate, by the Superintendent or other designated representative.

Board members have a responsibility to identi$r personal viewpoints as such and not as the viewpoint of the Board

DISCLOSURE OF CLOSED SESSION INFORMATION

A Board member shall not disclose confidential information acquired during a closed session.

BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of eloctronic communications of
any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate. or take action on any item that is within the

subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.

70

Page 4 af L22



Examples of permissible electronic communications conceming district business include, but are not limited to,
dissemination of Board meeting agendas and agenda packets, reports of activities from the Superintendent, and
reminders regarding meeting times, dates, and places.

Board members may use electronic communications to discuss matters other than district business.

LIMITS OF BOARD MEMBER ÀUTHORITY

The Governing Board recognizes that the Board is the unit of authority over the district and that a Board member
has no individual authority. Board members shall hold the education of students above any partisan principle, group
interest, or personal interest.

Individual Board members do not have the authority to resolve complaints.

OTHER GATHERINGS

Attendance by a majority of Board members at any of the following events is not subject to the Brown Act provided
that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific district business among themselves.

¡ A conference opento thepublic
¡ An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the district.
¡ An open and noticed meeting of another body of the district.
o An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency.
o A purely social or ceremonial occasion.

Page 5 of L22

7L



EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE

Governance - A Definition
School distriet govemançe is the process of setting organizational policies and standards that are adopted by the
Board of Trustees and implemented by the Superintendent in order to provide strategic direction and ensure that
objectives are met, risks are managed appropriately, and resources are utilized responsibly in order to ensure the best
education possible for all students.

Governance tenets encompass the basic characteristics and bchaviors that cnable goveírance team members to
effectively create a climate for excellence in a school district and maintain the focus on improved student learning
and achievement. This Governance Handbook documents the govemance responsibilities of the Board of Trustees
and Superintendent of the Hamilton Unifíed School District within these three dimensions: (HUSD Board Byiaw
9000 (a))

. Governlng as a umtied team with a shared vision to lead and serve tle students, parents, and community
(stakehoiders)

r Mutual support for roles and responsibilities
e Creating and sustaining a positive governance leadership culture

UNITY OF PURPOSE

A unity ofpur.oose is composed of a common focus, agreement on priorifv goals, and sharcd values about students
and the district ihat transcen<i in<Íivi<iuai differences antí ñ¡ifiii a grearer purpose .

A unity of purpose exists when the commitment to achieving these goals becomes the guiding principle of all
^-J +L^ --,-^i-+^-l^-a TL^ C^^---^J ^Cf-r- ^c¿L^Lr uùLsçù 4rlu Luç ùuPtrr rrrLçrruçllt. I ll(' luuuùçLl trtIUl Ls ut Lilt

Hamilton Unificd School District will be reflected in the vision and mission statements, and the Local Control
Accountabitity Plan (LCAP) adopted-bylhe board.

The Hamilton Unified School District Mission/Vision Statement:

"The Harnilton Unified School District will provide a safe, rigorous, and engaging educational experience that
promotes student academic success, respect, and citizenship in a caring environment."

72

Page 6 of t22



QUALIFICATIONS TO SERVE AS A SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER

EDUCATION CODE - EDC
TITLE 2. ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION [33000 - 64100] (Tirle 2 enacted by Stats.
1976, Ch. 1010. )
DIVISION 3- LOCAL ADMINISTRATION [35000 - 45460] ( Division 3 enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch.
1010. )
PART 2I.LOCAL EDUCATIONALAGENCIES [35000 -35787] (Part2I enactedby Stats. 1976,Ch.
1010. )
CHAPTER 2. Goveming Boards [35100 - 35401] ( Chapter 2 enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010. )
ARTICLE l. Membership 135100 - 351071 ( Article I enacted by Stats. 1976,Ch.1010. )

35107.
(a) Any person, regardless of sex, who is l8 years of age or older, a citizen of the state, a resident of the school
district, a registered voter, and who is not disqualified by the Constitution or laws of the state from holding a civil
office, is eligible to be elected or appointed a member of a governing board of a school district without further
qualifications.

(b) (1) An employee of a school district may not be sworn into office as an elected or appointed member of
that school district's governing board unless and until he or she resigns as an employee. If the employee
does not resign, the employment will automatically terminate upon being swom into office.
(2) For any individual who is an employee of a school district and an elected or appointed member of that
school district's goveming board prior to January l,1992, this subdivision shall apply when he or she is
reelected or reappointed, on or after January 1,1992, as a member of the school district's governing board.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the goveming board of a school district may adopt or the residents
of the school district may propose, by initiative, a proposal to limit or repeal a limit on the number of terms a
member of the goveming board of the school district may serve on the governing board of the school district. Any
proposal to limit the number of terms a member of the governing board of the school district may serve on the
governing board of the school district shall apply prospectively only and shall not become operative unless it is
submitted to the electors of the school district at a regularly scheduled election and a majority of the votes cast on
the question favor the adoption ofthe proposal.

(d) (1) An initiative mcasure proposed pursuant to subdivision (c) shall be subject to the procedures set forth in
Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 9300) of Division 9 of the Elections Code.
(2) A proposal submitted to the electors by the goveming board pursuant to subdivision (c) shall be subject
to the procedures set fofih in Chapter 6 (commencing with Section 9500) of Division 9 of the Elections
Code.

(e) A member of the governing board of a school district shall abstain from voting on personnel matters that
uniquely affect a relative of the member but may vote on collective bargaining agreements and personnel matters
that affect a class of employees to which the relative belongs. For purposes of this section, "relative" means an adult
who is related to the person by blood or affinity within the third degree, as detemined by the common law, or an
individual in an adoptive relationship within the third degree.
(Amended by Stats. 1995, Ch. 879, Sec. 6. Effective January 1,1996.)

**Please also see Board Bylaw 9220(a) GovernÍng Board Elections on page 47 for additional information**

Page 7 of L22

73



GOVERNANCE ROLES AND RESFONSIBIT,ITIES

Citizen oversight of local government is the cornerstone of democracy in America. The role of the trustees who sit
on the board is to ensu¡e setrool tlistricl.s are responsive tu thc values, beliefs, antl pnorilies of ttreir corntnutrities.
Boards fulfill this role by perforrning five major responsibilities. These are:

¡ Setting direction
¡ Estabiishing an effective and efficient structure
¡ Providing support
¡ Ensuringaccountability
. 

- Providing community leadership as advocates for children and the school district

These responsibilities represeni core functions that are so fundamental to a school system's accountability to the
¡nø-rr-if i+ "o^ro"' dtor¡ ¡an nnlr¡ hp nprFnmpá hr¡ on plpnteá cnr¡eminc hn¡{r¡ Â¡rfhnrifr¡ ie cronfprl tn fhc hn¡rd ¡c¡a ù!¡ r -rùr vveJ . ¡ r*u¡v¡reJ

a whole, not each member individually. Therefore, board members fulfill these responsibilities by working together
as a governance tèam with the superintendent to make decisions that best serve all the students in the community.

The superintendent assists the board in carrying out its responsibilities and leads the staff toward the
accomplishment of the agreed upon district vision and goals.

**Please also see Board Bylaw 9000 Role ofthe Board on pages 18 -21 and Board Bylaw 9005 Governance
Standards {in pag€s 22-24 ior addítional information**

74

Page 8 of L22



THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

What is the CPRA? (Gov. Code, $ 6250 et seq.)
What are Public Records?

A public record includes o'any writing containing information relating to the conduct of the
public's business prepared, owned, used, or retained by any state or local agency, regardless of
physical form or characteristics."
A "writing" includes notes, handwriting, copies, faxes, voicemails, videos, pictures... regardless
of the manner in which they're stored.

What types of records are exempt from CPRA disclosure?

o Identifiable student records (FERPA)
¡ Personnel records
¡ Medical records (HIPPA)
o Pending litigation
¡ Preliminary drafts
. Attorney-Clientcommunications

What about emails?
What about text messages?

Emails, text messages, and other electronic communication (and other records) that are kept in the ordinary
course of business may be public.

Can you charge fees for responding to a CPRA request?

. Can charge for copies
o Cannot charge for staff time

Duty to respond within ten days from receipt of the request (with exceptions)
My school received a CPRA Request.... Now what?

l. Identi$ the type ofrequest.

. ' Inspection versus copies
¡ Does the request reasonably describe an identifiable record or records?
¡ Ifthe request is not focused and specific, follow up. You have a duty to assist the requester!

2. Make a reasonable & diligent effort to search for and locate records.

a Once responsive records are identified - do any exemptions exist?

3. Respond no later than 10 calendar days from receipt of request. Must let the requester know whether or not
records exist.

¡ You can extend your time in certain circumstances.
o This does not mean you have to produce records within ten days!
. Duty to produce records within a reasonable time.

PERFORMING GOVERNANCE RESPONSIBILITTES

Set the direction for the school district
o Focus on student leaming

a

a

a

Page 9 of L22

75



- D-^^:',- -^^Å- ^--^--^^-+ / L^-^l:-^ Å-+^- ¡\!vulvv tlvluù oùùvùùttlu¡tl / u4ùlllltL u4lc
¡ Generate, review or revise setting direction documents (beliefs, vision, priorities, LCAP, success

indicators)
¡ Ensure an appropriate inclusive process is used
r Ensure thcse documents are the driving forcc for all disti-ict effoits

Establish an effective and efficient structure for the school diskict
. Employ and support the superintendent; set policy for hiring of other personnel
¡ Ovçrsçe the development of and adopt policies
. Set a direction for and adopt the curriculum
¡ Establish budget priorities, adopt the budget and oversee facilities issues
¡ Þrnvi.lo 'li.--f;^- ç^. -^,1 r'^fê f^ 'Fl.nt.^ll--fi.'- L.---;-i-- aæ6ñõñtô

Provide support through our behavior and actions
¡ Act with professional demeanor that models the district's beliefs and vision
. Make decisiüns ald pruvitlv l'ssuutr.:us that suppurt urulually agreetl upun priorities antl guals
. Uphold district policies the board has approved
¡ È.nsrrre, ñôsrfrr/e r¡¡nrkino clrmqfc cvictc

¡ Be knowledgeable about district efforts

Ensure accountability to the public
¡ Evaluate the superintendent '

¡ Monitor, review and revise policies and serve as a judicial and appeals body
. Monitor siucieni achievement and program effectiveness and require program changes as indicated
o Monitor and adjust district finances
. Monitor the collective bargaining process
. Develop and implement board selÊevaluation

Demonstrate Community Leadership

. Speak with a common voice about district policies, goals, and issues

. Engage and involve the community in district schools and activities
o Communicate clear information about policies, programs, and fiscal condition of the district
¡ Educate the community and the media about the issues facing students and the district
r Advocate for children and district pïograms to the general public, key comrnunity members, and local,

state, and national leaders

**Please also see Board Bylaw 9000 RoIe ofthe Board on pages 18 -21 and Board Bylaw 9005 Governance
Standards on pages 22-24 for additional information**

76

Page 10 of t22



PrÍnciple Critical to the ability of trustees to make informed decisions is timely access to
information.
The superintendent wants to be responsive to requests for information, maintain the focus
on district priorities and balance the management of staff time.

a

a

This will about the structure for trustees and staff.
Trustees will always work through the Superintendent when asking questions or
requesting additional information on board meeting agenda items.
The Superintendent will ensure timely responses to requests and will provide the
information or direct trustees to the correct source. As appropriate, the superintendent
will distribute answers to all trustees.
Board members will self-monitor to ensufe one person's request for information does not
divert an inappropriate amount of time from staff efforts to achieve district goals.
Requests requiring inordinate amounts of time will be brought to the board to decide

a

a

a

whether to the

: ii.,,_;;. ¡ t-,.ià

PrincÍple The board meeting is a meeting to conduct district business in public. Well-run efficient
meetings model leadership, promote trust and confidence and provide opportunities to
demonstrate strategically moving the district forward and planning for the future.
The govemance team wants to demonstrate to the public that the board maintains the
focus on priorities and that deliberation and discussion are conducted with
professionalism and respect.
The board meeting provides opportunities to share educational philosophy among the

a

a

team and with the

The board will communicate how the agenda topics link to district priorities and how
actions link to the goals and strategies.
The principal/superintendent reports will explicitly demonstrate the relationship to the
diskict goals.

The board members agree to share accountability for board deliberations that demonstrate
that the 'right' amount of time is spent on the 'right' things while valuing the input of
each member of the governance team.

Board member comments at the board meeting will focus on goals, professional learning
or educational trends.

Annually and as needed the board will schedule study sessions and board discussions

a

a

a

a

linked to the district's

. The board has an obligation to set an example of good govemment in action for the
community.

. The board intends for meetings to proceed professionally, efficiently and effectively.
¡ The board president sets the tone and shapes the public's perception ofthe school board.
r Each board member must have the opportunity to express his or her viewpoint dwing

board deliberation.
Protocol The role ofthe board president is to:

o Confer with the superintendent before the board meeting to prepare, as necessary for the
board meeting.

. Facilitate the board meeting, supporting the effective flow of the discussion and

encouraging input from all trustees while staying on task, moving forward, and
maintaining proper meeting decorum

r Model the tone and behavior the board wishes to convey to the community.
¡ Following the board meeting, the board president with the superintendent will enswe

there is appropriate follow-up and clarification of possible options for the board.

PROTOCOLS TO F'ACILITATE GOVERNANCE LEADERSHIP

Page 11 of t22

77



The board president señ,'es as the primary spokesÞerssn for the bsard.
**Please also see Board 9121 President on 34 -35 for more ,É*

**Please also see Board Bylaw 9322 Ãgenda/lVleeting Materials on pages 103 -107 for more information. **

Princíple . The tenets of parliamentary procedtre help ensure the orderly conduct of board meetings.
o Establishing clear and sirnple rules leads to wider understanding and participation,

fostering a healthier exchange ofideas.
are the vchiclcs for ordcrly decision making by the board¡ Motions

Protocol introduce the agenda item and present the opportunity for the
superintendent and staffto report on the issuo at hand and to provide staff
recommendations.
The board president will open the item for discussion so that board members may
exchange thougirts or ask the superintendeni and staff for 'further ciarihcation il
necessary.
Members of the public will be afforded the right tc address the board befcre or during
consideration of tåe item. (Go'¡ Code 54954.3\
The board president will call for a motion. A board member may act by sayrng "'l move
that......".
Anotherboard mqmber may second the motion by saying "I second the motion"
The board president will acknowledge the motion and second and ask if any further
discussion by the board is necessary
The board president will call for a vote saying *All in favor please respond by saying
aye." "Any opposed please respond by saying no."
The board.presidcnt announecs the resr-rlt of Lhe vote and ela¡rfies Board dtection for tJre

A consent calendar allows the Board to approve items together without discussion or
individual motions.
õ^--^-. ^^1^-)^-- l--l- -!---,--1:,--,----L:,, ,t tl 'v!üùçrL u4rçrru4rù rrErP ùLrsauuruç lrrrçLurËù uy ilrruwrlrg pruuuuul'ar ucgtstulls t_tl¿ll aIË

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

The board president will

and the recorci

to be noncontroversial to be made motion.
Protocol Board members, staff, or members of the public can request an item be pulled from the

consent calendar for individual consideration.
Typical reasons to remove an item from the consent calendar are; to discuss the item, to
query the item, or to register a vote against the item.
ideally requests to remove an item from the consent calendar and the reason for the
request should be made during approval of the agenda. Items may also be removed when
the consent calendar is considered by the board.
Consent items should include, but are not limited to: approval of minutes, field trips,
conference requests, inter-district transfers, volunteers, personnel, etc.
An agenda item "Items removed From the Consent Calendar" will follow the consent
calendar on the agenda to facilitate consideration of removed items.

a

a

a

a

a

78

Page 12 of t22



PrincÍple Newly elected members to the Board of Trustees will likely be unfamiliar with state open
meeting laws, meeting procedural policies, board bylaws, the district budget, goals, and
other diskict related issues.

The governance team wants to provide all the tools necessary to help new board members
reach their potential to be a productive and effective member to the team.

Having resowces related to board meeting procedure and pertinent district information
will help prepare new board members for thet first board meeting and facilitate
intesration into the sovernance team.

a

a

a

Protocol Newly elected board members will receive the following resources upon election and prior to their
first board meeting:

. Brown Act Handbook, HUSD Governance Handbook and Governance
Calendar, Annual Board Meetíng Calendar, Board Bylaws/Policies, and CSBA
Professional Govemance Standards

. ' 
Strategic/Long Range Plan, District Budget, District Budget Development Calendar, and
District Rosource Document

The governance team will schedule a workshop/conversation meeting at the first board meeting
held with newly elected board member(s). This should include a mock meeting scenario to help
familiarize new board members with agenda item participation, making motions, and all other

. Establishing district multi-year and annual goals is critical to a forward thinking,
proactive Board that is committed to continuous learning as demonstrated in the LCAP

. Important to the work of the board is the ability to track progress over multiple years.
¡ Critical to governance work is data driven decision-making that promotes clarity of

direction, focus and alignment. Setting goals ensures that the work of the district is
focused.

board

Protrièol ' The annual goal setting process is linked to the District mission map and the
superintendent evaluation and will follow an established calendar.

June - review past year accomplishments and status of goals, set annual goals based on
the LCAP and establish a schedule of þrosress reports.

a

a

Page 13 of L22

79



PrincÍpIe It is çssential that important and accurate information be communicated to members of
the board, the staff and the communþ in as timely a fashion as possible.
The goven'.ance tearn recognizes that sorne situations have legal or other considerations
that may place restrictions on what mav be told to the media or oublic.

a

a

Protocol The governance team commits to speaking with one voice. The designated spokesperson will vary
depending on the issue or situation:

. Crisis/Disaster: The Superintendent is the primary spokesperson and may involve the
Board President at his/trer discretion.

¡ Meeting Information (e.g. board meetings, agenda items, study sessions): The Board
President and the Superintendent will serve as priq.ary spotespersons or may choose a
designee.

r Core Values /Vision / District Priorities / General District
Information: Ali governance team members may serve as spokespersons utilizing
cieveioperi anri agreeri upon key messageñ.

For requests via email:
. If a fustee recei..'es an ernail request from a rnernber of the public, the trsstee.¡.'i1!

respond and copy the tsoard President and Superintendent on the response.
o If the request is sent to the Superintendent, he/she will copy the answer to all trustees.
o If the e-mail is sent to some or all trustees, trustees will refer the request to board

president with a copy to the Superintendent (ifthe superintendent is not already copied).
The Board President or Superintendent will agree on which of them will respond, copying
aii irusiees.

For requests from the media:
e A trustee may ansr¡/er a request f¡om the media or recommend that the request be directed

to the board president or the Superintendent.
¡ If the trustee anslvers the request directly via e-mail, he/she will copy the Superintendent

a¡rí tsqard Frçsicic-ni. if lhe rrusiees ansrilers rhe reques.tr cürep¡-iy via conversation or phone.
call, he/she will inform the Superintendent and Board President.

r The Board Vice President will perform the role of the Board President if the Board
President is unavailable for an extended

¡ Board members want to be accessible, responsive, consistent and fair in dealings with
complaints and concerns from staff and the community.

r The board values open coÍrmunication and timely resolution of issues.
o Board members may take receiving complaints as an opportunity to explain the role of

trustees.

il
Principle

Protocol When approached with an issue or concem, trustees agree to:
¡ Listen openly, being careful to remain neutral.
¡ Remind staff and members of the community that no individual trustee has the authority

to solve the issue/concern.
. Encourage addressing this with the person who can most directly help with their concem,

e. g. teacher, principal, superintendent.
. As appropriate, explain the district complaint or grievance process.
¡ Trustees will notifu the superintendent of the issue or concern, as appropriate.

80

Page 14 of L22



Principle Conducting a governance selÊevaluation demonstrates accountability to the community
and the willinsness of the governance team to strenethen and imorove

Protocol

PrÍncÍple

The board supports continuous improvement through ongoing evaluation of governance
effectiveness.
The governance self-assessment provides an opportunity to reflect, evaluate, prioritize
and focus on strengthening the govemance team.
The board will participate in at least one workshop annually to review the governance
goals, governance team agreements andprocesses and to participate in a self-evaluation
process.

The assessment process will align with assessment of progress on district goals and the
superintendent evaluation.
At the conclusion of the annual gorrernance selËassessment, the board will reach
agreement on one to two govemance goals/objectives that are directly linked to the
district LCAP.

The goveming board recognizes the importance of maintaining the confidentiality of
information acquired as part of a board membeCs official duties.

a

a

O

a

a

Protoc'ôI ¡ The responsibility of the board includes being privy to closed sessions or confidential
information about district litigation, personnel, negotiations, superintendent evaluation, or
other issues permitted under the Brown Act.

o 'We will work to maintain the public's trust by not breaching confidentiality.
. If we inadvertently or accidentally violate a confidential issue, we will take immediate

responsibility for our action.
¡ Confidential items will be reserved for full board discussion.

The board wants to be informed about instructional practices, and the needs of the
students and staff with regard to school programs.

The board respects the busy schedule of staff and the anxiety that can be created by well-
meaning. but unannounced visits to schools.

a

a

Protocol r As a professional courtesy, trustees will schedule school visits.
. The superintendent and/or principal will accompany trustees on classroom visits.
¡ Trustees requesting a meeting with school staff or administration will schedule this

meeting through the superintendent.
¡ The superintendent will ensure that staff is aware of the process and protocols for trustees

visiting the classrooms.
¡ Board members are encouraged to visit schools and attend school events.

Page 15 of L22

81



Principle Board members involvement in the collective bargaining process ensures that
the District is represented weli by those selected to negotiate on behaif of the
Board end the community, while also ensuring that the ethical, fiscal and
educational goals of the HUSD community are represented in the actions
taken throushout thc collective barsainins process.

Protocol To achieve this, board members should:
¡ Participate by providing direction and guidance to thosc selected to represent the Board

(Disfrict Negotiating Team). Board members will not participate in the individual
negotiation sessions, either directly (at the table) or indirectly (observing the District's

. å:::[1i:i::i]ositive environrnenr possible ro supporr rhe negoriarion process; (e.g.,
Superiniendent will endeavor to hold regular monthly employee/employer relations
(ERR) meetings with each union's lead Negotiator and President). Superintendent and

¿--- 
-^-L-^ 

-L^ll ^--)^^--^- L^ 1-^1) 
-^--l^- ^-^^L:,^-^ .^ 

-^:-L^:- 
^^-^:-+^-t

positive communication.
¡ Set the District's collective bargaining narameters for its negotiation team.
¡ Expect, as the representative of the Board, that ihe Süper"ntendeni wül ensurc that the

Board, collectively and individually, is informed on the issues and strategies implemented
within the collective bargaining process.

¡ Expect, as the representative of the Board, that the Superintendent will recommend, for
approval of the Board, the ChiefNegotiator and the members of each of the Dishict's
-^-^+:^+:^- +^^*^l¡çEULr4trulr Lç4Áuò.

¡ Encourage open communication to all those impacted by negotiations, within allowed
paramcters.

. Expect, while the negotiation process is taking place that the Superintendent will be
avaiiabie to aciciress the chaiienges reiateci to the district. As the representative of the
Board. the Superintendent will guide the development of the bargaining strateg-v and will
be primariiy responsible for facilitating the collective bargaining proçess.

82

Page 16 oft22



EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE TEAMS

Effective teams value and respect their essential roles, reach mutual agreernent on the roles of the board and
superíntmdent, and strive to operate within them.

VALUE DRIVEN

^c
Betiefs
Visfon
Rioríties
Po[icies

WHAT

V

UNDERSTANDING GOVERNANCE ROLES*

H0w

;i"

SKILL DRIVEN

*Source: California School Board Association

PageLT of L22

83



Board Bylaws BB 9000(a)

R.OLE OF TtrIE BOARI)

The Governing Board has been elected by the communify to provide leadership and citizen oversight of the district.
The Board shall enswe that the district is responsive to the values, beliefs, and priorities of the community.

The Board shall work with the Superintendent to fulfili its major responsibilities, which include:

Setting the direction for the district through a process that involves the community, parents/guardians,
students, and staff and is focused on student leaming and achievement

(cf 0000 - Yision)
(cf. 0100 - Philosophy)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School Dístrict)

2. Establishing an effectiúe and efficient organizâtional structwe for the district by:

a- Employing the Superintendent and setting policy for hiring of other personnel

(cf. 2110 - Superíntendent Responsibilities and Duties)
(cf 2120 - Superintendent Recraitment and Selection)
(cf 2121 - Superintendent's Contract)
/-f tnnn /a^---^+- -^,1 D^I-.\
\uj. auúw - vufaçcPlù utLØ trvbcù/,

(cf 4l I I - Recruitment and Selection)
(cf 4211 - Recruitment and Selection)

þf. a3I I - Recmitment and Selection)

b. uverseerng {n€ cev€lopment ano acopuon or porlcles

(cf. 9310 - Board Policíes)

c

9.

Establishing academic expectations and adopting the curriculum and instructional materials

(cf. 601I - Academic Standards)
(cf. 6l4f - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)
(cf 6146.5 - Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements)
(cf. 6161 . I - Selection qnd Evaluation of Instractional Møterials)

d. Establishing budget priorities and adopting the budget

(cf 3000 - Concepts and Roles)
(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3312 - Contracts)

Providing safe. adequate facilities that support the districtJs instructional program

(cf.3517 - Facilities Inspection)
(cf.7110 - Facilities Master Plan)
(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development)
(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financíng)

f. Setting parameters for negotiations with employee organizations and ratifuing collective
bargaining agreements

84

Page 18 of t22



(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement)
(cf. 4 I 4 3 /4 2 4 3 - Negotiations/Consultation)

3. Providing support to the Superintendent and staff as they carry out the Board's direction by:

a. Establishing and adhering to standards of responsible govenmnce

(cf 9005 - Governance Standards)
(cf. 90l l - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf 9200 - Limits of Board Member Authority)
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

Making decisions and providing resources that support district priorities and goals

Upholding Board policies

Being knowledgeable about district programs and efforts in order to serve as effective
spokespersons

(cf. 9240 - Board Development)
(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evøluation)

4. Ensuring accountability to the public for the performance of the district's schools by:

a. Evaluating the Superintendent and setting policy for the evaluation of other personnel

(cf. 2140- Evaluøtion of the Superíntendent)

kf 41f5 - Evaluation/Supervísion)

þf. a2 1 5 - Evaluøtion/Supervision)
(cf. 43 1 5 - Evaluation/Supervision)

Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of policies

Serving as a judicial (hearing) and appeals body in accordance with law, Board policies, and
negotiated agreements

(cf. I3l2.l - Complaints Concerning Dßtrtct Employees)
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning htstructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.3 - Untþrm Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 1312.a - W¡illiøms Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimínation in Employment)

þf al17.3 - Personnel Reduction)

þf. a 1 I 8 - Dismissal/Suspension/Dis ciplinary Action)
(cf. 4144/4244/4344 - Complaints)

þf. a 2 I 8 - Dis mís s al / Sus p e n s i o n/D is c ip lin ary Ac ti o n)
(cf 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment)
(cf 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)
(cf. 5l I9 - Students Expelledfrom Other Districts)
(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension ønd Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaintsfor Speciøl Education)
(cf, 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

b.

c.

d.

b.

c.

Monitoring student achievement and program effectiveness and requiring program changes as

necessary
d.

Page 19 of L22

85



(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools)
(cf. 0520.3 - Title I Program Improvement Distrícts)
(cf 6162.5 - Student tlssessment)
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achíevement Tests)
(cf 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination)
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Insnacfionøl Prog'am)

e Monitoring and adjusting district finances

(cf. 3460 - Finqncíal Reports and Accountøbility)

f. Monitoring the collective bargaining process

5 Providing communit-v leadership and advocacy on behalf of students, the district's educational program, and
publit educâtion in order to build support within the local community and at the state and national levels

(cJ. UJ f U - School Accountabiltty Report Cqrd)
(cf 1020 - Youth Sentices)
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public)
(cf. I112 - Media Relations)
(cf I 160 - Political Processes)
(cf. 1400 - Relations bet'vveen Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)

(cf. 1700 - Relstions between Pri.¿ate lndustry and t!rc Sclzaals)
(cf. 9010 - Public Statements.)

The Board is authorized to establish and finance any program or activif,v r.hat is not in conflict with, inconsistent
with, orpreempted by law. (Education Code 35160)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
5304 Duties oJ'governing board (re school district electíons)
I 2400- I 2405 Authority to participate in federal programs
1 7 5 6 5 - I 7 5 9 2 B o ard duties re prop erty maintenønc e and control
33319.5 Implementation of authority of local agencies.
35000 District name
35010 Control ofdistrict; prescription and enforcement ofrules
35020-35046 Officers and agents
3 5 I 00-3 5 3 5 I Governing boards, especially:
35160-35185 Powers ønd duties
35291 Rules

Manøgement Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Maxtmizins Sehoel Board Governance
Profes s ton al G ov ern anc e S t and ar ds, N ov emb er 2 0 0 0
School Board Leadership: Tlle &¡le and Function of Caltf'omia's Schoo!Beqrds, 1996
NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS
The Kev Work ofSchool Boards, 2000
WEB SITES

CSBA: http ://www.csba.org
CSBA Governance Instintte: http : //www.csba.org/gi
National School Boards Association: http : //www.nsba. org

Bylaw IIAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

86

Page 20 ot t22



adopted: Hamilton City, California
Board Bylaws BB 9005(a)

GOVERNANCE STANDARDS

The Goveming Board believes that its primary responsibility is to act in the best interests of every student in the
district. The Board also has major commitments to parents/guardians, all members of the community, employees,
the state of California, laws pertaining to public education, and established policies of the district. To maximize
Board effectiveness and public confidence in district governance, Board members are expected to govern
responsibly and hold themselves to the highest standards of ethical conduct.

(cf 9000 - Role of the Boørd)
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

The Board expects its members to work with each other and the Superintendent to ensure that a high-quality
education is provided to each student. Each individual Board member shall:

l. Keep learning and achievement for all students as the primary focus

2. Value, support and advocate for public education

(cf. 9010 - Public Statements)

J Recognize and respect differences of perspective and style on the Board and among staff, students, parents
and the community

4. Act with dignity, and understand the implications of demeanor and behavior

5. Keep confidential matters confidential

(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Inþrmation)

6. Participate in professional development and commit the time and energy necessary to be an informed and
effective leader

(cf. 9240 - Board Development)

Understand the distinctions between Board and staff roles, and refrain from performing management
functions that are the responsibility of the Superintendent and staff

(cf 2 1 10 - Superintendent Responsibilíti,es and Duties)

8. Understand that authority rests with the Board as a whole and not with individuals

(cf. 9200 - Limíts of Board Member Authority)

Board members also shall assume collective responsibility for building unity and creating a positive organízational
culture. To operate effectively, the Board shall have a unity of purpose and:

Keep the district focused on learning and achievement for all students

Communicate a common vision

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf 0100 - Philosophy)

7

2.

Page 21 of 122

87



(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

3. Operate openly, with trust and integrity

4. Govern in a dignified and professional manner, treating everyone with civility and respect

5. Govem within Board-adopted policies and procedures

(cf.9310 - Board Policies)

6. Take coliective responsibility for the Board's perfornance

i. Periodically evaiuate its own effectiveness

(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation)

8. Ensure ôppôrrunities for the diverse range of views in the community to inform Board deliberations

(cJ. i22U - Ctnzen Aciwsory Comrwttees)
(cf. 932 j - Meeting Conduct)

Legal Reference.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
3 5 0 I 0 Po,ner of goveming bo ard to adopt rules for its own governance
35160 Board authority to act in any manner not conflíctíng with law
aafz/ LL:,, -1,JJf U4 äCtrUfrS Uy ïtUJUf It)/ VUtg

GOT/ER]¡MENT CODE
1090 Financial interest in contract
1098 Disclosure of confidential informatíon
I I 2 5- I I 29 Incompatible activities
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act
87 300-87 3 I 3 Conflict of interest code

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
CSBA Professional Governqnce Standards, 2000
Maximizins School Board Leadership: Boardsmønship, 1996
WEB SITES
CSBA: http : //vwvw.csba.org

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

88

Page22 of t22



Board Bylaws

PUBLIC STATEMENTS

BB 9010(a)

The Governing Board recognizes the responsibility of Board members in tfieir role as community leaders to
pafücipate in public discourse on matters of civic or community interest, including those involving the district, and
their right to freely express their personal views. However, to ensure communication of a consistent, unified
message regarding district issues, Board members are expected to respect the authority of the Board to choose its
representatives to communicate its positions and to abide by established protocols.

All public statements authorized to be made on behalf of the Board shall be made by the Board president or, if
appropriate, by the Superintendent or other designated representative.

(cf, 21 1 0 - Superintendent Responsibilities and Duties)
(cf.9121 - President)
(cf. 9200 - Limits of Board Member AuthorÌty)

'When 
speaking for the district, the Board encourages its spokespersons to exercise restraint and tact and to

communicate the message in a manner that promotes public confidence in the Board's leadership.

Board spokespersons shall not disclose confidential information or information received in closed session except
when authorizedby a majority of the Board. (Government Code 54963)

(cf, 9005 - Governance Standards)
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of ConfidentiaUPrivileged Information)

When speaking to community groups, members of the public, or the media, individual Board members should
recognize that their statements may be perceived as reflecting the views and positions of the Board. Board members
have a responsibility to identify personal viewpoints as such and not as the viewpoint of the Board.

(cf, 1100 - Communication with the Public)
(cf. 1112 - Mediø Relations)

In addition, the Board encourages members who participate on social networking sites, blogs, or other discussion or
informational sites to conduct themselves in a respectfirl, courteous, and professional manner and to model good
behavior for district students and the community. Such electronic communications are subject to the same standards
and protocols established for other forms of communication, and the disclosure requirements of the Califomia
Fublic Records Act may likewise apply to them.

þf. 1f 13 - Dßtrict and School Web Sites)
(cf. I I la - District-Sponsored Sociøl Medía)
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 9012 - Board Mernber Electronic Communicalions)

Legøl Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35010 Control of district; prescription ønd enforcement of rules
GOVERNMENT CODE
6250-6270 California Public Records Act
54960 Actions to stop or prevent violation of meeting provísions
54963 ConJìdential inþrmation tn closed session

Manøgement Resources:
I|IEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org

Bylaw HAMILTONUNIFTED SCHOOLDISTRICT

Page 23 of 122

89



adonte¡I. Ffcmiltnn f-ih/ l-âliF^ffi ;â

90

Page24- ot L22



Board Bylaws

DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL/PRIVILEGED INFORMATION

BB 9011(a)

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of maintaining the confidentiality of information acquired as part
of a Board member's official duties. Confidential/privileged information shall be released only to the extent
authorized by law.

(cf. 9000 - Role of the Boørd)
(cf 9005 - Governance Standards)
(cf. 9010 - Public Statements)

Disclosure of Closed Session Information

A Board member shall not disclose confidential information acquired during a closed session to a person not entitled
to receive such information, unless a majority of the Board has authorized its disclosure. (Government Code 54963)

Confidential information means a communication made in a closed session that is specifically related to the basis for
the Board to meet lawfully in closed session. (Government Code 54963)

(cf 4l19.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 9321 - Closed Sesston Purposes and Agendas)
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)

The Board shall not take any action against any person for disclosing confidential information, nor shall the
disclosure be considered a violation of the law or Board policy, when the person is: (Government Code 54963)

Making a confidential inquiry or complaint to a district attorney or grand jury concerning a perceived
violation of law, including disclosing facts necessary to establish the illegality or potential illegality of a
Board action that has been the subject ofdeliberation during a closed session

Expressing an opinion concerning the propriety or legality ofBoard action in closed session, including
disclosure ofthe nature and extent ofthe illegal or potentially illegal action

3. Disclosing information that is not confidential

Other Disclosures

A Board member shall not disclose, for pecuniary gain, confidential information acquired in the course of hislher
official duties. Confidential information includes information that is not a public record subject to disclosure under
the Public Records Act, information that by law may not be disclosed, or information that may have a material
financial effect on the Board member. (Govenrment Code 1098)

I

2

Page 25 of L22

91



BB eOl1(b)

DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL/PRfVILEGED INFORMA'TION (continued)

(cf. 4Í 12.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Disclosures excepted ûom this prohibition are those made to law enforcement officials or to the joint legislative
audit committee when reporting on improper governmental activities. (Government Code 1098)

Legøl Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
350 I 0 Power of governing board to ødopt rules for its own governance
J)110 t,toîea sessrcn
EWDENCE CODE
1 0 4 0 Privil ege for ffi cíal information
GOT'ERNMENT CODE
1098 Public fficials and employees re confidential information
3549.1 Meeting ønd negotiating in public educational employnent
6 2 5 0- 62 7 0 Insp ection of pub lic rec ords
549 50-54963 Brown Act, especially :
54956.8 Open meeting laws
54956.9 Closed meetingfor pending litigation
54957 Closed session; "employee" defined; exclusíon ofwituesses
54957. ! Subsequer.t pu-bllc report q-nd rollcq-l! ttot4; emplo)¡ee ryq-tters in clesed session

54957.5 Public records
54957.6 Closed session; representatives with employee organízation
54957.7 Reasonsfor closed session
54963 Confidential information in closed session
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
80 Ops.Cal.Atn.Gen. 231 (1997)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Professional Govetnance Standards, Novemb er 2 0 00
Maximizins School Board Leadership. 1996
WEB SITES
C SB A : http : //www. csb a. org

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

92

Page 26 of L22



adopted: Hamilton City, California

Page27 of t22

93



Rn--À Þ.'l-*'<

BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

Þrl Ofi l1lo\L'u )\¿ r4\.+l

The Governing Board recognizes that electronic communication among Board members and between Board
members, district administration, and members of the public is an efficient and convenient way to communicate and

expedite the exchange of information and to help keep the community informed about the goals, programs, and
achievements of the distríet and its schools. Board members shall exçrcise caution so as to ensure that electronic
communications arc not uscd as a mcans for thc Board to deliberate outside of an agendized Board meeting.

(cf, 1100 - Communication with the Public)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)
(cf 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materiais)

A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of electronic communications of
any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the
subject matter jurisdiction of thc Board. (Gc.vernment Code 54952.2';

(cf 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Examples of permissible eleckonic communications conceming district business include, but are not limited to,
dissemination of Board meeting agendas and agenda paekets, teports of aetivities from thc Superintendent, and
reminciers regarding meeting times, dates, and piaces.

Board members shall make every effort to ensure that their electronic communications confoÍn to the same
-+--¡^-.¡- --,1 ^-^+^^^'l^ ^^i^Ll:-L^,1 S^* ^+L-- f'^*. ^f ^^**"-:^^i:^- ^ 

T¡^^-l ,--*L^- 
-^.' '-.^^-¡ ."ùL4ttu4tuù 4uu PruLulurù LùL4uilùlrvu ruf uru!¡ rulrrrù ur urr. ^ uv4rs r¡rwrr¡vwr ru4J lwùyvr¡s, sù

appropriate, to an electronic communication received from a member of the community and should make clear that
hislher response does not necessarily reflect the views of the Board as a whole. Any complaint or request for
inforrration should be forwarded to the Superintendent in accordance with Board bylaws and protocols so that the

issue may receive proper consideration and be handled through the appropriate district process. As appropriate,

communication received from the press shall be forwarded to the designated district spokesperson.

(cf. I I I 2 - Media Relations)
(cf. l3l2.l - Compløints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 1 3 12.2 - Camplaints Concerning Instructional Mqteríals)
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniþtm Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards)
(cf.9l2l - Board President
(cf. 920A - Limits of Board Mernber Authority)
(cf 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

In order to minimize the risk of improper disclosure, tsoard members shall avoid retèrence to contidential
information and information acquired during closed session.

94

Page 28 of t22



BB e0l2(b)

BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC COMMLTNICATIONS (continued)

(cf. 41 12.6/42I2.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
(cf, 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Pñvileged Information)
(cf, 932 1 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

Board members may use electronic communications to discuss matters other than district business with each other,
regardless of the number of members participating in the discussion.

Like other writings concerning district business, a Board member's electronic communication may be subject to
disclosure under the California Public Records Act.

(cf. I3a0 - Access to District Records)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35140 Time and place of meetings
3 5 145 Public meetings
3 5 1 4 5. 5 Agenda ; public participation; regulations
3 5 147 Open meeting law exceptions and applications
GOIIERNMENT CODE
1 I 135 State programs and activities, discrimination
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially:
54952.2 Meeting, defined
54953 Meetings to be open ønd public; attendance
54954.2 Agenda posting requirements, boørd øctions

Manøgement Resources
C,gBA PUBLICATIONS
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meetins Laws. rev. 2006
ATTORNEY GENERÀL PUB LICATIONS
The Brown Act: Onen Meetinss for Lesislative Bodies. 2003
LEAGUE OF CITIES PUBLICATIONS
Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, rev. 2007
WEB SITES
CSBA: http ://www.csba.org
CSBA, Agenda Online: http://wwnu.csba.org/Services/Services/GovernanceTechnologt/AgendaOnline.aspx
Institutefor Local Government: http:/Atnuw.cacities.org/index jsp?zone:ilsg

Bylaw IIAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton Cify, California

Page 29 of 122

95



2

J

4

Board Bylaws BB 9100(a)

ORG,dNIZATION

Annual Organizational Meeting

Each year, the Governing Board shall hold an annual organizational meeting. ln any year in which a regular election
of clistrict Boartl members is condrrcted, the organizational meeting shall be held within a lS-day penod beginning
from the date upon which a Board member elected at that election takes office. During non-election years, the
meeting shall be held within the same 15-day period on the calendar. (Education Code 35143)

The day and time of the annual meeting shal! be selected by the Board at its regular meeting held immediately pricr
to the first day of the 15-day period. On behalf of the Board, the Superintendent shall notify the County
Superintendent of Schools of the day and time selccted. Within 15 days þrior to ftc datc of tåe annual meeting. the

clerk of the Board, with the assistance of the Supenntendent, shall notrty m wnting all tsoard members and
members-elect of the date and time selected for the meeting. (Education Code 35I43)

At this meeting the Board shall:

l. Elect a president and a clerk and/or vice president from its members

Appoint the Superintendent as secrstary to the Board

Authorize signatures

Approve a sehedule of regrrlar meetings for the year and a Board govemarìce calendar siating the time
when the Board will address important governance matters

Designate Board representatives to serve on committees or commissions of the district, other public
agencies, or organizations with which the district parfixers or collaborates

(cf. 9140 - Board Representatives)

Review and/or consider resources that define and clarifr the Board's governance and leadership roles and

responsibilities including, but not limited to, govemance standards, meeting protocols, Board rules and

bylaws, and other Board development materials

(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standørds)
(cf. 92 j0 - Orientation)
(cf. 9240 - Boqrd Development)
(cf 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9323 - Meetíng Conduct)

5

6.

96

Page 30 of t22



BB er00(b)

ORGANIZATION (continued)

Election of Oflïcers

The Board shall each year elect its entire slate ofofficeis-

The election of Board officers Shall be conducted during an open session of the annual organizational meeting.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
5017 Tenn of ffice
35143 Annual organizational meeting date, and notice
35145 Public meetings
GOT.ENII¡MENT CODE
54953 Meetings to be open and public; attendance
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
68 Ops.Cal.Atn.Gen. 65 (1985)
59 Ops.Cøl.Attv.Gen. 619, 621-622 (1976)

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOLDISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

Page 31 of t22

97



Board Bylaws BB 9110

TERMS OF OFFICE

The Governing Board shall consist of five members whose terms shall be staggered so that as nearly as practicable,
one half of the members shall be elected in each odd-numbered year.

The term of offtce for members elected in regular elections shall be four years, commencing on the first Friday in
December next succeeding their election. (Education Code 5017)

Board member terms expire four years after ¡'neir initiai eiection on the first Friday in Decêmber foüowing the
election of new members. (Education Code 5000)

A member whose te-m has expired shail conthue to diseharge the duties of the o{fiee u¡til his&er successor has
qualifted by taking the oath of offlce. (Government Code 1302, l3{5ü; Education Code 5017)

(cJ. 922U - Uoverning Board b,Iecttons)
(cf. 9223 - Filling Vacancies)
(cf.9224 - Oath orAffirmation)
(cf. 9250 - Remuneration, Reimbursetnent, and Other Benefits)

Lega,l. Refere.nce:
EDUCATIONCODE
lnnn-fi?1 Elealinn nf sahnnl rti.strirl hnorà memher.s1t --'-""-

35010 Control of district
J|l.)l/ Boarri members; number, eiectrcn anci terms
35107 Eligibility
GOVEN¡VMENT CODE
1 302 Continuance in ffice until quøliJicøtion of successor
I 303 Exercising -functions of ffice without høving qualified
1360 Necessity of taking constitutional oath

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted; Hamilton City, California

98

Page 32 ot L22



Board Bylaws BB e121(a)

PRESIDENT

The Goveming Board shall elect a president from among its members to provide leadership on behalf of the Board
and the educational community it serves.

(cf. 9000 - RoIe of the Board)
(cf 9005 - Governance Standards)
(cf 9100 - Organizøtton)

The president shall presidc at all Board meetings. He/she shall:

l. Call the meeting to order at the appointed time

2. Announce the business to come before the Board in its proper order

3. Enforce the Board's policies relating to the conduct of meetings and help ensure compliance with applicable
requirements of the Brown Act

4. Recognize persons who desire to speak, and protect the speaker who has the floor from disturbance or
interference

5. Explain what the effect of a motion would be if it is not clear to every member

6. Restrict discussion to the question when a motion is before the Board

7. Rule on issues ofparliamentary procedure

8. Put motions to a vote, and state clearly the results of the vote

9. Be responsible for the orderly conduct of all Board meetings

(cf. 932j - Meeting Conduct)

The president shall perform other duties in accordance with law and Board policy including, but not limited to:

l. Signing all instruments, acts and orders necessary to carryr out state requirements and the will of the Board

2. Consulting with the Superintendent or designee on the preparation of the Board's agendas

(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materíals)

3. Working with the Superintendent to ensure that Board members have necessary materials and information

Page 33 oÍL22

99



BB e121(b)

PRESIDENT (continued)

4. Subject to Board approval, appointing and dissolving all committees

(cf. 9130 - Board Commiffees)

5. Calling such meetings of the Board as he/she may deem necessary, giving notice as prescribed by law

(cf. 9320 - Meetings ønd Notices)
(cf. 932 1 - Closed Session Purpases and Agendas)

6. Representing the district as govemance spokesperson, in conjunction with the Superintendent

(cJ. ! I I 2 - iWeci¡s Reiations)
q

The president shall have the same rights as other members of the Board, including the right to move, second, discuss
and vote on all questions before the Board.

When the president resigns or is absent or disabled, the clerk shall perform the president's duties. When both the
presid,ent and clerk are absent or disabied, the Board shaii choose a president pro tempcre tc perfcnn the president's
cluties.

/rf Ql )? - flo"l¿\
v'e' rv/

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35022 President ofthe board
3 5 I 43 Annual organizational meetíngs; dates and notíce
GOTERNMENTCODE
54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act

Manøgement Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
B oard Presidents' Handbo ok. revised 2 002
CSBA Professional Governance Standards, 2000
Maximizing School Board Leadership: Boardsmønship, 1996
WEB SITES

CSBA: http ://www.csba.org

Bylaw IIAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, California

100

Page 34 of L22



Board Bylaws BB9122

SECRETARY

The Governing Board shall appoint the Superintendent to serve as secretary to the Board. The secretary to the
Board shall be responsible for maintaining an accurate and complete record of all Board proceedings and shall:

1. Prepare, distribute and maintain the Board agenda

(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

2. Record, distribute and maintain the Board minutes

(cf. %2a - Minutes and Recordings)

3. Maintain Board records and documents

4. Conduct official correspondence for the Board

5. As directed by the Board, sign and execute official papers

6. Perform other duties as assigned by the Board

(cf. 2111 - Superintendent Governance Standards)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35025 Secretary ønd bookkeeper
35143 Annual organizøtional meetings; dates and notice
3 5250 Duty to keep certain records and reports
GOVERNMENT CODE
54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
CSBA Professional Goiemance Standards. 2000
Maximizine School Board Leadership: Boardsmanship. 1996
WEB SITES
CSBA : http : //www.csba. org

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton Cify, Califomia

Page 35 of L22

101



Board Bylaws BB9t23

CLEIiK

The Governing Board shall elect a clerk from its own membership at the annual organizational meeting. (Education

Code 35143)

(cf. 9100 - Organization)

The duties of the clerk shall be to:

i. Certify or attost to actions taken by the Board when required

2. Maintain such other records or reports as required by law

3. Sign documents on behalf of the district as directed by the Board

4. Serve as presiding officer in the absence of the president

(cf 9l2l - President)

5. Notiff Board members and members-elect of the date and time forthe annual organizational meeting

6. Perform any other duties assigrred by the Board

Legai R.eference:
EDUCATIONCODE
I 7 5 9 3 Repair and supervision of property (duty of district clerþ
35038 Appointment oJ'clerk by county superintendent of schools
35039 Dismissal of clerk
3 5 I 2 I Appointment of clerk in certain city and high school districts
3 5 143 Annual organizational meetings
35250 Duty to keep certøin records and reports
38113 Duty of clerk (re provision of school supplies)
GOVERNMENT CODE
54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act

Manøgement Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
CSBA Professional Govemance Standards. 2000
Maximizing School Board Leadership: Boardsmanshíp. 1996
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org

Bylaw IIAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

LO2

Page 36 of t22



Board Bylaws BBet2a@)

ATTORNEY

The Governing Board recognizes the complex legal environment in which districts operate and desires reliable,
high-quality legal advice at reasonable rates. In order to meet the district's legal needs, the Board may contract with
counly counsel, attorneys in private practice, or appoint legal counsel as a district employee or independent
contractor. The Board also supports pwsuing collaborative legal efforts with other agencies and districts as

appropriate.

(cf, 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)

þf. a3I2.l - Contracts)
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)
(cf. 9260 - Legal Protection)

Duties of Legal Counsel

The district's legal counsel may: (Education Code 35041.5)

1 Render legal advice to the Board and the Superintendent or designee

2. Serve the Board and the Superintendent or designee in the preparation and conduct of district litigation and
administrative proceedings

J Render advice on school bond and tax increase measures and prepare the necessary forms for the voting of
these measures

4. Perform otfier administrative duties as assigned by the Board and Superintendent or designee

Retaining Legal Counsel

When the district is seeking legal advice or representation, the Superintendent or designee shall initiate a Request for
Proposals (RFP) to advertise and solicit proposals for legal services. In evaluating the proposals, the Board and
Superintendent shall consider the firm's or attomey's background, experience, and reputation in education law;
experience advising or representing school districts in Califomia; fees; and experience of attorneys at the firm who
will provide legal services.

The Board and Superintendent shall annually evaluate the performance of the firm and./or attorneys providing legal
services in.such areas as efficiency and adequacy ofadvice; results obtained forthe district; reasonableness offees;
and responsiveness to and interactions with the Board, administration, and community. Upon a successful
evaluation, the Board may renev/ the agreement with legal counsel without initiating an RFP.

Page 37 of 122

103



BB er24(b)
ATTORNEY (continued)

The Doard may also contract for temporary, specialized legal services without initiating an RFP when a majority of
the Board determines that the unique demands of a particuiar issue or emergency sihration so requires.

(cf. 2 1 2 I - Superintendent's Contract)

Cunf ncting Legnl Counsel

At his/her discretion, the Board president or Superintendent may confer with district legal counsel subject to any
iimits or parameters estabiished by the Board. in adrliúon, the Superintendent or Board president may contact
disirict legai counsei to provide the Boarci with iegai iniormation or advice when so directeci by a majoriry of the
Board.

Individual Board mernbers other than the Board president mây not seek advice from district legal counsel on matters
of district business unless so authorized by a majoriry of the BoarC.

(cf. 9200 - Limits of Board Member Ar,ûhority)
(cf.9321 - Closed Session Purposes andAgendas)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
3 504 I Adninistnalite adviser
3 504 I. 5 Legal c.ou.nsel

35161 Powers and duties of governing board
3 5 200-3 52 l 4 Liahilities. especiall¡t:
35204 Contract with øttorney in private practice
J52U5 Contract þr iegai serwces
GOI/ERNMENT CODE
814-895.8 Liability of public entities ønd publíc employees
995-996.6 Defense of public employees
26520 Legøl services to school districts
53060 Specíal services and advice

Management Resorrces:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2007
Maximizing School Board Leadership: Boardsmanship, 1996
NATIONAL SCHOOL B OARDS ASSOCUTION PUB LICATIONS
Selectinø and Vforkins with a School ttôrnev: A C¡irJe far School Bnnrã,s I 997
WEB SITES

CSBA : http : //www.csba.org
Caltforruia Council of School Attorneys:
http://www.csba.org/LegislationAndLegal/Legal/CaliforniaCouncilOJSchoolAttonzar-s-aspx
Nationøl School B oards Association : http : //www.nsba. org
St ate B ar of C a lifo rn i a : http : / /www. c alb ar. c a. gov

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

104

Page 38 of t22



Board Bylaws BB 9130(a)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Governing Board may establish a commiftee whenever it determines that such a committee would benefit the
district by providing diverse viewpoints, specialized knowledge or expertise, or increased efficiency. Such
committees may be subcommittees of the Board or committees that include members of the community, staff, or
other stakeholder groups.

(cf. 1220 - Cítizen Advisory Committees)
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups)

þf. 91a0 - Board Representøtíves)

Upon establishing a committee, the Board shall clearþ define the committee's purpose, any timeline for completion
of assigned responsibilities, any stakeholder groups or individuals to be represented on the committee, length of time
that committee members are expected to serve, and expectations for reporting to the Board andl/or the
Superintendent or designee. Unless specifrcally authorized by the Board to act on its behalf, the committee shall act
in an advisory capacity.

Except for subcommittees of the Board, committee members shall, as appropriate, be recommended by the
Superintendent or designee and appointed by the Board president, subject to Board approval.

(cf. 9121 - President)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide committee members with information and assistance necessary for the
fulfillment of the committee's charges, and may serve as a non-voting advisor to the committee at the discretion of
the Board,

'Whenever so charged, committees may actively seek input and participation by parents/guardians, staff, community,
and students and may consult with local public boards and agencies.

Any committee not required by law may be dissolved when its duties or term has been completed or whenever the
Board deems necessary.

Committee Meetings

Unless otherwise exempted by law, Board-created committees shall provide public notice of their meetings and
conduct meetings in accordance with Government Code 54950-54963 (the Brown Act).

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

However, Board subcommittees composed solely of less than a quorum of the members of the Board are not subject
to open meeting laws unless they are standing committees. Standing committees of the Board, irrespective of
membership, are those that have a continuing subject matter jurisdiction or a meetìng schedule established by action
of the Board. (Govemment Code 54952)

Standing committees with a continuing subject matter jurisdiction include, but are not limited to, those responsible
for providing advice on budgets, audits, Board policy, contracts, and personnel matters at the Board's request.

(cf. 3100 - Budget)

þf. 3a30 - Investing)
(cf.9310 - Board Policies)

Page 39 of t22

105



'When 
a majority of the members of the Board attsnd an open and noticed meeting of a standing committee, the

Board members who are not members of the standing committee shall attend only as observers. (Government Code
s4es2.2)

'Whenever 
any acivisory or standing committee, inciuding a committee not otherwise subject to the Brown Act, posts

a meeting agenda at least 72 hou¡s in advance of the meeting, that meeting shall be considered as a regular meeting
of the Board for purposes of the Brown Act and therefore must be held within district boundaries unless otherwise
authorized by law. (Government Code 54954)

Cornmittees may me€t in a closed session during a reg'.rlar or special meeting only for those purposes specifically
authorized by law for closed sessions held by the Board.

(cf. 932i - CloserÌ SessÌon Purposes anri Agencias)

Legal Reþrence:
EDUCATIONCODE
35010 Control of district; prescrþtion and enforcement of rules
15u24 Execut ve eommütee
3 5 1 60 Authoríty of goveming boards
35160.1 Broad authority ofschool districts
GOVERNMENT CODE
54950-54963 The Brown Act, especially
54952 Legislative body, definition
il0í) ) i\olìøitinø nf waøtimo

54954 Time and place of reg.tlar meetings: special meetings; emergencies
54954.3 Opportunityfor public to address legislative body
54957 Closed session purposes
COURTDECISIONS
,f razer v. uwon unûrcd ,Jcnoot utstrrcr, (tvvJ) rõ a-at.App.4tn /õr
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
8l Ops.Cal.Attv.Gen. 156 (1998)
80 Ops.Cal.Atn.Gen. 308 (1997)
79 Ops.Cal.AW.Gen. 69 (1996)

Manøgement Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, 2009
WEB SITES
CSBA: htE : //www.csba.org
N a tio n al S ch o ol B o ards As s o ci øti on : http : / /www. ns b a. or g

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

106

Page 40 of 122



Board Bylaws BB 9140(a)

BOARD REPRESENTATIVES

The Governing Board recognizes that effective performance of its community leadership responsibilities may
require its participation in diskict or communit¡r committees on matters of concem to the district and its students.
As needed, the Board may appoint any of its members to serve as its representative on a district committee or on a
committee of another public agency or organization of which the Board or district is a member or to which the
Board is invited to participate.

(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)
(cf. 170A - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools)
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)
(cf. 9130 - Board Commíttees)
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)
(cf. 9j20 - Meetings and Notices)

When making such appointments, the Board shall clearly specify the authority and responsibilities of the
representative(s), including, but not limited to, reporting back to the Board regarding committee activities and/or
actions. Board representatives shall not exercise the authority of the Board without prior Board approval.

(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards)
(cf. 9200 - Limits of Board Member Authority)

If a committee discusses a topic on which the Board has taken a position, the Board member shall express the
position of the Board. When contributing his/her own ideas or opinions, the representative shall clearly indicate that
he/she is expressing his/her individual idea or opinion.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf, 9010 - Pttblic Statements)

Board Representative to Elect Members of County Committee on School District Organization

At its annual organizational meeting, the Board shall designate one Board member as its representative to elect
members to the counly committee on school district organization. (Education Code 35023)

(cf 9100 - Organization)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
4000-4014 County committees on school district organizatíon
35020-35046 School distríct officers and agents (power of governing board to employ or appoint)
3 5 I 60 Authority of governing boards
GOVERNMENT CODE
54952.2 Meetings

Manøgement Resot trces :
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Calìforniø Department of Eùrcation District Orsanization Handbook. 2010

Bylaw HAMILTON {JNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 41 of t22

107



cdnnferl' Flrmilfnn l';fr/ l-âlifôm;âv¡ÙJ r vc¡¡av^¡úÈ

Board Bvlaws BB 9200(a)

LIMITS OF BOARD MEMBER AUTHORITY

The Governing Board recognizes that the Board is the unit of authority over the district and that a Board member
has no individual authority. Board members shall hold the education of students above any partisan principle, group
interest, or personal interest.

(cf. 1160 - Poltticøl Processes)
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)
(cf. 9005 - Goyernance Siandards)
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)
/^f ñ)a) tt^^a:-^^ n^-^J,-^r\
lcJ. zJzJ - tvteel¿t¿g LUf,LtucL/

Unless agreed to by the Board as a whole, individual members of the Board shall not exercise any administrative
responsibility with respect to the schools or command the services of any school employee. Individual Boa¡d
rnembers shall submit requests for i¡formation to t}re Superintendent. Board members shall refer Board-related
correspondence to the Superintendent for forwarding to the Board or for placement on the Board's agenda, as

appropriate.

(cf. 1340 - Access to Dístrict Records)
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)
/^t' nn r, n: ^ ^, ^ -- -.-^ ^{ î ^--a ) ^-- ! -t /D--:- -:f ^- ^ J !-- î^---- - ¿: --- \
lLJ. 7U t t - ULSCLUJU| e UJ WU|U tuet,Lru,lf t ¿vLrCteU ttquf r,Uttutt,l
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

T¡¡li',i.|""t Þ^"*'{ 
-^*harc 

rln nnf h^"^ +h^ ar,+h-*i+:¡ }n ¡ccnlr¡a.-^-*!-;-+. À-" Þ^--l *--1"-- .^^- --h-,{ ,li---+1,¡

by a person with a complaint shall refer the complainant to the Superintendent or designee so that the problem may
receive proper consideration and be handled through the appropriate district Brocess.

(cf 1 312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instractional Materíals)
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Compløint Procedwres)
(cf. I j12.4 - Williams Unifurm Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the Dßtrict)
(cf 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)
(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards ønd Complaintsfor Special Education)

A Board member whose child is attending a district school should be aware of his/her role as a Board member when
interacting with district employees about his/her child. Because hislher position as a Board member may inhibit the
performance of school personnel, the Board member should inform the Superintendent or designee before
volunteering in hislher child's classroom.

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)
(cf. 5020 - Parent Righß and Responsibtlities)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

108

Page 42 of 122



BB e200(b)

LIMITS OF BOARD MEMBER AUTHORITY (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide a copy of the state's open meeting laws (Brown Act) to each Board
member and to anyone who is elected to the Board but has not yet assumed office.

Board members and persons elected to the Board who have not yet assumed office are responsible for complying
with the requirements of the Brown Act. (Government Code 54952.1)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
2 00-2 62.4 Prohibition of dis crimination
7054 Use of district property
35010 Control of district; prescription and enforcement of rules
3 5 1 00-i 5 3 5 I Governing boards, especially:
35160-35184 Powers and duties
35291 Rules
35292 Yisits to schools (Board members)
5 1 1 0 1 Ríghts of parents/guardians

CODE
54950-54962 The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially:
54952.1 Member of a legislative body of a local agency
54952.7 Copies of chapter to members of legislatìve bodlt

Man a g ernent Res ourc es :
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
CSBA Professional Governance Standards. 2000
Maximtzins School Board Leødership: Boardsmanship. 1996
WB SITES
C SB A : http : //www. csb a. org

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

Page 43 of L22

109



Board Bylaws

GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS

889220(a)

Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, if he/she is l8 years of
age or older, a citizen of California, a resident oftåe school diskict, a registered voter, and not legally disqualified
from holding civil office. Any person who has been convicted of a feiony involving the giving, accepting, or
offering of a bribe, embezzlement or theft of public funds, extortion, perjury, or conspiracy to cori]mit any such
crime, under Califomia law or the law of another state, the United States of America, or another country, is not
eligible to be a candidate for office or be a Board member except when he/she has been granted a pardon in
accordance with iaw. (Education Cotie 35i07; Elections eode 20)

A district employee elected to the Board shall resiga his/her employment before being swcrn in or shall havs his/her
employment automatica-lly temúnated upon behg swom hto office- (F.duca-tion Code 35L07)

(cf.9224 - Oath of ffirmation)
GJ: 9¿ 7u - ConJtrct oi Interest)

To reduce costs associated with conducting elections, the Board may consolidate Board elections with the local
municipal or statewide primary or general election. Board election procedures shall be conducted in accordance
with state and federal law.

/¡{ Qi lll - Towq af /)#ì¡a\vJ vJJ.vv)'

Electing Board Members

Board members may reside anywhere within the diskict's boundaries and shall be elected by all voters in the district.

To ensure ongoing compliance with the California and federal Voting Rights Acts, the Board may review the
district's Board election method to determine whether any modification is necessary due to changes in the district's
population or any of its racial, color, or language minority group composition. The review shall be based on the
Superintendent or designee's report to the Board after the release ofeach decennial federal census.

If the Board determines that a change is necessary, it shall adopt a resolution at an open meeting specifying the
change(s) and shall, in accordance with Education Code 5019 or other applicable provisions of law, obtain approval
f¡om the county committee on school district organization having jurisdiction over the district.

(cf 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Campaign Conduct

In order to help protect the public's trust in the electoral process as well as the public's confidence in the Board and
district, the Board encorrages all candidates to sign and adhere to the principles in the Code of Fair Campaign
Practices pu{suant ts Eleetions Code20440.

110

Page 44 of L22



2.

BB 9220(b)

GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS (continued)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscriminqtion in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards)

Statement of Qualifications

The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, or mailing of candidate statements
filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a condition of having candidate statements included in the voter's
pamphlet, the district may require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these costs to the district in
advance pursuant to Elections Code 13307.

On the l25th day prior to the day fxed for the general district election, the Board secretary or his/her designee shall
deliver a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to the county elections official describing both of
the following: (Elections Code 10509)

The elective ofFrces of the district to be filled at the general election and which offrces, if any, are for the
balance ofan unexpired term

Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of qualifications pursuant
to Elections Code 13307

(cf. 9223 - Filling Vøcancies)

Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 400 words. (Elections Code 13307)

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections

Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to the Board, the
Board shall schedule a runoff election in accordance with law. (Education Code 5016)

Legal Reference: (see next pøge)

Page 45 o( L22

111



BB 9220(c)

GOVERNING BOARÐ ELECTIONS (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
1000 Composition, and tntstee area, county board of education
1006 Qualificøtionsfor holding ffice, county board of educøtian
5000-5033 Elections
5220-f2sl Eiections
5 3 00- 5 3 04 Genera I provisions (conduct oJ' elections)
5 320-5 3 29 Order and call of elections
I ?¿n-ç 1¿ I fnøcnlìrtolínn n{ elentìnn c

536ü-5 363 Election nohce
5380 Compensatidn (of election fficer)
5390 Qualifications aJ voters
5420-5426 Cost of elections
5 44A- 5 44 2 Miscellaneous provisions
7054 Use of district property
35107 Eligibility; school district employees
35177 Campaign expenditures or contributions
35239 CompensatianofgoverningboardmemberafdisTticîs **ithlessrkanTAAÐA
ELECTIONS CODE
20 Public ffice eligibility
l lO) | nnnl alortinøc onhnnl rliafv;?t olo¡tiam

220 I Grounds for cancellation
4000-4004 Elections conducted whelly by mail
I 0400-1 04 I I Consolidation of elections
10509 Notice of election by secretøry
I 0600- I 0604 School district electíons
I 3307 Candidate's statement
1 3 3 09 Candidate's støtement, indigence
14025-14032 Caffirniø Voting Rights Act
20440 Code of Fair Campaign Practices
GOTEN¡VMENT CODE
I02 I Conviction of crtme
1097 lllegøl participation in public contra,ct
12940 Nondiscrimination, Føir Emplayment and Housing Act
81000-91014 Political Reþrm Act
PENAL CODE
68 Bribes
74 Acceptance of gratuity
424 Embezzlement a,ndfalsification of accounts by pubtic fficers
661 Removalfor neglect or violøtion of fficial duty

Legal Reference conttnued: (see next page)

LT2

Page 46 of L22

BB 9220(d)



GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS (continued)

Legal Reference: (continued)
CALIF O RNIA C ONS TI TUTI O N
Article 2, Section 2 Voters, qualiJìcations
Article 7, Section 7 Conflícting ffices
Article 7, Section I DisquøliJìcationfrom ffice
UNITED STATES CODE. TITLE 42
I 97 3-1 97 3aa-6 Voting Rights Act
COURTDECISIONS
Rev v. Madera UniÍìed School District, (2012) 138 Cal. Rptr. 3d 192
Randallv. Sorrell, (2006) 126 S.Ct.2479
Sanchez v. Citv of Modesto. (2006) 5 I Cøl.Rptr.3d 82 I
Dusch v. Davis, (1967) 387 U.S. 112
ATT O RNEY G E NE RAL OPINI O NS
8 5 Ops. Cal.Atn.Gen. 49 (2002)
83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000)
8 I Ops. Cal.Atty.Gen. 98 ( I 998)
69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

Manøgement Resources:
WB SITES
C S BA : http : //www. csb a^ org
C alifornt a S e cret ary of St at e's Offi c e : http : //www. s s. c a. gov
F air P o liti c al Prøctic e s C om m is s io n : http : //www.fpp c. c ct. gov
Ins titut e for Lo c aI S e lf Gov ernm ent : http : //www. c a-il g. or g

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page47 ott22

113



adopted: I{aeilton Cþ, C-alifomia
Board Bylaws B.89222

RESIGNATION

A Governing Board member who wishes to resign may do so by filing a written resignation with the County
Superintendent of Schools. (Education Code 5090)

A copy shall be given to the tsoard sccrctary.

The written resignation is effective when filed, except when a deferred effective date is specified in the resignation.
(Education Code 5090)

A Board member rrlay not defer the effective date of his/her resignation for more than 60 days after filing.
lF¡fr'^.+i^- a^,{- <nol \

vrJvt J|JJ rr.

A written resignation, whether speciffing a deferred effective date or otherwise, shall be irrevocable upon being
filed. (Education Code 5090)

Upon resignation, the Board member may continue to exercise all his/her polryers, save that of voting for a successor,
until thc cffective date ofresignation. (Education Code 35 1 78)

(cf, 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

f --^t Ð-{^--,^---uc6u. ttþ.|þt cttçc.

EDUCATION CODE
5090 Definition (vacancy)
5091 Special Election
3 5 178 Resignatton with defened effective date

Bylaw HAMILTONUNIFIED SCHOOLDISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

114

Page 48 of t22



Board Bylaws

FILLING VACANCIES

B89223(a)

Events Causing a Vacancy

A vacancy on the Governing Board may occur for any of the following events

L The death of an incumbent (Govemment Code 1770)

2. The adjudication pursuant to a quo warranto proceeding declaring that an incumbent is physically or
mentally incapacitated due to disease, illness, or accident and that there is reasonable cause to believe that
the incumbent will not be able to perforrn the duties of hislher office for the remainder of hisÆrer term
(Govemment Code 1770)

3. A Board member's resignation (Government Code 1770)

A vacancy resulting from resignation occurs when the written resignation is filed with the County
Superintendent of Schools havingjurisdiction over the district except where a deferred effective date is
specified in the resignation so filed, in which case the resignation shall become operative on that date. A
Board member may not defer the effective date of hislher resignation for more than 60 days after he/she
files the resignation with the County Superintendent. Upon being filed with the County Superintendent, a
written resignation, whether specifying a deferred effective date or otherwise, shall be irrevocable.
(Education Code 5090, 5091)

4. A Board member's removal from office, including by recall (Elections Code I1384; Government Code
t7't0)

5. A Board member's ceasing to be a resident of the district (Government Code 1770)

A vacancy on the Board also occurs when a Board member ceases to inhabit the trustee area which he/she
represents on the Board. (58 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 888 (1975))

6. A Board member's absence from the state for more than 60 days, except in the following situations:
(Government Code 1064, 177 0)

Upon district business with the approval of the Board

With the consent of the Board for an additional period not to exceed a total absence of 90 days

In the case of illness or other urgent necessity, and upon a proper showing thereof, the time limited
for absence from the state may be extended by the Board.

a.

b.

Page 49 of L22

115



BB9223(b)

FILLING VACANCIFS (continued)

For federal military deployment, not to exceed an absence of a total of six months, as a member of
the arrned forces of the United States or the Califomia National Guard

If ths absence of the Board member for this purpose exceeds six months, the Board may approve
an additional six-month absence upon a showing that there is a reasonable expectation that the
member will retum within the second six-month period, and the Board may appoint an interim
mþ'mberto serveinlis/her¿Ibsence. if two or more members of fhe'Bo?trd are absent by reason oi
these circumstances, and those absences result in the ina-bility to establish a quorum at a regrlJar
meeting, the Board may immediately appoint cne or more interim members as necessary to enable
the Board to cond';ct business and discharge its respcnsibiiities. The tenn of an inten'rn naember
appointed in these circumstances shall not extend beyond the retum of the absent Board member
or beyond the next regularly scheduled election for that office, whichever occurs first.

A Board member's ceasing to discharge the duties of hislher office for the period of three consecutive
months, except when prevented by illness or when absent from the state with the permission required by
law (Govemment Code 1770)

8

9 A Board membeCs refusal or neglect to file his/her required oath or bond within the time prescribed
lfìnr¡ammenf l-ndc I 77fl\

A Board member's conviction of a felony or any offense involving a violation of hislher official duties or
¡nnr¡i¡finn nf a ¡lacimatø,1 nçÅn^ r-"rrl*i-* ;- ^ t'^-f-;f".- ^f ^ffi^ê l(!¡¡¡aøøøø¡ ¡-^'l^ 11'¡^ ?n^fi-?flô?\vr s $ve¡6uÉ! ¡vùs.ù¡u6 \vvrv¡¡u¡¡vr¡! , r v, Jvwv-Jvwr)

(cJ. 9224 - Oøth or AlJinnøtion)

10. The decision of a competent tribunal declaring void a Board member's election or appointment
(Government Code 1770)

ll A Board member's commitment to a hospital or sanitarium as a drug addict, dipsomaniac, inebriate, or
stimulant addict by a court of competent jurisdiction, in which case the office shall not be deemed vacant
until the order of commitment has become final (Government Code 1770)

12. A 'failure to elect" in which no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have filed to run for a
Board seat(s) (Education Code 5090, 5326,5328>

c

7

116

Page 50 of L22



2.

J

BB 9223(c)

FILLING VACANCIES (continued)

Timelines for Filling a Vacancy

'When a vacancy occurs, the Board shall take the following action, as appropriate

When a vacancy occurs within four months of the end of a Board member's term, the Board shall take no
action. (Education Code 5093)

When a vacanc"jr occurs longer than fow months before the end of a Board member's term, the Board shall,
within 60 days of the date of the vacancy or the filing of the member's deferred resignation, either order an
election or make a provisional appointment, unless a special election is mandated as described in item #3
below. (Education Code 5091, 5093)

When a vaÇancy occurs from six months to 130 days before a regularly scheduled Board election at which
the position is not scheduied to be filled, a special election to fill the position shall be consolidated with the
regular election. The person so elected shall take office at the fîrst regularly scheduled Board meeting
following the certification of the election and shall serve only until the end of the term of the position
which he/she was elected to fill. (Education Code 5093)

Eligibility

In order to be appointed or elected to fill a vacancy on the Board, a person must meet the eligibility requirements
specified in Education Code 35107.

(cf. 9220 - Goveming Board Elections)

Provisional Appointments

When authorizedby law to make a provisional appointment to fill a vacancy on the Board, the Board shall advertise
in the local media to solicit candidate applications or nominations. A committee consisting of less than a quorum of
the Board shall ensure that applicants are eligible for Board membership and announce the names of the eligible
candidates. The Board shall interview the candidates at a public meeting, accept oral or written public input, and
select the provisional appointee by a majority vote.

(cf. 9130 - Board Committees)
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

Within I 0 days afier the appointment is made, the Board shall post notices of the actual vacancy, or the filing of a
defened resignation, and the provisional appointment. The notice shall be published in the local newspaper
pursuant to Government Code 6061 and posted in at least three public places within the district. (Education Code
s0e2)

Page 51 of L22

IL7



2.

A

BB e223(d)

FILLING VACANCIES (continued)

The notice shall contain: (Education Code 5092)

The date of the occurrence of the vacancy or the date of the filing of, an{ the effective date of, the
resignation

The full name of the appointee

The date of appointment

A statement notiffing the voters that r¡nless a petition ealling for a speeial sleetion pursuant to Education
Code 509i is äled in the oftice of the County Superintendent within 30 days of the provisional
appointrnent, it shali become an effective appointmenl

The person appointed shall hold offrce until the next regularly schedulcd election for district Board members and
shall be afforded all the powers and duties of a Board member upon appointment. (Education Code 5091)

Appointment Due to Failure to Elect

Sräen a vacancy occ-r¡rs because no candidate oi an insufflicieni number of candidates have been nominated (i.e., a
failure to elect) ancl a district election will not be held, the Boar<l shall appoint a qrralified person to the office. This
appointment shall be made at a meeting prior to the day fixed for the election and the appointee shall be seated at the
orsanizatinna! meetins as if elected at the district election- lEdr-rcation Cc,de 53281.-.---...Þ\-------.--.

(cJ. 9100 - Urganization)

When an appointment is being made because of a failure to elect, the district shall publish a notice once ln a
newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no such newspaper exists, in a newspaper having
general circulation v/ithin the district. This notice shall state that the Board intends to make an appointment and
shall inform persons of the procedure available for applying for the appointment. (Education Code 5328.5)

The procedure for selecting and interviewing candidates shall be the same as the procedures for "Provisional
Appointments," as specifted above.

Legal Refermce: (see next page)

118

Page 52 of t22



BB 9223(e)

FILLING VACANCIES (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
5000-5A33 Elections
5090-5095 Vacancies
5200-5208 Districts governed by boards ofeducatíon
5300-5304 Elections
5320-5329 Order and call afelection
5 340-5 345 Consolidation of elections
5 360-5 363 Election notice
5420-5426 Cost of elections
5440-5442 Miscellaneous provisions, elections
35147 Eligibility of board members
35178 Resignatíon with deferred effective date
ELECTIONS CODE
1 0600- I 0604 School district elections
I I 38 I -I I 386 Candidates for recall
GOI/ERNMENT CODE
1064 Absencefromstate
I 770 Vacancies: definition
3000-3003 Forfeinre of ffice
3060-3075 Removal other than by impeøchment
6061 One time notice
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act
PENAL CODE
88 Bribery, forfeíture from ffice

TES TITLE 18
704 Military medals or decorations
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
58 Ops.Cøl.Attv.Gen. 888 (1975)

Managernent Resources
CSBA P
Filling a Board Vacancv. rev. December 2010
WEB SITES
C SBA : http : //www. csbø. or g
Caliþrnia State Attorney General's Office, Quo Vïarranto Applications
http : //a g. c a. gov /op ini ons /quo _w aw ant o. p hp

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, California

Page 53 ol L22

119



Board Bylaws

OATII ORAFFIRMATION

B.89224

Prior to entering upon the duties of their office, all Goveming Board members shall take the oath or affirmation
required by law. (Calit'ornia Constitution, Article 20, Section 3; Government Code 1360)

(cf. 4l 12.3/4212.3/4312.3 - Oath or Alfirmation)

The oath may be administered and certified by a Board member, secretary or assistant secretary to the Board,
Superintendent, deputy or assistant superintencient, principai, or Counly Superintendent ofschools of any other
person authorized in Education Code 60.

The execute¡l oath shal! b,e filed with the Cor:ntv Clerk. lGovernment Code 1363-ì

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
60 Persons authorized to admínister and certify oaths
GOVERNMENTCODE
1303 Misdemeanorforfailure to take oath
t zAn t 2Ãn 

^^aL ^{^/Z:-^tJUW-tJV7 VULtt UJ w.LlL\c

3100-3109 Oath or ffirmation of allegiance
CALIFO NXIA C ONSTITUTION
Á vti?la ?O .Ç¿ntinø 1 (larh nf nflìno

COURTDECISIONS
Chilton v. Contra Costa Community Cotlege District (1976) 55 Ual. App. Jd 544
'floselv. Countv of Los Anseles (1967) 68 Cal.2d 18,22

Bylaw HAMILTON UNITIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

L20

Page 54 of L22



Board Bylaws

ORIENTATION

BB 9230(a)

Board Candidate Orientation

The Goveming Board desires to provide Board candidates with orientation that will enable them to understand the
responsibilities and expectations of Board membership. The Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates
with general information about school progr¿rnns, district operations, and Board responsibilities. He/she may also
provide candidates with information about the election process, including, but not limited to, information about
campaign conduct and ballot statement information.

(cf. 9200 - Limits of Boørd Member Authority)
(cf. 9220 - Governíng Board Elections)
(cf 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

The Board encouragss all candidates to attend public Board meetings during the period of their candidacy
Candidates shall have thc same access as members of the public to district staff and information.

þf. I3a0 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)

New Board Member Orientation

The Board shall convene a meeting to provide an orientation and information to incoming Board members to assist
them in understanding the Board's functions, policies, procedures, protocols, and agreed-upon standards ofconduct.
Incoming Board members shall receive the district's policy manual and other materials related to the diskict and
Board member responsibilities-

(cf 9000 - Role of the Board)
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards)

Upon their election, incoming Board mcmbers shall be provided a copy of the Brown Act and informed that,
pursuant to Govemment Code 54952.1, they must conform to the Act's requirements as if they had already assumed
office.

The Superintendent may provide incoming Board members with additional background and information regarding
the district's vision and goals, operations, and current challenges in areas that include, but are not limited to, student
achievement, curriculum, finance, facilities, policy, human resources, and collective bargaining.

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0200 - Goals þr the School District)

Page 55 aft22

L2I



BB 9230(b)

ORJENTATION (continued)

lncoming members are encouraged to attend Board meetings and review agenda materials available to the public in
order to become familiar with current issues facing the district. Incoming members also may, at district expense and
with approval ofthe Board, attend workshops ond conferences relevant to thcir individual ncsds or to ths nccds of
the Board as a whole or the district.

/^î o'r,tA Þ^--) I\^,-l^^---t\
\-LJ. ) La v' DQø41 U9-VCtúPtttCaçL/'

Legøl Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
,rta^ 

^ 
--^ -at., /' , . ' rt L 1 t'.' .tiiJúÙ rJePui'¡¡rtyr¡[ uJ Latucutturt uttu stutewtue uùJuçtuttuft uJ scttuul u¿srtcr auurus; uftnu¿tl worft$ltop5

33362-33363 Reimbursement of expenses; board member or member-elect
ELECTIONS CODE
I 3307 Candidqte's statement
20440 Code of Fair Campaign Practices
GOVERNMENT CODE
54950-54963 The Rølplt M. Brav¡n Act, especiaily
54952.1 Mernber of a legisløtíve body
54952.7 Copies of Brown Act to board members

Management Resources:
L ÐDlt T U.D TI \-A I I 1J]\ L)

School Boørd f .cndershin 2007
The Brown Act: School Boards ønd Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2007
Guide to Efiective Meetinss, 2007
Professional Govemance Standørds. 2 000
Maximtzinq School Board Leødership, 1996
NATIONAL SCHOOL B OARDS ASSOCATION PUBLICATIONS
Bprnmincr a Better Board lVlcm.het": A ln Ffforlivo .fehnnl Rnnv¡l .foøina 2006
WEB SITES
C SBA : http : //www. csb a. org
F air P o I iti c al P ra cti c es C o mmis s io n : http : //www.fpp c. c a. gov
Nati o n al S c h o o I B o ar ds As s o ci øti on : http : //www. ns b a. org

tsylaw HAMIL'I'ON UNIß'IED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

r22

Page 56 of 122



Board Bylaws

BOARD DEVELOPMENT

B89240

Citizens elected to the Governing Board are entrusted with the responsibility of governing district schools. The
Board recognizes that its members need training that helps them understand their responsibilities, stay abreast of
new developments in education, and develop boardsmanship skills.

All Board members may attend conferences for the purpose of Board development. Board business shall not be
discussed at conferences.

(cf, 9230 - Oríentation)
(cf. 9320 - Meetings ønd Notices)

Board members shall report to the Board, orally or in writing, as soon as possible on the inservice activities they
attend.

Funds for Board development shall be budgeted annually for each Board member

(cf 9250 - Remuneration, Reimbursement, and Other Benefits)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
33360 Department of Educatìon ønd statewide associatíon of school distríct boards; annual worlcshop
GOT/ERNMENT CODE
54950-54963 The Rølph M. Brown Act, especíally:
54952.2 Meeting

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, California

Page 57 of t22

r23



Board Bylaws

REMUNERATION, REIMBURSEMENT AND OTHER BENEFITS

BB 9250(a)

Compensation

Each member of the Governing Board may receive the maximum monthly compensation as provided for in
Etlueatiu¡r Codç 35120.

On an annual basis, the Board may increase the compensation of Board members beyond the limit delineated in
Education eode 35i2ô in an amount not to exceed five percent based on the present monthly rate of compensation.
(Education Code 35i20)

Board. members are not requi¡ed io accept par¡ment for meetings attended.

Any member who does not attend all Board meetings dwing the month is eligible to receive only a percentage of the
monrhiy compensarion equai ro tire percenrage of meetings ireishe anendeci, uniess otirerwise aurirorizeci by the
Board in accordance with law. (Education Code 35120)

A membcr may be compensated for meetings he/she missed when the Board, by resolution, finds that he/she was
performing designated services for the district at the time of the meeting or that he/she lvas absent because of illness,
jury duty, or a hardship deemed acceptable by the Board. (Education Code 35120)

Student Board members shall receive no compensation for meetings attended. (Education Code 35012)

(cf. 9150 - Sndent Board Members)

-ùirenever a quorum oiBuarri member,s s€r'vuri as a¡ruii.rcr icgisiaiivs i:utiy witiuit wiii r¡leei si¡n.rliaireoi¡sly or ii-t
serial order to a Board meeting, the Board clerk or a momber of the Board shall verbally announce the amount of
any additional compensation or stþend that each member will be entitled to receive as a result of convening the

simultaneous or serial meeting. (Government Code 54952.3)

Reimbursement of Expenses

Board members shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred when performing authorized
services for the district. Expenses for travel, telephone, business meals, or other authorized purposes shall be in
accordance with policies established for district personnel and at the same rate of reimbursement.

(cf. I 160 - Political Processes)
(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses)
(cf. 3513.1 - Cellular Phone Reimbursement)

Board members shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred when performing services directed by the Board.
(Education Code 35044)

L24

Page 58 of 122



BB e25o(b)

REMUNERATION, REIMBURSEMENT AND OTHER BENEFITS (continued)

(cf. 9240 - Board Development)

Authorized purposes may include, but are not limited to, attendance at educational seminars or conferences designed
to improve Board members'skills and knowledge; participation in regional, state, or national organizations whose
activities affect the district's interests; attendance at district or community events; and meetings with state or federal
officials on issues of community concern.

Personal expenses shall be the responsibility of individual Board members. Personal expenses include, but are not
limited to, the personal portion of any trip, tþs or gratuities, alcohol, entertainment, laundry, expenses of any family
member who is accompanying the Board member on district-related business, personal use of an automobile, and
personal losses and traffic violation fees incurred while on district business.

Any questions regarding the propriefy ofa particular type ofexpense should be resolved by the Superintendent or
designee before the expense is incurred.

Board members may use district-issued credit cards while on official district business and consistent with the limits
established for district personnel. Personal expenses shall not be charged on a district-issued credit card, even ifthe
Board member intends to subsequently reimburse the district for the personal charges.

Health and \Melfare Benefits for Current Board Members

Board members may participate in the health and welfare benefits program provided for district employees.

(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits)

Health and welfare benefits for Board members shall be no greater than that received by the dishict's nonsafety
employees with the most generous schedule of benefits. (Govemment Code 53208.5)

The district shall pay the premiums required for Board members electing to participate in the district health and
welfare benefits program to the same extent that it pays for district employees.

Health and welfare benefits provided to Board members shall be extended at the same level to their
spouse/registered domestic partner and to their eligible dependent children as specified in law and the health plan.

Page 59 ofL22

L25



BB 9250(c)

REMUNERATION, REIMB{JRSEMENT AND OTHF.R BENEFITS (continued)

Health and Welfare Benefits for Former Board Members

Former Board members may participate in the health and welfare benefits program provided for district employees
under the conditions specified beluw.

Health and welfare benefits for former Board members shall be no greater than those received by district nonsafety
employees with the most generúus scheduie of benefits. (Government Code 532û8:5)

Any forrner Board member leaving the Board after at least one terrn of office may participate in the health and
welfare benefits program at his/her own expense if coverage is in effect at the time of retirement. {Govemment
Cotlc 53201)

Heaith anci weifare benefits provicieci to a former Boarci mem'oer shaii be exten<ieci, at his/her expense anci at the
same level, to his/her spouse/registered domestic parher and eligible dependent children as specified in law and the
health plan.

f.eçnl ke{erpnre' lqee naxl nnopl
- -Þ-- ' '-J -'

L26

Page 60 of t22



BB e2s0(d)
REMUNERATION, REIMBURSEMENT AND OTHER BENEFITS (continued)
Legal Reference:

Er)UCATION CODE
3 305 0-3 3 05 3 General waiver authority
3 3 3 6 2 - 3 3 3 6 3 Reimbursement of expenses for attendance at worlcshops
35012 Board members; number, election and term
3 5 04 4 P ayment of trav eling expens es of repres entatives of bo ard
35120 Compensationfor services as member of governing board
3 5 I 72 Promotional activities
44038 Cash depositsfor transportation purchased on credit
FAMILY CODE
297-297.5 Rights, protections and benefits under law; regßtered domestic pørtners
GOI/ERNMENT CODE
8314 Use ofpublic resources
20322 Elective fficers; election to become member
20420-20445 Membershtp in Public Employees'Retirement System; definttion of søfety employees
5 3 200-5 3 209 Group insurance
54952.3 Simultaneous or seriøl meetings; announcement of compensatíon
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
I 373 Health services plan, coverage for dependent children
INSURANCE CODE
I 0277-1 0278 Group and indiviù.tal health insurance, coverage for dependent children
WITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26
403 Tax-sheltered annuities
WITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
1801 1 Right to mqintctin existing health coverage
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 26
I . 4 0 3 (b) - 2 Tax-sheltered annuities, definition of employ e e

COURT DECISIONS
Thornins v. Hollister School District. Q994 I I Cal.App.4th 1598
Board of Educøtion of the Palo Alto Unifìed School District v. Sttperior Court of Santa Clara County,
(1979) 93 Cal.App.3d 578
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
9l Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 37 (2008)
83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 124 (2000)

Manøgement Resources:
INSTITU TE F O R L O CAL G O I'E RNME NT P UB T.I CATI ON S
Sample Expense and Use of Public Resources Policy Statement, January 2006
INTERNAL RET/ENUE SERVICE PUBLICATIONS
Tax-Sheltered Annuity Plans (403(b) Plans) for Emolovees of Public Schools and Certain Tax-Exemot
Orsanizøtions, Pttblication 571, rev. Februøry 2013
WEB SITES
CSBA: http ://www.esba.org
Ins títut e fo r L o c a I G ov ernm ent : ht tp : //vvww. c a-i lg. or g
Int e rn a I Rev entte S ervi c e : http : //www. irs. gov
P ub li c E mp I oy e es' Refi r em ent Sy s t em : http : //www. c a lp ers. c a. go v

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

Page 61 oft22

r27



2.

J.

/

5.

6.

Board Bylaws

LEGAL PROTECTION

BB 9260(a)

Liability fnsurance

The Governing Board shall provide insurance necessary to protect Board members and employees while acting
within thc scope of their office or employment in accordance with Educatiot Code 35208-

(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance)

Protection Âgainst Liabüity

No Board member shali be liable for harm caused by hislher act or omission when acting within the scope of districi
responsibilities. The act or omission must be in conformiry with federal, state and local laws and made in
furtherance ofan effort to control, discipline, expel or suspend a student, or rnaintain order or control in the
ciassroom or scirooi. (Zú USC 67J6)

The protection against liability shall not apply when: (20 USC 6736)

The Board member acted with willful or criminal misconduct, gross negligence, recklessness, or a
conscious, flagrant indifference to the harmed person's right to safety.

The Board member caused harm by operating a motorvehicle.

The Board member.¡¡as not properly licensed, if required, by the State for such activities.

d I I f, li aL I : I ! I a J I L ! : 'l : lr I
r rls Dualu lrltrrr-lurl waù rur¡rru uy il uuutt Lu Ililvtt vtul¿lltru it lËuËtilt ut st-¿tLg urvtr ILB-Íts r4.w.

The Board member was under the influence of alcohol or any drug at the time of the misconduct.

The misconduct constituted a crime of violence pursuant to I 8 USC 16 or an act of terrorism for which the
Board member has been convicted in a court.

7 The misconduct involved a sexual offense for which the Board member has been convicted in a court.

Legal Reference: (see nextpage)

L28

Page 62 ot t22



BB e260(b)

LEGAL PROTECTION (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
1 7 02 9. 5 Connact funding; board liability
35 208 Liability insurance
35214 Liability insurance (self-insurance or a combination of self-insurqnce and insut'ance through an
insurance company)
GOI'ERNMENT CODE
8 I 5.3 Intentional torts
820-823 Tort Claims Act
825.6 Indemnif,cation of public entity
1090-1098 Conflicts of interest, prohibitions applicable to specified officers
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act
87100-89503 Cofficts of interest
tÑrnn sr¿rns cooø, nnz ta
16 Crime ofviolence defined
(INITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
6731-6738 Teacher Protection Act
COURT DECISIONS
Caldwell v. Montoya (Paramount Unifì,ed School Districtl I0 Cal 4th 972 (1995)

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Hamilton City, Califomia

Page 63 of 122

L29



Board Bylaws

CONFLICT OFINTEREST

B89210(a)

The Governing Board desires to maintain the highest ethical standards and help ensure that decisions are made in the
best interest of the district and the public. In accordance with law, Board members and designated employees shall
disclose any conflict of interest and, as necessary, shall abstain from participating in the decision.

(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards)

The Board shati adopt a resoiution rhar specifies the terms of tile district's confficl of interest code,'the district's
designated positions, and the riisciosure categories required f-or each position.

T Tnnn direntinn hr¡ the nnrle revie¡vino hnriw ¡he Roar¡i shall revie¡v the riistrictts cnnf'lict nf inferest corie and suhmit,e_J, __-_

any changes to the code reviewing body.

When a change ln the dlstnct's conthct ot rnterest code rs necessrtated due to changed crrcumstances, such as the

creation of new designated positions, changes to the duties assigned to existing positions, amendments, or revisions,
the amended code shall be submitted to the code reviewing body within 90 days. (Govemment Code 87306)

When reviewing and preparing the district's conflict of interest code, the Superintendent or designee shall provide
officers, employees, consultants, and members cf the community adequate notice and a fair opportunity to present

their'¡iews. (Govemment Code 873i i)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Natices)

Board members and designated employees shall annually file a Statement of Economic Interest/Form 700 in
acsordanse with the disolssure oategorres specrtied in the drstnst's conthct ot rnterest code. A uoard member who
leaves office or a designated employee who leaves district empioynent shall, within 30 days, file a revised statement
covering the period of time belween the closing date of the last statement and the date of leaving office or district
employment. (Government Code 87 302, 87500)

þf. a l 1 7.2/a2 1 7.2/43 1 7.2 - Resignation)
(cf. 9222 - Resignation)

Conflict of Interest under the Political Reform Act

A Board member or designated employee shall not make, participate in making, or in any l¡/ay use or attempt to use

hisiher official position to influence a govemmental decision in which he/she knows or has reason to know that
he/she has a disqualiffing conflict of interest. A conflict of interest exists if the decision will have a "reasonably
foreseeable materiai financial effect" on one or more of the Board member's or designated employee's "economic

130

Page 64 ot t22



I

2.

BB e270(b)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

interests," unless the effect is indistinguishable from the effect on the public generally or the Board membe/s or
designated employee's participation is legally required. (Govemment Code 87100, 87101, 87103;2 CCR 18700-
r 8709)

A Board member or designated employee makes a govemmental decision when, acting within the authority of
his/her office or position, he/she votes on a matter, appoints a person, obligates or commits the district to any course
of action, or enters into any contractual agreement on behalf of the district. (2 CCR 18702.1)

A Board member who has a disqualifying conflict of interest on an agenda item that will be heard in an open
meeting of the Board shall abstain from voting on the matter. He/she may remain on the dais, but his/her presence
shall not be counted towards achieving a quomm for that matter. A Board member with a disquali$ing conflict of
interest shall not be present dwing a closed session meeting of the Board when the decision is considered and shall
not obtain or review a recording or any other nonpublic information regarding the issue. (2 CCR 13702. l)

Additional Requirements for Boards that Manage Public Investments

A Board member who manages public investments pursuant to Government Code 87200 andwho has a financial
interest in a decision shall, upon identifying a conflict or potential conflict of interest and immediately prior to the
consideration of the matter, do all of the following: (Government Code 87105; 2 CCR 18702.5)

Publicly identiff each financial interest that gives rise to the conflict or potential conflict of interest in
detail sufficient to be understood by the public, except that disclosure ofthe exact street address ofa
residence is not required.

Recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the matter, or otherwise acting in violation of
Government Code 87100. The Board member shall not be counted toward achieving a quomm while the
item is discussed.

However, the Board member may speak on the issue during the time that the general public speaks on it
and may leave the dais to speak from the same area as members of the public. He/she may listen to the
public discussion of the matter with members of the public.

Leave the room until after the discussion, vote, and any other disposition of the matter is concluded, unless
the matter has been placed on the portion of the agenda reserved for uncontested mattçrs.

If the item is on the consent calendar, the Board member must recuse himself/herself from discussing or
voting on that matter, but the Board member is not required to leave the room during consideration of the
consent calendar.

J.

Page 65 of L22

131



4.

BB 9270(c)

CONFLICT OF INTER.EST (continued)

If the Board's decision is made during closed session, disclose his/her interest orally dwing the open
session preceding the closed session. This disclosure shall be limited to a declaration that hislher recusal is

because of a conflict of interest pursuant to Government Code 87100. He/she shall not be present when the
item is considered i¡r clusctl session antl shall uut k-nuwingly obtain or rcvicw a recording or any othcr
nonpubiic infonnation regarding the Board's decision.

fuf. 3a3t'investing)

Conflict of,Interest under Government Code 1090

Board members, employees, or district consultants shall not be financially interested in any contract made by the

Board on behalf of the district, including in the development, preliminary discussions, negotiations, compromises,
pianning, reasoning, anci speciÍications anci soiicirations for bi<is. if a Boarci member iras such a frnanciai interest,
the district is barred from entering into the contract. (Government Code 1090; Klistoff v. Superior Court , (2007)
157 Cal.App. 4th469)

A Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if his/her interest is a "noninterest"
as defined in Government Code 1091 .5. One such noninterest is when a Board member's spouse/registered domestic
partner has been a district employee for at least one year prior to the Board mernber's election or appointrnent.
(Govemment Code 1091.5)

A Board member shal! not be considered to be financially interested h a contract if he/she ha-s only a "remote
interest" in the contract as speciÌied in Govemment Code l09l and if the remote interest is disclosed during a Board
meettng and noted ur the ottlciai Boarcl minutes. fhe attècteci tsoarci member shaii not vote or ciebate on the maner
or attempt to influence any other Board member to enter into the contract. (Government Code 1091)

Even if there is not a prohibited conflict of interest, a Board member shall abstain from voting on personnel matters
that uniquely affect his/her relatives. However. a Board member may vote on collective bargaining agreements and
personnel matters that affect a class of employees to which his/her relative belongs. Relatíve means an adult who is
related to the Board member by blood or affinity within the third degree, as determined by the cornmon law, or an

individual in an adoptive relationship within the third degree. (Education Code 35107)

A relationship within the third degree includes an individual's paxents, grandparents, great-grandparsnts, children,
grandchildren, great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles, nieces, nephews, and the similar family of the
individual's spouse/registered domestic partner unless the individual is widowed or divorced.

L32

Page 66 ot L22



BB e270(d)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

Common Law Doctrine Against Conflict of Interest

A Board member shall abstain from any official action in which his/trer private or personal interest may conflict
with hislher official duties.

Rule of Necessity or Legally Required Participation

On a case-by-case basis and upon advice of legal counsel, a Board member witlr a financial interest in a contract
may participate in the making of the contract if the rule of necessity or legally required participation applies
pursuant to Government Code 87101 and 2 CCR 18708.

Incompatible Offices and Activities

Board members shall not engage in any emploJ¡ment or activity or hold any office which is inconsistent with,
incompatible with, in conflict with, or inimical to the Board member's duties as an officer of the district.
(Government Code 1099, l 126)

(cf. 4I j6/aß6/4336 - Nonschool Employment)

Gifts

Board members and designated employees may accept gifts only under the conditions and limitations specified in
Government Code 89503 and 2 CCR 18730.

The limitation on gifts does not apply to wedding gifts and gifts exchanged between individuals on birthdays,
holidays, and other similar occasions, provided that the gifts exchanged are not substantially disproportionate in
value. (Govemment Code 89503)

Gifts of travel and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the current gift limitation except as described
in Govemment Code 89506.

A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the district for Board members and designated employees.
(Government Code 89506)

Honoraria

Board members and designated employees shall not accept any honorarium, which is defined as any payment made
in consideration for any speech given, article published, or attendance at any public or private gathering, in
accordance with law. (Government Code 89501, 89502)

Page67 oft22

133



z.

BB 9270(e)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

The term honorarium does not include: (Government Code 89501)

F.arned income for personal services customarily provided in connection wÍ¡h a bona fitle business. tradc, ur
profession unless the sole or predominant activity of the business, trade, or profession is making speeches

Any honorarium which is nof used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either retumed fo'fne donor or
<ieiivered to the ciistrict for donation into the generai fi¡nd without being ciaimed as a <ieduction from
income for tax purposes

Legai Re¡erence:
EDUCATION CODE
1006 fuaffications for holding ffice
35107 Schoal district ernplayees
3 5 2 3 0-3 5 240 Cornrpt practices, especially :
35233 Prohibítions applicable to members of governing boards
4100A-410A3 Monqts received by sclzoo! distrícts
FAMILY CODE
297.5 Rights, proîections, and benefits of registered domestic partners
GOVERNMENTCODE
1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified fficers
Ì ¡ 25-¡ i 29 incomparibíe activiries
81000-91A14 Political Reform Act of 1974, especialþt:
820 I 1 Code reviauing body
87 100-87 10i.6 General prohibitions
87200-872 I 0 Disclosure
87300-873 1 3 Conflict ofinterest code
87500 Statements of economic interests
89501-89503 Honoraría and gifts
9 1 000-9 1 0 I 4 Enforcement
PENAL CODE
85-88 Bribes
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2
18110-15997 Regùations of the Fair Polittcal Prøctices Commission, especially
18702.5 Public identification of a conflict of interestfor Section 87200fi\ers
COUR.T DECISIONS
Klistoffv. Superior Court, (2007) 157 Cal.App.4th 469
Thorpe v. Lons Beach Community Collese District. (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th 655
Kunec v. Brea Redevelopment Asency. (1997) 55 Cal.App.4th 511

Legal Reþrences continued: (see next pøge)

L34

Page 68 af L22


